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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Power Financial Corporation’s operating earnings for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 were $891 million or $1.22 per
share, compared with $830 million or $1.14 per share in the corresponding period in 2005, This represents a 6.7% increase on a

per share basis.

Growth in the Corporation's operating earnings reflects an increase in the contribution from the Corporation’s subsidiaries

and affiliate.

Other items not included in operating earnings were a net charge of $5 million or $0.01 per share in the six-month period

in 2006. Other items were nil in the six-month period in 2005

As a result, net earnings for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 were $886 million or $1.21 per share, compared with

$830 million or $1.14 per share for the same period in 2005.

SECOND QUARTER RESULTS

For the quarter ended June 30, 2006, operating earnings of the Corporation were $483 million or $0.66 per share, compared with

$449 million or $0.62 per share in the second quarter of 2005, representing an increase of 7.1% on a per share basis.

Other items for the quarter in 2006 were a charge of $5 million or $0.01 per share, compared with a credit of $2 million in the

second quarter of 2005.

Net earnings for the quarter were therefore $478 million or $0.65 per share in 2006, compared with $451 million or $0.62 per
share in 2005.

SUBSIDIARIES’ AND AFFILIATE’S RESULTS

GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

Lifeco reported net income attributable to common shareholders of $907 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006, compared
to $865 million reported a year ago. On a per share basis. this result represents $1.017 per common share for the six months ended

June 30, 2006, an increase of 5% {13% on a constant currency basis) compared to $0.971 per common share for 2005.

For the three months ended June 30, 2006, net income attributable to common shareholders was $461 million, compared to net
income of $446 million reported a year ago. On a per share basis, this result represents $0.516 per common share for the three

months ended June 30, 2006, an increase of 3% (11% on a constant currency basis) compared to $0.500 per common share for 2005.

IGM FINANCIAL INC.

IGM reported net income for the six months ended June 30, 2006, excluding a non-cash income tax benefit described below, of
$372.0 million, compared with net income of $328.6 million in 2005. Earnings per share on that basis were $1.39in 2006, compared
with $1.23 in 2005, an increase of 13.0%. These figures exclude a non-cash income tax benefit of $13.7 million or $0.05 per share
recorded in the second quarter, resulting from decreases in the federal corporate income tax rate and their effect on the future
income tax liability related to indefinite life intangible assets. Including this item, net income for the six-month period ended

June 30, 2006 was $385.7 million or $1.44 per share.
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For the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, IGM reported net income, excluding the income tax benefit, of $186.7 million,
compared with netincome of $167.9 million in 2005. Earnings per share on that basis were $0.70 in the quarter in 2006, compared
with earnings per share of $0.63 in the corresponding period in 2005, an increase of 11.1%. Including the effect of the non-cash

income tax benefit. net earnings for the three-month period ended June 30, 2006 were $200.4 million or $0.75 per share.

PARGESA HOLDING 5.A.

Parjointco NV. holds Power Financial's interest in Pargesa Holding, which will report its six-month resuits in September, as in
past years. The contribution from the European affiliate included in Power Financial’s six-month net earnings is estimated at
$69 million, including a charge of $13 million to other income, compared with $73 million, which included $10 million in other

income for the corresponding period in 2005,

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

/@M

Robert Gratton R. Jeffrey Orr
Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

August 3, 2006
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Corporation for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2006 and the consolidated financial statements
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been filed with the securities commissions and similar authorities in Canada and mailed to shareholders of the
Corporation in accordance with applicable securities faws.
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The trademarks contained in this report are owned by Power Financial Corporation, or a member of
the Power Financial group of companies. Trademarks that are not owned by Power Financial are used
with permission.
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POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RESULTS

ALL TABULAR AMOUNTS ARE IN MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

The following is a discussion and analysis of the interim consolidated financial position and results of operations of Power Financial Corporation
{Power Financial or the Corporation) for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006 {the Interim MD&A). This document
should be read in conjunction with the unaudited interim consolidated firancial statements of Power Financial and notes thereto for the three-
month and six-month periods ended June 30. 2006, management's discussion and analysis of operating results for the year ended December
31, 2005 (the 2005 MD&:A), and the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the vear ended December 31, 2005. Additional
information relating to Power Financial, including the Annual Information Form, may be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS > Certain statements, other than statements of historical facl. are forward-looking statements based on eertain assumptions and
retlect the Corparation’s or its subsidiaries’ and affiliate’s current expectations. These statements may include, without limitation, statements regarding the operations, busi-
ness, financial condition, priorities, ongoing ebjectives, strategies and outlook of Power Financial or its subsidiaries and affiliate for the current fiscal year and subsequent
periods. Forward-looking statements include statements that are predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or include words such as “expects”,
"anticipates”. "plans”, "believes”. "eslimates”, "intends”, "targets”, “projects’, “forecasts” or negative versions thereof und ather similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs
such as “may”, "will™, "should”, "would” and “could".

‘This information is bused upon certain material factors or assumptions that were applied in drawing a conclusion or making a lorecast or projection as reflected in the
forward-looking statements, ineluding the perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors that are believed
1o be appropriate in the circumstunces,

Actual results could differ materially from those projected and should not be relied upon as a prediction of future events. By its nature, this information is subject to inherent
risks and uncertainties that may be general or specific. A variety of material factors, many of which are beyond the Corporation’s or its subsidiaries and affiliate’s control,
affect the aperations, performance and resulis of the Corperation, its subsidiaries and affiliate, and their businesses, and could cause actual results to differ materially from
current expeclations of estimated or anticipated events or results. These factors include. but are not limited to: the impact or unanticipated impact of general economic,
political and market factors in North America and internationally, interest and foreign exchange rates, global equity and capital markets, management of market liquidity
and funding risks. chunges in accounting policies and methods used to report financial condition, including uncertainties associated with critical accounting assumptions
and estimates, the effect of applying future accounting changes, business competition, technological change. chunges in government regulation and legiskation, changes in
taxlaws, unexpected judicial or regulatory proceedings, catastrophic events. the Corporation’s or its subsidiaries’ or affiliate’s ability to complete strategic transactions and
integraie acquisitions and the Corporation’s or its subsidiaries’ and afiiliate’s success in anticipating and managing the foregoing risks.

‘the reader is cautioned that the foregoinglist of factors is not exhaustive of the factors that may affect any of the Corporation’s or its subsidiaries’ and affiliate’s forward-looking
statements. The reader is also cautioned to consider these and other factors carefully and net to put undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

Other than as specifically required by law, the Corporation undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date
on which such stalement is made, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, whether as a result of new information. future events or results, or otherwise.

Additional information about the risks and uncertainties of the Corporation’s business is provided in its disclosure materials, including its most recent Annual Information
Form. filed with the securities regulatory authorities in Canada, available at www.sedar.com.

OVERVIEW

Power Financial is a holding company with substantial interests in the financial services industry through its controlling interests in Great-
West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco) and IGM Financial Ine. (IGM). Power Financial also holds an interest in Pargesa Holding S.A. (Pargesa), together
with the Frére group of Belgium.

Parts B and C of this interim MD&A concerning Lifeco and IGM consist of their respective interim MD&A and financial siatements,
as prepared and disclosed by these companies. This information is also available either directly from SEDAR or from the Web site of Lifeco
(www.greatwestlifeco.com) or IGM (www.igmfinancial.com), respectively.

As in previous years, Pargesa will release its six-month results during the menth of September and, consequently, specific information relat-
ing to this company is not disclosed herein. The contribution from Parjointco N.V. (Parjointco) {which holds Power Financial's interest in
Pargesa) reflected in the interim unaudited conselidated financial statements of Power Financial for the periods ended June 30, 2006, has
therefore been established on the basis of estimated figures. In accordance with the practice adopted by Power Financial in prior years, any
difference between this estimated contribution and actual figures resulting from the release by Pargesa of its six-months’ results in September
will be recorded by Power Financial in the third quarter of 2006. For more information about Pargesa, readers can access Pargesa’s Web site
(www.pargesa.ch).

LIFECO

Lifeco has operations in Canada. the United States and Europe through its subsidiaries The Great-West Life Assurance Company (Great-West
Life), London Life Insurance Company (Londen Life), The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada Life), and Great-West Life & Annuity
Insurance Company (GWL&A).

In Canada, Great-West Life and its operating subsidiaries, London Life and Canada Life, offer a broad portfolio of financial and benefit plan
solutions for individuals, families. businesses and organizations, through a network of Freedom 53 Financial and Great-West Life financial
security advisers. and through a multi-channel network of brokers, advisers and financial institutions.
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In the United States, GWL&A is a leader in providing self-funded employee health plans for businesses and in meeting the retirement income
needs of employees in the public/non-profit and corporate sectors. It serves its customers nationwide through a range of health care and
financial products and services marketed through brokers, consultants and group representatives, and through partnerships with other
financial institutions.

In Europe, Canada Life is broadly organized along geographically defined market segments and offers protection and wealth management
products and reinsurance. The Europe segment is composed of two distinct business units: Insurance & Annuities, which consists
of operations in the United Kingdom. Isle of Man, Republic of Ireland and Germany: and Reinsurance, which operates primarily in the
United States, Barbados and Ireland. Reinsurance products are provided through Canada Life. London Reinsurance Group Inc. (LRG), and
their subsidiaries.

At the end of June 2006, Power Financial and IGM held 70.6% and 4.2%, respectively, of Lifeco’s common shares, representing approximately
65% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding Lifeco voting shares.

IGM

IGM is one of Canada's premier personal financial services companies and Canada’s largest manager and distributor of mutual funds and
other managed asset products. Its activities are carried out principally through its operating subsidiaries, Investors Group Inc. (Investors
Group), Mackenzie Financial Corporation (Mackenzie). and Investment Planning Counsel Inc. (Investment Planning Counsel), which offer
their own distinctive products and services through separate advice channels.

Investors Group, through a network of over 3,700 consultants nationwide (at June 30. 2006), offers comprehensive financial planning advice and
services to its clients, including investment, retirement. estate and tax planning. Investors Group offers investment management, securities,
insurance, banking and mortgage praducts and services to its clients through integrated financial planning,

Mackenzie is a leading investment management firm that was founded in 1967. Mackenzie provides investment advisory and related services.
Mackenzie also provides management services to institutional accounts and provides trust and administrative services.

Investment Planning Counsel is an integrated financial services company focused on providing Canadians with high-guality financial
products, services and advice, while helping them achieve their financial objectives. Investment Planning Counsel is the fifth largest financial
planning firm in Canada.

At the end of June 2006, Power Financial and Great-West Life held 55.9% and 3.5%. respectively, of IGM's common shares.

PARGESA

Power Financial Europe BV., a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Financial. and the Frére group each hold a 50% interest in Parjointco,
which at the end of June 2006 held a 54.1% equity interest in Pargesa, representing 61.4% of the voting rights of that company.
As previously disclosed, on March 30, 2006, Pargesa announced the issue and placement of SF600 million debentures convertible into new
Pargesa bearer shares, through a public offering in Switzerland and an international private placement to institutional investors. Pargesa
stated at the time that it intended to use the proceeds of the offering to subscribe to its 50% share of the €709 million capital increase previously
announced by Groupe Bruxelles Lambert (GBL), Concurrently with this offering, Pargesa also issued SF60 million debentures convertible into
new registered shares, which was fully subscribed by existing registered shareholders of Pargesa, including Parjointco.

The Pargesa group has substantial holdings in major companies based in Europe. These investments are held by Pargesa directly or through
its affiliated Belgian holding company, GBL. As of June 30, 2006, its portfolio was composed of interests in various sectors, including oil, gas
and chemicals through Total S.A. (Total); energy, water and waste services through Suez; specialty minerals through Imerys; and cement
and building materials through Lafarge, in which GBL made its first investments during the second part of 2005. GBL announced on May 22,
2006 that. it had crossed the 10% threshold in equity interest in Lafarge.

As previously disclosed, GBL sold back to Bertelsmann its 25.1% equity interest in that company for cash consideration of €4.5 billion on July 4,
2006. GBL also disclosed that it would record a gain of approximately €2.4 billion as a result of this transaction. On that basis, Power Financial
will record a gain of approximately $350 million, which will be recorded by Power Financial in the third quarter of 2006.

OQUTSTANDING NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES

As of the date of this report, there were 704,813,680 common shares of the Corporation outstanding, unchanged from December 31, 2005.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

'The Consoiidated Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in Canada (Canadian GAAP) and are presented in Canadian doliars.

INCLUSION OF PARGESA'S RESULTS

The investment in Pargesa is accounted for by Power Financial under the equity method. As described above, the Pargesa portfolio consists
primarily of investments in Imerys, Bertelsmann (sold in July 2006), Total, Suez and Lafarge, which are held by Pargesa directly or through GBL.
Ln the statement of earnings of GBL, the contribution from Total, Suez and Lafarge consists of the dividends received from these companies
(Lafarge did not contribute to earnings in 2005 as the investments were made by GBL after Lafarge paid its annual dividend).

As previously disclosed. Pargesa, which previously prepared its financial statements in accordance with Swiss generally accepted accounting
pringiples, adopted IFRS at the end of 2005 and accordingly restated its 2005 interim financial results. As a result of adopting IFRS, Pargesa
no longer amortizes goodwill in the preparation of its financial statements.

The contribution te Power Financial's earnings is based on the economic (flow-through) presentation of results used by Pargesa. Pursuant
to this presentation, "operating income” and “non-operating income” are presented separately by Pargesa. Power Financial's share of non-
operating income of Pargesa, after adjustments or reclassifications if necessary, is included as part of Other income in the Corporation’s
financial statements.

CONTRIBUTION FOR THE THREE-MONTH AND SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

As explained above, the contribution from the European affiliate for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30. 2006 reflected
in the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of Power Financial has been established on the basis of estimated figures.
Inaccordance with the practice adopted by Power Financial in previous years, any difference between this estimated contribution and actual
figures disclosed in the release by Pargesa of its six-month results in September — including the estimated contribution to earnings from
Bertelsmann for the second quarter — will be recorded by Power Financial in the third quarter { please refer to the table “Summuary of Quarterly
Results” — footnote 2 later in this section for the impact of such adjustments on Power Financial's earnings in 2005 and 2004).

RESULTS OF POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

‘This section is an overview of the results of Power Financial. In this section, consistent with past practice, the contributions from Lifeco and IGM,
which represent most of the earnings of Power Financial, are accounted for using the equity method in order to facilitate the discussion
and analysis. This presentation has no impact on Power Financial’s net earnings and is intended to assist readers in their analysis of the
results of the Corporation.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In analysing the financial results of the Corporation and consistent with the presentation in previous years, net earnings are subdivided in
this section into the following components:

Y operating earnings; and

» other items. which includes. but is not limited to, the impact on the Corporation’s net earnings of “Other income” as per the

financial statements.

Management has used these performance measures for many years in its presentation and analysis of the financial performance of Power
Financial, and believes that they provide additional meaningful information to readers in their analysis of the results of the Corporation.
“Operating earnings™ excludes the after-tax impact of any item that management considers to be of a non-recurring nature or that
could make the period-over-period comparisen of results from operations less meaningful, and also excludes the Corporation’s share
of any such item presented in a comparable manner by Lifeco or IGM. Operating earnings and operating earnings per share are non-
GAAP financial measures that do not have a standard meaning and may not be comparable to similar measures used by other entities.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the non-GAAP financial measures discussed above with the financial statements of

Power Financial.

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 2006 2005
OTHER AS PER OTHER AS PER
OPERATING ITEMS, FINANCIAL OPERATING ITEMS, FINANCIAL
EARNINGS NET  STATEMENTS EARNINGS NET STATEMENTS
Earnings before share of earnings of
affiliate, other income. income taxes
and non-controlling interests 902 902 854 854
Share of earnings of affiliate 72 72 52 52
Earnings before other income, income taxes
and non-controlling interests 974 974 906 906
QOther income [charges] (13) (13) (2) (2}
Earnings before income taxes and
non-controlling interests 974 (13) 961 906 (2) 904
Income taxes 210 (8) 202 228 (2) 226
Non-controlling interests 281 281 229 (2) 227
Net earnings 483 (5) 478 449 2 451
Per share 0.66 (0.01) 0.65 0.62 - 0.62
S1X MONTHS ENDEC JUNE 30 2006 2005
OTHER AS PER OTHER AS PER
OPERATING ITEMS, FINANCIAL OPERATING ITEMS, FINANCIAL
EARNINGS NET STATEMENTS EARNINGS NET STATEMENTS
Earnings before share of earnings of
affiliate, other income, income taxes
and non-controlling interests 1,796 1,796 1.661 1,661
Share of earnings of affiliate 82 82 63 63
Earnings before other income. income taxes
and non-controlling interests 1,878 1.878 1.724 1,724
Other income [charges] (13) {13) (8) (8)
Earnings before income taxes and
non-controlling interests 1,878 (13) 1,865 1,724 (8) 1,716
Income taxes 466 (8) 458 451 (5) 446
Non-controlling interests 521 521 443 3) 440
Net earnings 891 (5) 886 830 - 830
Per share 1.22 (0.01) 1.21 1.14 - 1.14

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

EARNINGS SUMMARY — CONDENSED SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 20

2006 2005 2006 2005
PER PER PER PER
TOTALIM SHARE TOTALM SHARE TOTALN SHARE TOTALIM SHARE
Contribution from subsidiaries
and affiliate to operating earnings 927 869 501 470
Results from corporate activities {29) (32} (15) {18)
Sub-total 898 837 486 452
Dividends on preferred shares, Series Cand ] (7) (7) (3) (3)
Operating earnings"! 891 1.22 830 1.14 483 0.66 449 0.62
Qther items (5) {0.01) {5) (0.01) 2 -
Net earnings 886 1.21 830 1L.14 478 0.65 451 0.62

[1] Before dividends on perpetual preferred shares issued by the Corporation, which amounted to $16 million and $13 millien in the second quarters of 2006 and 2005,
respectively, and to $32 million and $26 million in the six-month periods of 2006 and 2005, respectively.
[2] Cperating earnings per share are calkulated after deducting perpetual preferred share dividends (see above) from gperating earnings.
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OPERATING EARNINGS

Operating earnings for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 were $891 million, or $1.22 per share, compared with $830 million or
$1.14 per share in the corresponding period of 2005. This represents a 6.7% increase on a per share basis.

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, operating earnings were $483 million. or $0.66 per share. compared with $449 million or
$0.62 per share in the same period in 2005, which represents an increase of 7.1% on a per share basis.

SHARE OF OPERATING EARNINGS FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATE

Power Financial's share of operating earnings from its subsidiaries and affiliate increased by 6,7% in the six-month period ended June 30, 2006,
compared with the same period in 2005. from $869 million to $927 million. For the second quarter in 2006, compared with the corresponding
period in 2005, the increase was 6.6% (from $470 million in 2005 to $501 million in 2006).

b

Lifeco’s contribution to operating earnings was $638 million for the six-month period in 2006, compared with $621 million for the cor-
responding period in 2005. For the second quarter. the contribution from Lifeco to operating earnings was $325 million in 2006, compared
with $322 million in 2005.

Lifeco reported net earnings attributable to common shareholders of $907 million or $1.017 per share for the six-month period in 2006,
compared with adjusted net earnings of $878 million or $0.986 per share in the corresponding period in 2005. This represents an increase
of 3% on a per share basis. For the second quarter. Lifeco reported net earnings of $461 million or $0.516 per share in 2006, compared with
adjusted earnings of $455 million or $0.511 per share in 2005, an increase of 1% on a per share basis.

Lifeco’s adjusted net earnings in 2005 exclude the after-tax impact of restructuring costs related to the acquisition of Canada Life. which
amounted to $13 million after tax or $0.015 per share in the six-month period. and $9 million or $0.011 per share in the second quarter.
These restructuring costs were recorded by Power Financial in Other income.

Including the impact of restructuring costs, Lifeco’s net earnings attributable to common shareholders were $865 million or $0.971 per
share in the six-month period ended June 30, 2005, and $446 million or $0.500 per share in the second quarter of 2005. On a per share basis,
this represents increases of 5% and 3%, respectively, for the six-month and three-month periods ended June 30, 2006, compared with the
same periods in 2005.

The contribution from IGM to Power Financial's operating earnings was $207 million for the six-month period in 2006, compared with
$185 million for the same period in 2005. For the three-month periods ended June 30, the contribution from IGM to operating earnings
was $104 miilion in 2006, compared with $95 million in 2005.

IGM reported earnings attributable to common sharehalders, excluding the item mentioned below, of $372.0 million or $1.39 per share on
a diluted basis for the six-month period in 2006, compared with $328.6 million or $1.23 per share in the same period in 2005, an increase
of 13.0% on a per share basis, For the second quarter, IGM reported adjusted net earnings attributable to common shareholders of
$186.7 million or $0.70 per share in 2006, compared with $167.9 million or $0.63 per share in 2005, for an increase of 11.1% on a per share basis.

The figures above exclude, in 2006, a $13.7 million ($0.05 per share) non-cash income tax benefit recorded by IGM in the second quarter,
as described in more detail in Part C of this report related to IGM. Including this item, net earnings to common shareholders were
$385.7 million or $1.44 per share, and $200.4 million or $0.75 per share in the six-month and three-month periods ended June 30, 2006,
respectively. Power Financial’s share of this item is not included in the contribution from IGM to the Corporation’s operating earnings.

The contribution from the European affiliate to Power Financial's operating earnings, which, as explained above, is based on estimates, was
$82 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, compared with $63 million in the corresponding period in 2005. As in previous
years, the contribution includes, in the second quarter, Pargesa’s estimated share of dividends received by GBL from Total {final instaliment
related to previous fiscal year) and Suez (annual dividend). which both increased in 2006 compared to last year. It also includes, for the
first time in 2006, its share of the dividends received by GBL from its investment in Lafarge.

As in 2005, GBL also received {from Bertelsmann in the second quarter of 2006, for the last time, a cash dividend of €120 million. Pargesa’s
share of the portion of this dividend which, from an accounting standpoint, is considered as a preferred dividend and thus recorded as
income, is estimated. as previously disclosed, at SF37 million in 2006 (SF30 million in 2005).
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RESULTS FROM CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Results from corporate activities, before dividends on preferred shares Series C and ], were net charges of $29 million and $32 million in the
six-month periods of 2006 and 2005, respectively. For the second quarter, corparate results were a net charge of $15 million in 2006, compared
with a net charge of $18 million in the second quarter of 2005. The variance reflects, in particular, higher income from investments in 2006
compared with 2005, resulting primarily from an increase in both average cash balances and returns, and lower interest expense, resulting
primarily from the redemption of the $150 million debentures early in January 2006,

Dividends on preferred shares, Series C and ). which are classified as financing charges, amounted to $7 million and $3 million in the six-month
and three-month periods, respectively. of both 2006 and 2005.

OTHER ITEMS

In both the six-month and three-month periods ended June 30, 2006, other items not included in operating earnings were a net charge of
$5 million or $0.01 per share, consisting of Power Financial's share of estimated non-operating earnings of Pargesa, partly reduced by its share
of the tax benefit recorded by [IGM. Power Financial's share of non-operating earnings at Pargesa, which is a charge of $13 million, includes
in particular a charge of $11 million representing the Corporation’s share of charges recorded by Imerys in the second quarter in connection
with the reorganization of its UK. kaolin operations.

In 2005, other items were respectively nil and $2 million in the six-month and three-month perieds, and included Power Financial's share of
restructuring costs recorded by Lifeco, as well as its share of Pargesa’s estimated non-operating earnings.

NET EARNINGS

Net earnings for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 were $886 million or $L.21 per share, compared with $830 million or $1.14 per
share in the corresponding period in 2005, For the second quarter ended June 30, net earnings were $478 million or $0.65 per share in 2006,
compared with $451 million or $0.62 per share in 2005.

FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CONDENSED SUPPLEMENTARY BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, DECEMBER 31, JUNE 30, DECEMBER 31,
20086 2005 2006 2005
CONSOLIDATED BASIS EQUITY BASIS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,764 4.642 532 613
Investments at equity 1,575 1,501 10,231 9,807
Other investments 88,570 86,836
Other assets 26,840 17,917 74 73
Total 121,749 110,896 10,837 10.493
Liabilities
Policy liabilities
Actuarial liabilities 81,105 71.263
Other 4,159 3,787
Other liabilities 13,932 14,483 409 395
Preferred shares of the Corporation 300 300 300 300
Preferred shares of subsidiaries 1,344 1,356
Capital trust securities and debentures 647 648
Debentures and other borrowings 3,552 3.377 250 400
105,039 95,214 959 1,095
Non-controlling interests 6,832 6,284
Shareholders’ equity
Perpetual preferred shares 1,200 1200 1,200 1,200
Common shareholders’ equity 8,678 8,198 8.678 8,198
Total 121,749 110.896 10,837 10,493
Consolidated assets and assets under administration 296,256 280,170
11} Condensed supplementary balance sheet of the Corporation with Lifeco and IGM accounted far using the equity method.
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CONSOLIDATED BASIS

The consolidated balance sheets include Lifeco’s and IGM's assets and liabilities. Please refer to Parts B and C of this Interim MD&A related
to these subsidiaries. which respectively include a presentation of their balance sheets.

Total assets increased to $121.749 million at June 30, 2006. compared with $110,896 million at December 31, 2005. The increase in assets
is attributable to Lifeco and results primarily from an increase in funds held by ceding insurers of approximately $9.4 billion as a result of
the agreement to acquire the non-participating payout annuity business of the Equitable Life Assurance Society in the United Kingdom.

Preferred shares of the Corporation included in liabilities represent the two series of soft-retractable preferred shares (Series C and J), while |
preferred shares of subsidiaries represent soft-retractable preferred shares issued by Lifeco and IGM. Perpetual preferred shares issued by
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subsidiaries are classified under Non-controlling interests.

Assets under administration include segregated funds of Lifeco and IGM’s mutual fund assets, at market values. The market value of Lifeco’s
segregated funds was $78 billion at the end of June 2006, compared with $75 billion at the end of 2005. IGM’s mutual fund assets at market
value, including those of Mackenzie and Investment Planning Counsel, were $96 billion at June 30, 2006, compared with $94 billion at the
end of 2005,

EQUITY BASIS

Under the equity basis presentation, Lifeco and IGM are accounted for using the equity method. This presentation has no impact on Power
Financial's shareholders’ equity, but is intended to assist readers in isolating the contribution of Power Financial, as the parent company,
to consolidated assets and liabilities. l

Cash and cash equivalents held by Power Financial amounted to $532 million at the end of June 2006, compared with $613 million at the
end of 2005. As previously disclosed, during the first quarter of 2006, Power Financial repaid the $150 million principal amount of its 7.65%
debentures, which matured on January 5. 2006.

In managing its own cash and cash equivalents, Power Financial may hold cash balances or invest in short-term paper or equivalents,
as well as deposits, denominated in foreign currencies and thus be exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates. In order to protect against such
fluctuations, Power Financial from time to time enters into currency-hedging transactions with highly rated financial institutions.

At June 30, 2006, 99% of the $532 million of cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Canadian dollars.

Investments at equity, which represent the carrying value of Power Financial's investments in Lifeco, IGM and Parjointco, increased by
$424 million to $10,231 million at the end of June 2006, compared with $9,807 million at the end of 2005. This increase is mainly due to:

» Power Financial's share of net earnings from its subsidiaries and affiliate, net of dividends received, for a net amount of $486 million;
and

> anetnegative $38 million variation in foreign currency translation adjustments, related principally to the Corporation’s indirect invest-
ment in Lifeco’s foreign operations and in Pargesa. The net negative variance reflects primarily the increase of the Canadian dollar vs. the
U.5. dollar at June 30, 2006 compared with December 31, 2005,

Debentures issued by the Corporation amounted to $250 million at June 30, 2006, unchanged from March 31, 2006, consisting of the 6.90%
debentures due March 11, 2033. At December 31, 2005, the amount of debentures outstanding was $400 million and included the $150 million
7.65% debentures that were repaid on fJanuary 5, 2006,

CASH FLOWS

CONSOQOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 THREE MONTHS £RDED JUNE 30

2006 2005 2006 2005

Cash flow from operating activities 1,988 2.831 2,028 1,749
Cash flow from financing activities (153) (534) 278 (316)
Cash flow from investing activities (1.753) {1,850) (1,584) (1.269)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 40 (98) 10 (72)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 122 349 732 92
Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of year 4,642 3.623 4,032 3.880
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4,764 3972 4,764 3,972

f
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On a consolidated basis. cash and cash equivalents increased by $122 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, compared with an
increase of $349 million in the corresponding period in 2005.

Operating activities produced a net inflow of $1.988 million in the six-month pericd in 2006, compared with a net inflow of $2.831 million in
the corresponding period in 2005.

»  For the six-month period in 2006, Lifeco's cash flow from operations was $1,747 million compared with $2,630 million in 2005. The decrease
in cash flow from operations is mainly due to lower premium income in United States Financial Services and the reduction and payment
of other liabilities. For the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, cash flow from operations increased compared with the same period
in 2005, due mainly to higher premium income and investment income, partially offset by higher payments to policyholders. In the six-
month period in 2006, cash was used to acquire additional invested assets of $1,722 million supporting policy liabilities.

>  Operating activities of IGM, before payment of commissions, generated $451 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, as com-
pared to $403 million in the same period in 2005. Cash commissions paid were $204 million in the six-month period in 2006, compared
with $194 million in the same period in 2005, and reflect the increase in mutual fund sales over 2005 levels.

Cash flows from financing activities, which include dividends paid on the Corporation’s common and preferred shares as well as dividends paid
by subsidiaries to non-controlling interests, resulted in a net outflow of $153 millien in the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, compared
with net outflows of $534 million in the corresponding period in 2005.

Financing activities during the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005 include, in particular:
» Dividends paid on a consolidated basis in 2006 of $562 million, compared with $480 million in 2005.

> Repayment of long-term debt of $150 million, consisting of the redemption by Power Financial of its $150 million debentures that matured
in January 2006,

> Repurchase for cancellation by subsidiaries of the Corporation of their common shares in the amount of $37 million in 2006, compared
with $39 million in the six-month period in 2005.

» Issue of preferred shares by Lifeco in the amount of $300 millien.
s Issue of debentures by a subsidiary of Lifeco in the amount of $336 million (US$300 million).

Cash flow from investing activities resulted in net outflows of $1.753 million in the six-month period in 2006, compared with net outflows of
$1.850 millien in the same period in 2005.

» Investing activities at Lifeco in 2006 resulted in a net outflow of $1,722 million compared with $1,779 million in the period in 2005.

vy Investing activities at IGM were a net outflow of $31 million in the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, compared with a net outflow of
$78 million in the corresponding period in 2005.

Cash flow from investing activities for the six-month period in 2006 compared with 2005 related primarily to increases in residential
mortgages related to IGM’s mortgage banking operations and persenal loans related to its intermediary operations for an amount of
$690 million, offset by securitizations of $633 million, compared with an increase of $244 million in the six-month period in 2005, offset
by securitizations of $131 million.

In addition, purchases of securities amounted to $50 million in the six-month period in 2006, compared with $16 million in 2005, while
sales of securities generated proceeds of $85 million in 2006, compared with $56 million in the corresponding period in 2005.

Cash flows from activities of Lifeco and IGM are described in Parts B and C of this Interim MD&A related to these subsidiaries, respectively.

CORPORATE CASH FLOWS

Power Financial is a holding company. As such, corporate cash flows from operations, before payment of dividends, are principally made up
of dividends received from its subsidiaries and affiliate and income from investments. less operating expenses. financing charges and taxes.
The ability of Lifeco and IGM, which are alsc holding companies, to meet their obligations generally and pay dividends depends in particular
upon receipt of sufficient funds from their subsidiaries. The payment of interest and dividends by Lifeco’s principal subsidiaries is subject to
restrictions set out in relevant insurance and corporate laws and regulations, which require that solvency and capital standards be maintained.
As well, the capitalization of Lifeco's principal subsidiaries takes into account the views expressed by the various credit rating agencies that
provide ratings related to financial strength and other measures to those companies. The payment of dividends by IGM's principal subsidiaries
is subject to corporate laws and regulations which require that solvency standards be maintained. In addition, certain subsidiaries of IGM
must also comply with capital or liquidity requirements established by regulatory authorities.

Dividends declared by Lifeco and IGM in the six-month period ended June 30. 2006 on their common shares amounted to $0.4475 and $0.74
per share, respectively, compared with $0.39 and $0.645 per share, respectively, in the corresponding pertod in 2005.
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Pargesa pays its dividend annually, in the second quarter. The dividend paid in 2006 amounted to SF2.15 per bearer share, compared with
SF2.00in 2005.

In the first and second quarters of 2006, Power Financial declared quarterly dividends of $0.2325 and $0.2500 per common share,
respectively. compared with $0.2025 and $0.2175. respectively. in the corresponding periods in 2005. This represents an increase of 15%
on a year-to-date basis.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common shareholders’ equity was $8.678 million at the end of June 2006, compared with $8.198 million at December 31, 2005, The increase
of $480 million is mainly due to:

> a$510 million increase in retained earnings: and

» anet $38 million negative variation in foreign currency translation adjustments, resulting primarily from the Cerporation's indirect
investments in Lifeco’s foreign operations and in Pargesa, as explained above,

No common shares were issued by the Corporation during the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 pursuant to the Employee Stock Option
Plan, or otherwise.

Book value per common share of the Corporation was $12.31 at the end of June 2006, compared with $11.63 at the end of 2005,

The Corporation had seven series of perpetual preferred shares outstanding at the end of June 2006, with a stated value of $1,200 million,
unchanged from year-end 2005.

RATINGS OF THE CORPORATION

As of the date hereof, ratings of certain of the Corporation's securities are as follows:

DOMINICON BOND STANDARD & POOR'S
RATING SERVICEM RATINGS SERVICESH!
Senior debentures AA [low] A+
Preferred shares
Cumulative Pfd-1 [low) Canadian scale P1 [low])
Global scale A-
Non-cumulative Pfd-1 [low] Canadian scale P1 [low]
Global scale A-

[1] The ratings on the Senior Dabentures, Cumulative First Preferred Shares (Series A) and Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares of the Corporation were upgraded on
April 18, 2006. The trends remain stable.
[2] The cutlook and the Corporation’s ratings are stable.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 18, 2006, Power Financial announced that it had agreed to issue 8,000,000 non-cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series L, carrying
a5.10% annual dividend, for gross proceeds of $200 million. The Series L First Preferred Shares are redeemable in whole or in part at the option
of the Corporation on or after October 31, 2011. Completion and closing of the issue is scheduled to take place on August 4, 2006. Net proceeds
of the issue will be used by the Corporation to supplement its financial resources. and for general corporate purposes,

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no material changes to the critical accounting estimates from those reported at December 31, 2005 (please refer to the
2005 MD&A).
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FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

As noted in the 2005 MD&A. the Corporation is currently evaluating the impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements of the following
new requirements:

y  CICA Handbook Section 3500, “Earnings Per Share”, which is expected to be amended in 2006 to require inclusion of the dilutive effects of
convertible securities in the calculation of diluted earnings per share;

» new standards addressing the recognition and measurement of financial instruments and the application of hedge accounting and
comprehensive income, which will be effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2007, Part B of this report contains more information on
the potential impacts of the new standards on Lifeco’s and, consequently, the Corporation’s financial statements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The following should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements.

SECURITIZATIONS > There were no changes to IGM's liquidity management practices related to securitizations during the six-month
period ended June 30, 2006. During the period, IGM entered into securitization transactions through its mortgage banking operations with
proceeds of $632.7 million, compared with $13L5 million in the corresponding period in 2005, Securitized loans serviced at June 30, 2006
totalled $1,049.3 million and the fair value of IGM's retained interest was $15.4 million. This compares with $583.2 million and §18.5 millien,
respectively, at June 30, 2005.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS > In the course of their activities, the Corporation and its subsidiaries use derivative financial
instruments, When using such derivatives. they only act as limited end users and not as market makers in such derivatives. There have been
no changes to the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries’ policies and procedures with respect to the use of derivative instruments during the
six-month period ended June 30, 2006, During the second quarter of 2006, IGM increased the outstanding notional amount of interest swaps
by $766.5 million to $1,368.9 million. However. IGM's exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the current fair value of those instruments,
which are in a gain position, remained relatively unchanged. IGM utilizes interest rate swaps in order to reduce the impact of fluctuating
interest rates on its mortgage banking operations. Other than as noted with respect to IGM, there has not been a significant change in either
the notional amount outstanding other than in the normal course of operations, or in the exposure to credit risk that represents the market
value of those instruments, which are in a gain position as at June 30, 2006, For an averview of the use of derivative financial instruments,
please refer to the 2005 MD&A and to Notes 1 and 22 to the 2005 Consolidated Financial Statements.

LETTERS OF CREDIT > Inthe normal course of its Reinsurance business, Lifeco provides letters of credit (LOC) to other parties or beneficiaries.
Through certain of its operating subsidiaries, Lifeco has provided LOC to both external and internal parties, which are described in the
paragraph "Liquidity Risk (Letters of Credit)" included in the Lifeco section of the 2005 MD&A, as well as in Note 24 to the 2005 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
There have been no material changes in the contractual obligations of the Carporation or its subsidiaries, from those reported at
December 31, 2005.

On April 24, 2006, Crown Life Insurance Company (Crown Life) served notice, pursuant to the terms of the 1999 acquisition of the majority of the
insurance operations of Crown Life by Canada Life, commencing a process under which Canada Life may be required to acquire the common
shares of Crown Life. This acquisition is not expected to have a material effect on the consolidated financial position of the Corporaticn.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS
For an overview of financial instruments at December 31, 2005, please refer to the 2005 MD&A as well as to Note 21 to the 2005 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Changes in both the carrying values and the fair values of financial instruments did not have a significant impact on the financial condition
of the Corporation or its subsidiaries for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006. In addition, there were no significant changes in the risks
related to these financial instruments and the policies and procedures designed to manage these risks during the period.
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

In this table. all per share amounts are presented on a post-subdivision basis.
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2006 2005 2004

Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Revenues 7.245 6,302 7,106 5.748 6.295 6.987 6.269 5.456 6,398 5799
Operating earnings!IIH 483 408 450 419 419 381 406 381 413 338
per share — basic 0.66 0.56 0.61 .57 0.62 0.52 0.56 0.52 0.57 046
Other itemshI (5) - (9 (24) 2 2 (6) (4) 18 (3)
pet share — basic {0.01) - {0.01) {0.03) 0.00 {0.00) {0.01) {0.00) 0.02 (0.00)
Net earnings 478 408 41 390 451 379 400 377 431 335
per share — basic 0.65 0.56 0.60 0.54 0.62 0.52 0.55 0.52 0.59 046
per share — diluted 0.65 0.55 0.60 0.53 0.62 0.52 055 .52 0.59 0.46

[i] The contribution from Pargesa to operating earnings includes Pargesa's share of the dividends paid by Total and Suez, and, starting in 2006, its share of the
dividends paid by Lafarge, as well as, for the last time in 2006, Pargesa's share of the portion of the dividend received by GBL fram Bertelsmann, which is considered
a preferred dividend [Pargesa’s share: SF37 million {estimated) in 2006, SF30 million in 2005 and SF50 million in 2004] and thus recerded as income. These dividends
contribute significantly to Pargesa’s aperating results. Dividends from Suez, Lafarge and Bertelsmann are received once a year, during the second quarter. Total,
which alsc used 1o pay its annual dividend in one instaliment during the second quarter, started in the fall of 2004 1o pay its dividend in two installments. In 2004,
Pargesa’s contribution to operating earnings of Power Financial includes, in the second quarter of 2004, its share of the full annual dividend paid by Totat related to
2003, which amounted to €4.70 per share, as well as, in the fourth quarter, the first interim dividend, related to fiscal 2004, which amounted to €2.40 per share. For
2005 and beyond, it includes in the second guarter the final portion of the dividend related to the previous fiscal year, and in the fourth quarter the interim dividend
related to the current fiscal year.

Pargesa releases its six-month results in September and any difference between actual results compared to estimates used by Power Financial when refeasing its
results for the periods ended June 30 are recorded by Power Financial in the third quarter. The impact of such differences on operating earnings was 532 million
[$0.00 per share] and $4 million [$0.01 per share] in the third quarters of 2005 and 2004, respectively. The impact on third quarter non-operating earnings was
negative 31 million [$0.00 per sharej and negative 31 millian [$0.00 per share] in 2005 and 2004, respectively,

Liteco recorded, in the third and fourth quarters of 2005, reinsurance provisions of 530 million and $13 million after tax, respectively, for expected losses arising
from hurricane damages in 2005. Power Financial's share of this specific charge was $22 million or $0.03 per share in the third quarter, and $9 mallion or $0.01 per
share in the fourth quarter of 2005. In additon, Other items also included, in 2004 and in the first three quarters of 2005, Power Financial's share of sestructuring
costs recorded by Lifeco in connection with the acquisition of Canada Life.

[2

[3

Other items alse include, in the second guarter of 2006, the Corporation’s share of tax benefits recorded by IGM (please also refer to Part C of this report
related to IGM).

[4] For a definition of this non-GAAP financial measure, please refer 1o Results of Power Financial Carporation — Non-GAAP Financial Measures,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS ;
=.
JUNE 30, DECEMBER 31, z
2006 2005 ~
[in millions of doltars] [unaudited] =
Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents 4,764 4,642 g
[nvestments 3 .
Shares 4,123 3,930 -
Bonds 60,479 59.298 3
Mortgages and other loans 15,428 15,118 =
Loans to policyholders 6,670 6,646
Real estate 1,870 1.844
88,570 86,836
Funds held by ceding insurers 11,526 2,556
Investment in affiliate, at equity 1,575 1,501
[ntangible assets 2,352 2,353
Gaoodwill 8,218 8,203
Future income taxes 378 460
Other assets 4,366 4,345
121,749 110,896
Liabilities
Policy liabilities
Actuarial liabilities 81,105 71,263
Other 4,159 3.787
Deposits and certificates 669 693
Funds held under reinsurance contracts 3.954 4.325
Debentures and other borrowings [Note 2) 3,549 3.377
Preferred shares of the Corporation [Note 4] 300 300
Preferred shares of subsidiaries 1,344 1.356
Capital trust securities and debentures [Note 3] 647 648
Future income taxes 304 830
Other liabilities ’ 8.508 8.635
105,039 95,214
Non-controlling interests 6,832 6,284
Shareholders’ Equity
Stated capital [Note 4]
Perpetual preferred shares 1,200 1,200
Common shares 593 593
Contributed surplus 46 38
Retained earnings 8,759 8.249
Foreign currency translation adjustments (720) {682)
9,878 9.398
121,479 110,896
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= CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
.
fu
(= THREE MONTHS ENDED SIX MONTHS ENDED
: JUNE 30 JUNE 30
<_f [unaudited] [in millions of dollars, except per share amounts} 2006 2005 2006 2005
g Revenues
3 Premium income 4,444 3784 8,139 8,344
- Net investment income 1,553 1,364 2,921 2,693
g Fee income 1,248 1,147 2,487 2.245
E_) 7.245 6,295 13,547 13,282
Expenses
Paid or credited to policyholders and beneficiaries including
policyholder dividends and experience refunds 4,959 4,081 8,960 8,897
Commissions 532 504 1,069 1.002
Operating expenses 767 772 1,556 1.554
Financing charges [Note 5] 85 84 166 168
6,343 5441 11,751 11,621
902 854 1,796 1,661
Share of earnings of affiliate 72 52 82 63
Other income [charges], net [Note 6] (13) (2) (13) (8)
Earnings before income taxes and non-controlling interests 961 904 1,865 1,716
Income taxes 202 226 458 446
Non-controlling interests 281 227 521 440
Net earnings 478 451 886 830
Earnings per common share [Note 7]
Basic 0.65 0.62 1.21 1.14
Diluted 0.65 0.62 1.21 1.14

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

SIX MCONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

[unaudited] [in millions of doilars] 2006 2005
Retained earnings, beginning of year §,249 7.267
Add
Net earnings 886 830
9,135 8,097
Deduct
Dividends
Perpetual preferred shares 32 26
Common shares 340 296
Other 4 -
376 322
Retained earnings, end of period 8,759 7.775
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ;
=
THREE MONTHS ENDED SIX MONTHS ENDED ;
JUNE 30 JUNE 30 -~
[unaudited] |in millions of dallars] 2006 2005 2006 2005 E
Operating activities 8
Net earnings 478 451 886 830 =
Non-cash charges [credits] g
Increase [decrease] in policy liabilities 274 579 403 1.458 >
Decrease [increase] in funds held by ceding insurers 379 102 431 230 o
Increase [decrease] in funds held under reinsurance contracts (19) (70) (97) (68) =
Amortization and depreciation 25 25 49 51
Future income taxes 2 (14) 30 137
Non-controlling interests 281 227 521 430
Other 256 411 35 354
Change in non-cash working capital 352 38 (320) (601)
2,028 1.749 1,988 2.831
Financing activities
Dividends paid
By subsidiaries to non-centrolling interests (103) (83) (201) (169}
Perpetual preferred shares (16) (13) (33) (26)
Common shares (164) (142) (328) (285)
(283) (238) (562) (480)
Issue of commeon shares by subsidiaries 6 3 24 16
Repurchase of common shares by subsidiaries (15) (22) (37) (39)
Issue of preferred shares by a subsidiary 300 - 300 -
Repurchase of preferred shares by a subsidiary (12) - (12) -
Issue of subordinated debentures 336 - 336 -
Repayment of debentures and other borrowings - - (150) -
Other (54) (59) (52) (31)
278 {316) (153) {534)
Investment activities
Bond sales and maturities 9,570 11,326 22,353 20,549
Mortgage loan repayments 473 725 911 1.567
Sales of shares 294 395 641 664
Real estate sales {74) 32 45 68
Proceeds from securitizations 547 82 633 131
Change inloans to policyholders (133) (135) (220} (172)
Change in repurchase agreements 4 278 118 390
Investment in bonds (10,782) (12,535) (23.526) (22.063)
Investment in mortgage loans (1,109) (881) (1,895) {1,985)
Investment in shares (325) (379) (688) (768)
Investment in real estate (44) (173) (116) (225)
Other (5) (4) (9) (6)
(1,584) (1.269) (1,753) (1,850)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 10 (72) 40 (98)
Increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 732 92 122 349
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 4,032 3.880 4,642 3.623
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 4,764 3.972 4,764 3.972
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POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [UNAUDITED] JUNE 30, 2006

ALL TABULAR AMOUNTS ARE (N MILLIONS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE NGTED.
NOTE t SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of Power Finaneial Corporation at June 30, 2006 have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in Canada (GAAP), These interim unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read
in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2005, These interim
unaudited consolidated financial statements do not include all disclosures required for annual financial statements.

The interim unaudited consolidated statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies described in Note 1 of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the 2005 amounts presented for comparative purposes have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the
current year.

NOTE 2 DEBENTURES AND OTHER BORROWINGS

JUNE 30, DECEMBER 31,
2006 2005

Power Financial Corporation
7.65% debentures, repaid January 5, 2006 - 150
6.90% debentures, due March 11, 2033 250 250

IGM Financial Inc.

6.75% debentures 2001 Series, due May 9, 2011 450 450
6.58% debentures 2003 Series, due March 7, 2018 150 150
6.65% debentures 1997 Series, due December 13, 2027 125 125
7.45% debentures 2001 Series, due May 9, 2031 150 150
7.00% debentures 2002 Series, due December 31, 2032 175 175
7.11% debentures 2003 Series, due March 7. 2033 150 150

Great-West Lifeco Inc.
Subordinated debentures due September 19, 2011 bearing a fixed rate of 8% until
2006 and, thereafter, at a rate equal to the Canadian 90-day Bankers’
Acceptance rate plus 1%, unsecured 253 256
Subordinated debentures due December 11, 2013 bearing a fixed rate of 5.80%
until 2008 and. thereafter, at a rate equal to the Canadian 90-day Bankers’

Acceptance rate plus 1%, unsecured 204 206
6.75% debentures due August 10, 2015, unsecured 200 200
6.14% debentures due March 21, 2018, unsecured 200 200
6.40% subordinated debentures due December 11,2028, unsecured 101 101
6.74% debentures due November 24, 2031, unsecured 200 200
6.67% debentures due March 21, 2033, unsecured 400 400
6.625% deferrable debentures due November 15, 2034, unsecured [U$$175 million] 197 205
7.153% subordinated debentures due May 16, 2046, unsecured [U$$300 million] 336 -
Other notes payable with interest rate of 8.0% 8 9

3,549 3,377

During the second quarter of 2006, Lifeco issued $336 million (US$300 million) in Fixed/Adjustable Rate Enhanced Capital Advantaged
Subordinated Debentures through its wholly owned subsidiary, Great-West Life & Annuity Capital, LP I1. The subordinated debentures are
due May 16, 2046 and bear an annual interest rate of 7.153% until May 16, 2016. After May 16, 2016, the subordinated debentures will bear an
interest rate of 2.538% plus the 3-month LIBOR rate. The subordinated debentures are redeemable at the principal amount plus any accrued
and unpaid interest after May 16, 2016. :
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NOTE 3 CAPITAL TRUST SECURITIES AND DEBENTURES

-
(]
=
m
=
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pos
-
JUNE 30, DECEMBER 31, ]
20086 2005 =
=
Capital trust debentures I
5.995% senior debentures due December 31, 2052, unsecured [GWLCT] 350 350 S
6.679% senior debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured [CLCT] 300 300 S
7.529% senior debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured [CLCT) 150 150 §
=3
800 800 S
=
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 32 34
Capital trust securities held by consclidated group as temporary investments (185) (186)
647 648

Great-West Life Capital Trust (GWLCT). a trust established by The Great-West Life Assurance Company (Great-West Life), had issued
$350 million of capital trust securities. the proceeds of which were used by GWLCT to purchase Great-West Life senior debentures in the
amount of $350 million, and Canada Life Capital Trust (CLCT). a trust established by The Canada Life Assurance Company {Canada Life),
had issued $450 million of capital trust securities, the proceeds of which were used by CLCT to purchase Canada Life senior debentures in
the amount of $450 million.

NOTE 4 CAPITAL STOGCK AND STOCK OPTION PLAN

STATED CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED
Unlimited number of first preferred shares, issuable in series, of second preferred shares, issuable in series and of common shares.

ISSUED AND QUTSTANDING

JUNE 30, 2006 DECEMBER 31, 2005
NUMBER OF STATED NUMBER OF STATED
SHARES CAPITAL SHARES CAPITAL

Preferred Shares {classified as liabilities)
Series C First Preferred Shares 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series ] First Preferred Shares 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
300 300

Perpetual Preferred Shares

Series A First Preferred Shares 4,000,000 100 4,000,000 100
Series D First Preferred Shares 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series E First Preferred Shares 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series F First Preferred Shares 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series H First Preferred Shares 6,000,000 150 6,000,000 150
Series [ First Preferred Shares 8,000,000 200 8,000,000 200
Series K First Preferred Shares 10,000,000 250 10.000.000 250
1,200 1,200
Common shares 704,813,680 593 704,813,680 593

FOWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION — SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2006

A 17




=
e
=
<
==
o
a
I
o
L)
—
=
W
=
<
=
o
o
i
=
[w]
o

NOTE 4 CAPITAL STOCK AND STOCK OPTION PLAN [CONTINUED]}

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

During the six months ended June 30. 2006, no options were granted under the Corporation’s stock option plan. During the second quarter of
2605, 2,015,000 options were granted under the Corporation’s stock option plan {no options were granted in the first quarter of 2005).

The fair value of these options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2006 2005 |
Dividend yield - 2.4%
Expected volatility - 21.0%
Risk-free interest rate - 4.3%
Expected life [vears] - 9
- $8.10

Fair value per option granted [$/option)

In addition. stock options were also granted by subsidiaries during the six months ended June 30, 2006. Compensation expense relating to
stock options granted by the Corporation and its subsidiaries amounted to $7 million in the second quarter of 2006 {$5 million in 2005) and
$12 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 ($9 million in 2005).

Options were outstanding at June 30, 2006 to purchase, until May 11, 2015. up to an aggregate of 8,425,000 common shares, at various
prices from $6.65938 to $32.235 per share. During the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, no common shares were issued under the
Corporation’s plan.

NOTE 5 FINANCING CHARGES

Financing charges include interest on debentures and other borrowings, together with distributions and interest on capital trust securities
and debentures, and dividends on preferred shares classified as liabilities.

THREE MONTHS ENDED SIX MONTHS ENDED

JUNE 30 JUNE 30

2006 2005 2006 2005

Interest on debentures and other borrowings 57 57 110 113
Preferred share dividends 18 17 37 36
Interest on capital trust debentures 12 12 24 24

Distributions on capital trust securities held by consolidated

group as temporary investments (2) (2) (5) (5)
85 84 166 168

NOTE 6 OTHER INCOME [CHARGES], NET

THREE MONTHS ENDED S1X MONTHS ENDED

JUNE 30 JUNE 30

2006 2005 2006 2005

Share of Pargesa’s non-operating earnings (13) 9 (13) 10
Restructuring costs — Lifeco - (11) - (18)
(13) {2) (13) {8)
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NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per common share
computations:
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THREE MCONTHS ENDED SIX MONTHS ENDED

JUNE 30 JUNE 30

2006 2005 2006 2005

Net earnings 478 451 886 830

Dividends on perpetual preferred shares (16) {13) (32) (26)

Net earnings available te common shareholders 462 438 854 804
Weighted number of common shares outstanding [millions]

—Basic 704.8 704.8 704.8 704.8
Exercise of stock options 6.4 8.4 6.4 8.4
Shares assumed to be repurchased with proceeds from

exercise of stock options {3.4) (5.4) (3.4) (5.5}
Weighted number of common shares outstanding [millions]

—Diluted 707.8 707.8 707.8 707.7

NOTE 8 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The total benefit costs included in operating expenses are as follows:

| THREE MONTHS ENDED SIX MONTHS ENDED
JUNE 30 JUNE 30

2006 2005 20086 2005

Pension plans 17 17 43 36
Other post-retirement benefits 6 13 14 24
23 30 57 60

NOTE 9 SECURITIZATIONS

During the secend quarter of 2006, IGM Financial Inc. (IGM) securitized $550 million (2005 — $83 million) of residential mortgages
through sales to commercial paper conduits that in turn issued securities to investors and received net cash proceeds of $5647 million
(2005 — $82 million). IGM’s retained interest in the securitized loans was valued at $6 million {2005 — $3 million). A pre-tax loss on sale
of $3 million (2005 — gain of $1 million) was recognized and reported in Net investment income in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

During the six months ended June 30, 2006, IGM securitized $636 million (2005 — $132 million) of residential mortgages through sales to
commercial paper conduits that in turn issued securities to investors and received net cash proceeds of $633 million (2005 — $131 million).
IGM's retained interest in the securitized loans was valued at $8 million (2005 — $4 million). A pre-tax loss on sale of $2 million (2005 — gain
of $2 million) was recognized and reported in Net investment income in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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NOTE 10 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE
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THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 LIFECO IGM PARJQINTCO OTHER TOTAL

Revenues
Premium income 4,44 4,444
Net investment income 1,516 50 (13) 1,553
Fee income 667 587 (6) 1,248
6,627 637 - (19) 7.245

Expenses
Insurance claims 4,959 4,959
Commissions 332 206 (6) 532
Operating expenses 612 142 13 767
Financing charges 51 22 12 85
5,954 370 - 19 6,343
673 267 - (38) 902
Share of earnings of affiliate - - 72 - 72

Other income [charges). net - - (13) ~ (13)

Earnings before the following 673 267 59 (38) 961
Income taxes 136 66 - - 202
Non-controlling interests 212 89 - (20) 281
Contribution to consolidated net earnings 325 112 59 (18) 478

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 LIFECO IGM PARJOINTCO OTHER TOTAL

Revenues
Premium income 3.784 3.784
Net investment income 1327 a7 (10) 1.364
Fee income 620 532 (5) 1.147
5,731 579 - (15) 6.295

Expenses
insurance claims 4,081 4,081
Commissions 331 177 (4) 504
Operating expenses 621 136 15 772
Financing charges 49 23 12 84
5.082 336 - 23 5441
649 243 - (38) 854
Share of earnings of affiliate - - 52 - 52

Other income [charges]. net (11) - 9 - {2}

Earnings before the following 638 243 6l (38) 904
Income taxes 152 74 - - 226
Non-controlling interests 170 74 - (17} 227
Contribution to consolidated net exrnings 3le 95 61 (21) 451
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NOTE 1¢

INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE

SEGMENTED INFORMATION [CONTINUED]

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 LIFECO 1GM PARJOINTCC OTHER TQTAL
Revenues
Premium income 8,139 8,139
Net investment income 2,839 107 (25) 2,921
Fee income 1,324 1,176 (13) 2,487
12,302 1,283 - (38) 13,547
Expenses
Insurance claims 8,960 8,960
Commissions 674 408 (13) 1,069
Qperating expenses 1,238 291 27 1,556
Financing charges 98 44 24 166
10,970 743 - 38 11751
1,332 540 - (76} 1,796
Share of earnings of affiliate - - 82 - 82
Other income [charges], net - - (13) - (13)
Earnings before the following 1,332 540 69 {76) 1,865
Income {axes 305 153 - - 458
Non-controlling interests 389 172 - {40) 521
Contribution to consolidated net earnings 638 215 69 (36) 886
INFORMATION ON PROFIT MEASURE
SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 LIFECO 1GM PARIGINTCO OTHER TOTAL
Revenues
Premium income 8,344 8,344
Net investment income 2,619 97 23 2,693
Fee ihcome 1,202 1,055 (12) 2245
12,165 1,152 - (35) 13,282
Expenses
Insurance claims 8.897 8,897
Commissions 660 353 (11) 1.002
Operating expenses 1,251 279 24 1,554
Financing charges 97 45 26 168
10,905 677 - 39 11,621
1,260 475 - (74) 1,661
Share of earnings of affiliate - - 63 - 63
Other income [charges]. net {18) - 10 - (8)
Earnings before the following 1.242 475 73 (74) L.716
Income taxes 301 145 - - 446
Non-controlling interests 330 145 - (35) 440
Contribution to consclidated net earnings 611 185 73 (39} 830
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NOTE 11 ACQUISITIONS

During the secend quarter of 2006, Canada Life, through its wholly owned United Kingdom subsidiary. Canada Life Limited, reached
an agreement to acquire the non-participating payout annuity business of The Equitable Life Assurance Society in the United Kingdom.
Under the terms of the agreement, Canada Life Limited assumed this business on an indemnity reinsurance basis with an effective date of
January 1. 2006. Arrangements are being made 1o transfer the policies to Lifeco and the transfer is expected to be completed in the first quarier
of 2007, subject to regulatory and court approval. The transaction resulted in an increase in funds held by ceding insurers and a corresponding
increase in policyholder liabilities of $9.4 billion {£4.6 billion) on the consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2006.

During the second quarter of 2006, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company entered inte an agreement to acquire several parts of the
full service-bundled, small and midsize 401(k), as well as some defined benefit plan business, of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company and
its affiliztes. The acquisition also includes the associated dedicated distribution group, including wholesalers, relationship managers and
sales associates. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2006, subject to regulatory approval in the United States, and
is expected to increase assets and policyholder liabilities by approximately $1.6 billion (US$1.4 billion) on the consolidated balance sheet,
In addition, Lifeco will receive fee income by providing administrative services and record-keeping functions on approximately $6.8 billion
(US $6.1 billion) of participant account values.

On April 24, 2006, Crown Life Insurance Company (Crown Life) served notice, pursuant to the terms of the 1999 acquisition of the majority
of the insurance operations of Crown Life by Canada Life, commencing a process under which Canada Life may be required to acquire
the common shares of Crown Life. This transaction is not expected to have a material impact on the financial position of the Corporation.

NOTE 12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On May 25, 2006, Groupe Bruxelles Lambert (GBL), Pargesa’s affiliated Belgian holding company, and Bertelsmann AG announced that they
had reached an agreement in principle, pursuant to which GBL would sell back to Bertelsmann AG its 25.1% equity interest in that company
for cash consideration of €4.5 billion. This transaction was completed on July 4, 2006. The Corporation’s share of the gain recorded as a result
of this transaction will amount to approximately $350 million, which will be recorded by the Corporation in the third quarter of 2006.

On July 18, 2006, the Corporation announced that it had agreed to issue 8,000,000 Non-cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series L, for
gross proceeds of $200 million. The Preferred Shares, priced at $25 per share, carry an annual dividend yield of 5.10%. Closing is expected
on August 4, 2006.
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GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.
PART B

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Page B2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES

Page B42

JUNE 30, 2006

Please note that the bottom of each page in Part B contains two different page numbers. A page number
with the prefix “B“ refers to the number of such page in this document and the page number without
any prefix refers to the number of such page in the original document issued by Great-West Lifeco Inc.

The attached documents concerning Great-West Lifeco Ing. are documents prepared and publicly disclosed
by such subsidiary. Certain statements in the attached documents, other than statements of historical
fact, are forward-looking statements based on certain assumptions and the current expectations of the
subsidiary as set forth therein. The reader is cautioned to consider these statements carefully and not to put
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. For further information provided by the subsidiary as to the
material factors that coutd cause actual results to differ materially from a conclusion, forecast or projection
in the forward-looking information and the material factors and assumptions that were applied in drawing
a conclusion or making a forecast or projection set out in the forward-looking information, please see the
attached documents, including the section entitled Forward-Looking information.
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GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOx

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interim Report
For the six months ended June 30, 2006

Dated: August 2, 2006

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) presents management's view of the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco or the Company) for the three months and six months
ended June 30, 2006 compared with the same periods in 2005. The MD&A provides an overali discussion, followed
by analyses of the performance of its three major reportable segments: Canada, United States and Europe.

FORWARD-LOOKING [NFORMATION

This report may contain forward-looking statements about the Company, including its business operations, strategy
and expected financial performance and condition. Forward-looking statements include statements that are
predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or include words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates” or negative versions thereof and similar expressions. In
addition, any statement that may be made concerning future financiat performance (including revenues, eamings or
growth rates), ongoing business sirategies or prospects, and possible future Company action, is also a forward-
locking statement. Forward-looking statements are based on current expectations and projections about future
events and are inherently subject to, among other things, risks, uncertainties and assumptions about the Company,
economic factors and the insurance industry generally. They are not guarantees of future performance, and actual
events and results could differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements made by
the Company due to, but not limited to, important factors such as sales levels, premium income, fee income,
expense levels, mortality experience, morbidity experience, policy lapse rates and taxes, as well as general
economic, political and market factors in North America and internationally, interest and foreign exchange rates,
global equity and capital markets, business competition, technological change, changes in government regulations,
unexpected judicial or regulatory proceedings, catastrophic events, and the Company's ability to complete strategic
transactions and integrate acquisitions. The reader is cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors is not
exhaustive. The reader is also cautioned to consider these and other factors carefully and to not place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements. Other than as specifically required by applicable law, the Company has no
intention to update any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This report may also contain non-GAAP financial measures. Terms by which non-GAAP financial measures are
identified include but are not limited to "constant currency basis", “"currency translation impact”, “adjusted net
income”, “sarnings before restructuring costs”, “net income before restructuring costs” and other similar
expressions. Non-GAAP financial measures are used to provide management and investors with additional
measures of perfformance. However, non-GAAP financial measures do not have standard meanings prescribed by
GAAP and are not directly comparabte to similar measures used by other companies. Please refer to the

appropriate reconciliations of these non-GAAP financial measures to measures prescribed by GAAP.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOx

SEGREGATED FUNDS DEPOSITS AND SELF-FUNDED PREMIUM EQUIVALENTS (ASO CONTRACTS)

The financial statements of a life tnsurance company do not include the assets, liabilities, deposits and withdrawals
of segregated funds or the claims payments related to administrative services only {ASO) group health contracts.
However, the Company does eam fee and other income related to these contracts. Both segregated funds and
ASO contracts are an important aspect of the overall business of the Company and should be considered when
comparing volumes, size and trends.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Lifeco, which are the basis for data presented in this report, have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and presented in
Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY

Through its operating subsidiaries, Lifeco conducts business in multiple currencies. The four primary currencies are
the Canadian dollar, the United States dollar, the British pound, and the euro. Throughout this decument, foreign
currency assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the market rate at the end of the financial
period. All income and expense items are translated at an average rate for the period. The rates employed are:

Pericd ended Balance sheet Operations
Assets & liabilities Income & expenses Net effective rate
United States dollar
June 30, 2006 $1.12 $1.14 $1.1400
March 31, 2006 $1.17 $1.15 $1.1500
December 31, 2005 $1.17 $1.21 $1.3152
June 30, 2005 $1.23 $1.24 $1.3305
March 31, 2005 $1.21 $1.23 $1.3178
British pound
June 30, 2006 $2.06 $2.04 $2.0400
March 31, 2006 $2.03 $2.02 $2.0200
December 31, 2005 $2.00 $2.21 $2.3272
June 30, 2005 $2.20 $2.31 $2.3072
March 31, 2005 $2.28 $2.32 $2.3013
Eurg
June 30, 2006 $1.42 $1.40 $1.4000
March 31, 2006 $1.42 $1.39 $1.3900
December 31, 2005 $1.38 $1.51 $1.6159
June 30, 2005 $1.48 $1.59 $1.6104
March 31, 2005 $1.57 $1.61 $1.6053

The net effective rate for the translation of foreign currency operations reflects the translation of foreign currency
income and expenses at the average daily rate for the period together with realized gains and losses associated with
forward foreign exchange contracts used to manage the translation volatility. During the first six months of 2005,
gains net of tax of $20 million were recognized on these contracts. There are no contracts in place for 2006.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOwe

BUSINESSES OF LIFECO

Lifeco has operations in Canada, the United States and Europe through The Great-West Life Assurance Company
(Great-West Life), London Life Insurance Company (London Life), The Canada Life Assurance Company (Canada
Life), and Great-West Life & Annuily Insurance Company (GWL&A).

In Canada, Great-West Life and its operating subsidiaries, London Life and Canada Life (owned through holding
companies London Insurance Group (LIG) and Canada Life Financial Corporation (CLFC), respectively), offer a
broad portfolio of financial and benefit ptan solutions for individuals, families, businesses and organizations, through
a network of Freedom 55 Financial™ and Great-West Life financial security advisors, and through a multi-channel
network of brokers, advisors and financial institutions.

In the U.S., GWL&A is a leader in providing self-funded employee health plans for businesses and in meeting the
retirement income needs of employees in the public/non-profit and corporate sectors. It serves its customers
nationwide through a range of health care and financial products and services marketed through brokers,
consultants and group representatives, and through partnerships with other financial institutions.

In Europe, Canada Life is broadly organized along geographicaily defined market segments and offers protection

and wealth management products and reinsurance. The Europe segment is comprised of two distinct primary
, business units: Insurance & Annuities, which consists of operations in the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, Republic of
t Ireland and Germany; and Reinsurance, which operates primarily in the United States, Barbados and Ireland.
Reinsurance products are provided through Canada Life, London Reinsurance Group Inc. (LRG) and their
subsidiaries.

Lifeco currently has no other holdings and carries on no business or activities unrelated to its holdings in Great-
West Life, GWL&A and their subsidiaries. Lifeco is not restricted to investing in the shares of Great-West Life,
GWL&A and their subsidiaries and may make other investments in the future.

GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.
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GREAT-WEST

LIFECOm

Management's Discussion and Analysis

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS

Selected Consolidated Financial Infermation
{in $ millions, except per share amounis)

For the three months

For the six months

ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Premiums:
Life insurance, guaranteed annuities
and insured health products $ 4,444 % 3,784 17% $ 8139 § 8,344 -2%
Seli-funded premium equivalents
{ASO contracts) 1,886 1,945 -3% 3,805 3,835 -1%
Segregated funds deposits:
Individual products 2,148 1,411 52% 4,169 2,983 40%
Group products 1,168 1,322 -12% 2,721 2,550 7%
Total premiums and deposits 9,646 8,462 14% 18,834 17,712 8%
Fee and other income 667 620 8% 1,324 1,202 10%
Paid or credited to policyholders 4,959 4,081 22% 8,960 8,897 1%
Net income - common shareholders
before adjustments (1} 461 455 1% 907 878 3%
Adjustments after tax (1) . 9 . . 13 -
Net income - common shareholders 461 446 3% 907 865 5%
Per common share
Basic eamings before adjustments (1} $ 0516 $ 0.511 1% $ 1.017 3 0.986 3%
Adjustments after tax (1) - 0.011 - 0.015
Basic eamings afier adjustments 0.516 0.500 3% 1.017 0.971 5%
Dividends paid 0.22375 0.195 15% 0.44750 0.390 15%
Book valtue 1017 9.64 5%
Return on common shareholders’ equity (12 months)
Net income before adjustments (1) 21.9% 20.6%
Net income 21.7% 20.3%
At June 30
Total assets $ 112945 3§ 98,254 15%
Segregated funds assets 78,349 71,878 9%
Total assets under administration 191,294 $ 170,132 12%
Share capital and surplus $ 10,162 § 9,085 12%

(1) Following the acquisition of Canada Life Financial Corporation (CLFC) by the Company, a plan was developed to restructure and exit
selected operations of CLFC. Shareholder net income for the three months ended June 30, 2005 includes restructuring costs related to the
acquisition of $9 after tax, or $0.011 per common share; $13 after tax, or $0.015 per common share for the six months ended June 30 2005.
Net income, basic eamings per common share and return on common shareholders' equity are presented before restructuring costs as a

non-GAAP financial measure of eamings performance.

Lifeco's net income attributable to common shareholders for the six months ended June 30, 2006, was $907 million
compared to $865 million reported a year ago. On a per share basis, this result represents $1.017 per common
share ($1.010 diluted) for the six months ended June 30, 2006, an increase of 5% (13% on a constant currency

basis) compared to $0.971 ($0.962 diluted) per common share for 2005.
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_GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

GREAT-WEST

LIFECOx

Management's Discussion and Analysis

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Quarterly financial information

Total Net income - Adjusted net income -
revenue (1) common shareholders common shareholders (2)
Basic Diluted Basic Dituted

Total per share per share Total per share per share

2006 Second quarter $ 6,627 $ 461 $ 0516 $ 0513 $ 461 $ 0516 $ 0513
First quarter 5,675 446 0.501 0.497 446 0.501 0.497

2005 Fourth quarter $6,518 $ 456 $ 0512 $ 0509 $ 469 $ 0528 $ 0523
Third quarter 5,188 421 0472 0.468 455 0.510 0.506
Second quarter 5731 4486 0.500 0.496 455 0.511 0.506

First quarter 6,434 419 0.471 0.456 423 0.475 0.471

2004  Fourth quarter $5,740 $ 409 $ 0459 $ 0455 $ 423 5 0475 $ 04M
Third quarter 4,946 414 0.466 0.462 M7 0.468 0.464

(1) Total revenue for 2004 has been restated to reflect the reclassification of financing charges from net investment
income. Financing charges include interest on long-term debentures and other barrowings, previously included in
net investment income together with distributions on capital trust securities and preferred shares now classified

as liabilities.

(2) Adjusted net income is presented as a non-GAAP financial measure of earmings performance before restructuring
costs related to the acquisition of CLFC and incurred during the period, and provisions for expected losses arising

from hurricane damage in 2005. Refer lo "Non-GAAP Financial Measures® section of this report.

Adjustments: After-tax restructuring cosis related to the acquisition of CLFC and reinsurance claim provisions
arising {rom hurricane activity along the Guif Coast of the United States in 2005.

Net income
caommon shareholders
Basic Diluted

Total per share per share

2005  Fourth quarter $ 13 $ 0.014 $ 0014
Third quarter 34 0.038 0.038
Second quarter 9 0.011 0.010

First quarter 4 0.004 0.005

2004  Fourth quarter $ 14 $ 0.018 $ 0.016
Third quarter 3 0.002 0.002

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

Lifeco’s net income attributable to common shareholders was $461 million for the three months ended June 30,
2006 compared to net income of $446 million reported a year ago. On a per share basis, this result represents
$0.516 per common share ($0.513 diluted) for the three months ended June 30, 2006, an increase of 3% (11% on

a constant currency basis) compared to $0.500 per common share ($0.496 diluted) for 2005.

Canada - For the second quarter, net income attributable to common shareholders was $245 million, an increase
of $33 million or 16% over 2005. Group Insurance net income was up $13 million, or 17%, and Individual
Insurance & Investment Products net income was up $6 million, or 4%. Corporate net income was $14 million

higher in 2006.

United States - For the second quarter, net income attributable to common shareholders was $127 million, a
decrease of $23 million or 15% from 2005. The decrease in net income includes the negative impact of currency
translation. In US dollars, net income increased by 3% over 2005, as Healthcare decreased 33% and Financial

Services increased 22% in US dollars.
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Europe — For the second quarter, net income attributable to common shareholders was $96 million, a decrease of
$5 million or 5% from 2005. Insurance & Annuities increased by $10 million or 13%, while Reinsurance remained
in line with last year at $21 million. Corporate net income decreased $15 million year-over-year. The increase in
Insurance & Annuities and Reinsurance net income in local currencies was partially mitigated by the negative
impact of currency translation.

Lifeco Corporate — For the second quarter, Lifeco Corparate net income attributable to common shareholders was
a charge of $7 million compared to a charge of $17 million in 2005.

Net income - common shareholders

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Canada $ 245 % 212 16% $ 449 3 388 13%
United States 127 150 -15% 261 294 -11%
Europe 96 101 5% 207 202 2%
Lifeco Corporate
Total holding company {N (8) {10} (16)
Restructuring costs - 9 - (13)
Total Lifeco Corporate 7 {17} (10) (29}
Total Lifeco $ 461 § 446 3% $ 907 3§ 865 5%

Total revenue for the second quarter of 2006 was $6,627 million and was comprised of premium income of $4,444
million, net investment income of $1,516 million and fee and other income of $667 million. Total revenue for the
second quarter of 2005 was $5,731 million. It was comprised of premium income of $3,784 million, net investment
income of $1,327 million and fee and other income of $620 million.

PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS

Premiums and deposits includes premiums on risk-based insurance and annuity products as well as premium
equivalents on self-funded group insurance administrative services only contracts, and deposits on individual and
group segregated fund products.

Total premiums and deposits were $8,646 million, an increase of 14% over 2005, Premiums and deposits in
Canada increased $161 million, while United States decreased $91 million, and Europe increased $1,114 million.
The increase in Canada is due to higher individual life insurance premiums and segregated funds deposits. The
decrease in the United States reflects higher premiums and deposits in the Financial Services business which was
more than offset by the negative impact of currency translation. The increase in Europe reflects higher premiums
and deposits in the individual segregated fund market partially offset by the negative impact of currency translation.

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, total premiums and deposits at $18,834 million, were 6% higher than
2005. Premiums and deposits in Canada increased $674 miliion, while United States decreased $531 million, and
Europe increased $979 million. The increase in Canada is due to higher group insurance results, individual life
insurance premiums and higher individual and group segregated funds deposits. The decrease in the United
States reflects the negative impact of currency translation and higher premiums and deposits in the Financial
Services business. The increase in Europe reflects the effect of both higher premiums and deposits in the
Reinsurance business and in the individual segregated fund market, partially offset by the negative impact of
currency translation.
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NET INVESTMENT INCOME

Net investment income

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Investment income earned $ 1,391 % 1,169 19% $ 2565 § 2,347 9%
Amortization of gains and losses 138 141 -2% 301 265 14%
Provision for credit losses 5 31 -B4% 7 34 -79%
Gross investment income 1,534 1,341 14% 2,873 2,646 9%
Less: investment expenses 18 14 29% 34 27 26%
Net investment income $ 1,516 % 1,327 14% $ 2,839 3 2,619 8%

Net investment income for the three months ended June 30, 2006 increased by $189 million or 14% compared to
the same period last year primarily as a result of an increase in assets in the European operations due to the
acquisition of two blocks of payout annuities (Phoenix and London in 2005, and The Equitable Life Assurance
Society ("Equitable Life") in the United Kingdom in 20086,

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, net investment income was $2,839 million, an increase of $220 million or
8% compared to the same period last year. The increase in net investment income is attributable to the same
reasons as for the three month period as described above.

FEE AND OTHER INCOME

In addition to providing traditional risk-based insurance products, the Company also provides certain products on a
fee-for-service basis. The most significant of these products is segregated funds, for which the Company earns
investment management fees, and group insurance ASO contracts, under which the Company earns administration
fees.

Fee income
For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Segregated funds $ 277 % 260 7% 565 § 519 9%
ASO contracts 229 236 -3% 461 469 2%
Other 161 124 30% 298 214 39%
[ 667 3 620 8% $ 1,324 § 1,202 10%

In the second quarter, consolidated fee income was $667 million compared to $620 million for the second quarter of
2005. Canada increased $34 million due to strong segregated funds and mutual funds asset growth. Europe
increased $19 million year over year, due to strong segregated funds performance. In the United States, fee
income decreased by $6 million due to the negative impact of currency translation. Fee income in US dollars was
up $20 million mainly due to an increase in FASCore participants and increased ASO business.

For the six months ended June 30, 2006 fee income was $1,324 million compared to $1,202 million for the same
period in 2005. The increase is due to the same reasons as the three month period.

The amount of segregated funds investment management fees earned by the Company is influenced by the market
value of the underlying fund assets. As market conditions and expectations dictate, the Company may from time to
time utilize derivative contracts to hedge against declines in equity market levels. In 2006, the Company has
entered into certain derivative contracts that will provide a partial hedge against a decline in the S&P TSX60
composite index.
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PAID OR CREDITED TO POLICYHOLDERS

This amount includes increases in policy liabilities, claims, surrenders, annuity and matunty payments, dividend and
experience refund payments for risk-based products, but does not include benefit payment amounts for fee-based
products {ASO contracts and segregated funds).

In the second quarter, consolidated amounts paid or credited to policyholders were $4,959 million, up $878 million
over the second quarter of 2005. The $878 million increase was attributable to the United States and Europe which
were up $111 million and $816 million, respectively. This was partly offset by Canada, which was down $49 million
from the second quarter of 2005. The large increase in Europe is due to the growth of payout annuities in the UK
from the Phoenix and London acquisition and to a large payout annuity reinsurance contract written in 2006.

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, consolidated amounts paid or credited to policyholders were $8,960
million, up $63 million over the same period in 2005. The $63 million increase was attributable to Europe which was
up $510 million. This was offset by Canada which was down $40 million and the United States which was down
$407 million from the same period in 2005 due to the strengthening Canadian dollar and lower Financial Services
premium.

OTHER BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Included in other benefits and expenses are operating expenses, commissions, interest expense on long-term debt
and other borrowings, and dividends on preferred shares, as well as premium taxes.

Other benefits and expenses

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30

2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Total expenses $ 558 5 567 -1% $ 1,137 % 1,144 -1%
Less: invesiment expenses 18 14 29% 34 27 26%
Operaling expenses 541 553 -2% 1,103 1,117 -1%
Commissions 332 s - 674 660 2%
Financing charges 51 49 4% 98 97 1%
Premium taxes 66 64 3% 126 125 1%
Total $ 990 § 997 -1% $ 2001 § 1,999 -

Operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2006 decreased $12 million or 2% compared to the same
pericd in 2005. Expenses in local currencies were up slightly but were offset by the strengthened Canadian dollar.
The increase in expenses was modest in relation to sales which increased $271 million or 17% in Canada, $103
million or 20% in the US and $1,048 million or 57% in Europe in the same period.

Operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2006 decreased $14 million or 1% compared to the same
period in 2005, Expenses in local currencies were up slightly but were offset by the strengthened Canadian dollar.
The increase in expenses was modest in relation to sales which increased $879 miilion or 26% in Canada, $178
million or 14% in the US and $896 million or 23% in Europe in the same period.

Financing charges consists of interest on debentures and other borrowings, as well as distributions on preferred
shares classified as liabilities
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INCOME TAXES

Income taxes for the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2006 were $136 million and $305 million,
respectively, compared to $152 million and $301 million for the same periods in 2005. Net income before income
taxes increased $35 million for the three months ended June 30, 2006 and $90 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2006, over the same period in 2005. In the quarter, the Company recognized the benefit of reduced
Canadian income tax rates, as previously announced by the Federal and Provincial governments. The benefit
recognized was approximately $20 million, $17 million of which is related to the non-recurring impact of lower rates
on future income taxes.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Consolidated total assets under administration
June 30, 2006

United
Canada States Europe Total
Assets
Invested assets 43,022 $ 25,509 $ 22,763 $ 91,294
Goodwill and intangible assels 4,983 52 1,741 6,776
Other assets 1,421 1,104 12,350 14,875
Tota! assets 49,426 26,665 36,854 112,945
Segregated funds assets 40,343 16,433 21,573 78,349
Total assets under administration $ 89,769 $ 43,098 $ 58,427 $ 191,294
December 31, 2005
United
Canada States Europe Total
Assets
Invested assets 3 42,587 $ 26,153 3 20,640 $ 89,380
Goodwill and intangible assets 4,989 54 1,737 6,780
Other assets 1,613 1,127 3,261 6,001
Total assets 49,189 27,334 25,638 102,161
Segregated funds assets 38,854 17,008 (1) 19,296 75,158
Total assets under administration $ 88,043 $ 44,342 $ 44,934 $ 177,319

(1} The Company's segregated funds offer mutual funds or other investment options that purchase guaranteed annuity contracts issued by the
Company. As of June 30, 2006, such investments had been made in the guaranteed interest annuity contracts in the amount of $40 million
compared to $414 million for the same period in 2005. As the general account investments are also included in the segregated funds
account balances, the Company has reduced the segregated fund account balances by $377 million as of June 30, 2006 compared to $383
million for the same period in 2005 to avoid overstatement of customer account values under management,

The increase in invested assets in 2006 is mainly attributable to Europe. The $2.1 billion increase in Europe is due
to a large payout annuity reinsurance contract in the Company’s Reinsurance business line in 20086, organic growth
in the U.K., a capital injection to support recent acquisitions in the U.K., and the impact of favourable currency
translation.

Goodwill and intangible assets have not changed materially from December 31, 2005. Refer to the Company's
2005 MD&A.
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Other assets have increased by approximately $8.9 billion due to an increase in funds held by ceding insurers of
approximately $9.4 billion as a result of the agreement to acquire the non-participating payout annuity business of
Equitable Life.

Asset quality — general fund assets

The Company's allowance for credit losses decreased by $10 million to $109 million at June 30, 2006. The
combination of the allowance for credit losses of $109 million, together with the $1,306 million provision for future
credit losses in actuarial liabilities represents 1.8% of bond, mortgage and real estate assets at June 30, 2006
(1.7% at December 31, 2005).

Non-performing loans

June 30, 2006 December 31, 2005
Foreclosed Foreclosed
Asset class Bonds Mortgages  real estate Total Bonds  Morlgages real estate Total
Non-perferming T
loans $ 123§ 15 § 1 % 149 $ 137 % 17 % 1 3 165
Allowances for credit losses
June 30, 2006 December 31, 2005
Specific Non-specific Specific  Non-specific
provisions  provisions Total provisions provisions Total
Bonds and mortgage loans $ 48 S 61 § 109 $ 51 § 68 % 118

Fair value

The fair value of invested assets exceeded their carrying value by $1.0 bilion as at June 30, 2006 compared to
$4.2 billion at December 31, 2005. The decrease in fair value is due primarily to rising interest rates. Changes in
the fair value of assets supporting the actuarial and other liabilities of the Company's operating funds generally will
not result in a corresponding change in net income due to corresponding changes in the fair value of actuarial and
other liabilities that are matched with those assets. However, the excess of fair value over carrying value, as well
as the deferred net realized gains, on assets supporting sharsholders' equity and debentures will in time be
amortized to net income,

LIABILITIES

Liabilities have increased from $89.1 billion at December 31, 2005 to $99.2 billion at June 30, 2006. The increase
is attributable to an increase in actuarial liabilities and debentures and other debt instruments. All other liabilities
have not changed materially since December 31, 2005. Refer to the Company's 2005 MD&A.

Actuarial liabilities increased by approximately $9.8 billion mostly due to the agreement to acguire the non-
participating payout annuity business of Equitable Life, which increased actuarial liabilities by approximately $9.4
hillion in the quarter.

Debentures and other debt instruments increased from $1.9 billion to $2.2 billion mainly as a result of the issuance
of $336 million (US$ 300 million) of Fixed/Adjustable Rate Enhanced Capital Advantaged Subordinated Debentures
through its wholly owned subsidiary, Great-West Life & Annuity Capital, LP Il. The subordinated debentures are
due May 16, 2046 and bear an annual interest rate of 7.153% until May 16, 2016. After May 16, 2016, the
subordinated debentures will bear an interest rate of 2.538% plus the 3-month LIBOR rate. The subordinated
debenlures are redeemable by the Company at the principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest after
May 16, 2016.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SURPLUS
Share capital outstanding at June 30, 2006 was $5,770 miillion, which was comprised of $1,099 million perpetual
preferred shares and $4,671 million common shares.

The Company’s share capital consists of common shares and preferred shares issued by the Company. At June
30, 2006, the Company had 891,270,626 common shares outstanding with a stated value of $4,671 million
compared to 890,689,076 common shares with a stated value of $4,660 million at December 31, 2005. During the
six months ended June 30, 2006, 1,023,300 common shares were purchased for cancellation pursuant to the
Company's Normal Course Issuer Bid at a total cost of $30 million or $29.17 per share, and 1,604,850 shares were
issued under the Company's Stock Option Plan for a total value of $16 million or $9.71 per share and $1 million
transferred from contributed surplus to capital stock as options are exercised for a total of $17 million.

At June 30, 2006, the Company had four series of perpetual preferred shares outstanding with an aggregate stated
value of $1,099 million.

The terms and conditions of the $199 million, 5.90% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series F, the $300
milfion, 5.20% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series G, the $300 million, 4.85% Non-Cumulative First
Preferred Shares, Series H and the $300 million, 4.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series | do not
allow the holder to convert to common shares of the Company or otherwise cause the Company to redeem the
shares. Preferred shares of this type are commonly referred to as perpetual and represent a form of financing that
does not have a fixed term. The Company, at its option, may redeem the Series F shares on or after September 30,
2008, the Series G shares on or after December 31, 2009, the Series H shares on or after September 30, 2010,
and the Series | shares on or after June 30, 2011. The Company regards the Series F shares, the Series G shares,
the Series H shares and the Series | shares as comprising part of its core or permanent capital. As such, the
Company only intends to redeem the Series F shares, the Series G shares, the Series H shares, or the Series |
shares with proceeds raised from new capital instruments issued during the life of the Series F shares, the Series G
shares, the Series H shares, or the Series | shares, where the new capital instruments represent equal or greater
equity benefit.

2006 activity
During the six months ended June 30, 2006, the Company paid dividends of $0.44750 per common share for a
total of $399 million and perpetual preferred share dividends of $24 million.

On April 12, 2006, the Company issued 12,000,000 4.50% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares, Series | (the
"Series | Preferred Shares") with an aggregate stated value of $300 milion. The Series | Preferred Shares are
redeemable at the option of the Company on or after June 30, 2011.

In total, share capital and surplus increased by $673 million, to $10,162 million at June 30, 2006 from December
31, 2005. The slight weakening of the Canadian dollar against the British pound of $0.06 and euro of $0.04, and
the strengthening of $0.05 against the United States dollar in the second quarter of 2006 resulted in decreases to
the currency translation account of $120 million from December 31, 2005.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY
Liquidity

The Company’s liquidity position has not changed matenially from December 31, 2005. Refer to the Company's
2005 MD&A,
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Cash flows
Cash flows
For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005
Cash flows relating to the following activities:
Operations $ 1,799 $ 1,564 $ 1,747 $ 2,630
Financing 385 (214) 160 {399)
Investment (1,682} {1,256} {1,722) (1,779}
Increase (decrease) in cash & certificates of deposit 502 94 185 452
Effects of changes in exchange rates on
cash and certificates of deposil 10 (72) 40 (98)
Cash & certificates of deposit, beginning of period 2,674 2,804 2,961 2,472
Cash & certificates of deposit, end of period $ 3,186 5 2,826 $ 3,186 § 2,826

The principal source of funds for the Company is cash provided by operating activities, including premium income,
net investment income and fee income. These funds are used primarily to pay policy benefits, policyholder
dividends and claims, as well as operating expenses and commissions. Cash flows generated by operations are
mainly invested to support future liability cash requirements.

The increase in cash flow from operations is mainly due to higher premium income and investment income partially
offset by higher payments to policyholders. In the second quarter, cash was used to acquire additicnal invested
assets of $1,682 million supporting policy liabilities.

In addition, financing activities, provided $385 mitlion reflecting the issue of $300 million of preferred shares by the
Company and $336 million of subordinated debentures by a subsidiary. Financing activities include dividend
payments of $213 million. The weakening of the Canadian dollar against the British pound and the euro increased
reported cash & certificates of deposit by $10 million.

The increase in cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2006 is due to the same reasans as for the three
month pericd above.

Commitments/contractual obligations
Commitments/contractual obligations have not changed materially since December 31, 2005. Refer to the
Company's 2005 MD&A.

Capital management and adequacy

In Canada, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (OSF!) has established a capital adequacy
measurement for life insurance companies incorporated under the Insurance Companies Act (Canada) and their
subsidiaries, known as the Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus Requirements (MCCSR). Great-West Life's
MCCSR ratio at June 30, 2006 was 211% (208% at December 31, 2005). London Life's MCCSR ratio at June 30,
2006 was 240% (237% at December 31, 2005). Canada Life's MCCSR ratio at June 30, 2006 was 220% (231% at
December 31, 2005).

GWL&A's risk-based capital ratio was 473% at December 31, 2005, well in excess of that required by the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners.
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RATINGS
The Company and its major operating subsidiaries continue to hold very strong ratings.

On February 17, 2006, Dominion Bond Rating Service upgraded Lifeco’s senior debt rating by one notch to AA
{low). The remaining ratings identified in the table were all reaffirmed in 2005.

Great- London Canada

Rating agency Measurement Lifeco West Life Life GWLEA
AM. Best Company Financial Strength A+ A+ A+ A
Dominion Bond Rating Service Claims Paying Ability IC-1 1C-1 1C-1 NR

Senior Debt AA (low)

Subordinated Debt AA (low)
Fitch Ralings Insurer Financial Strength AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+
Moody's Investors Service Insurance Financial Strength Aad Aald Aa3 Aa3
Standard & Poor's Rating Services Insurer Financial Strength AA AA AA AA

Senior Debt A+

Subordinated Debt A+

RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL PRACTICES

Insurance companies are in the business of assessing, assuming and managing risk. The types of risks are many
and varied, and will be influenced by factors both internal and external to the businesses operated by the insurer.
These risks, and the control practices used to manage the risks, are discussed in detail in the Company's 2005
MDE&A.

Foreign exchange risk

In the second quarter of 2006, the Company's foreign currency denominated operating results were translated to
Canadian dollars at the prevailing rate. In the second quarter of 2005, the US dollar operating results of the United
States segment were translated into Canadian dollars at $1.3305. The operating results of the Europe segment
were translated into Canadian dollars at $2.3072 for the British pound, $1.6104 for the euro, and $1.2440 for US
dollars. The 2005 translation rates included the beneficial impact of forward foreign exchange contracts that
expired at the end of 2005.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Earnings per share - CICA Handbook Section 3500, Earnings per Share, is expected to be amended in 2006 to
require inclusion of the dilutive effects of convertible securities in the calculation of diluted earnings per share,
regardless of the Company's intention to settle the securities in cash or common shares. As a result, the Company
will inciude the dilutive effects of its convertible preferred shares in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.
This change is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Financial instruments — Effective January 1, 2007, the Company will be required to comply with the new provisions
of the CICA Handbook on accounting for Financial Instruments. The new sections on Financial Instruments,
Hedges and Comprehensive Income, including revisions to the section on Life Insurance Enterprises and many
other sections, replace all previous guidance issued by the CICA.

On June 22, 2006, The Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada issued Guideline D-10 —

Accounting for Financial Instruments Designated as Fair Value Option, which provides additional guidance to
certain federally regulated institutions, including life insurance companies.
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The new guidance introduces the concept of Other Comprehensive Income, which will track unrealized gains and
losses experienced by the Company on certain investments and derivative instruments, and the currency
translation account movement. Other Comprehensive Income together with Net Income provides the financial
statement reader with Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive Income is the total of all realized and unrealized
income, expenses, gains and losses related to the Consolidated Balance Sheet including currency translation gains
and losses on foreign subsidiary operations.

Derivative instruments, previously off-balance sheet, will be recognized at their market value in the balance shest.

The Company will mark-to-market certain investments, primarily investments actively traded in a public market, and
certain debt instruments. Changes in market values will flow through net income for investments backing actuarial
liabilities. This impact is expected to be largely offset by corresponding changes in the actuarial liabilities.
Similarly, net income will reflect market value changes in certain debt instruments and realized gains and losses on
certain investments backing surplus. Unrealized gains and losses on investments backing surplus will flow through
Other Comprehensive Income until they are realized. No change to the Company’s method of accounting for real
estate or loans is anticipated.

Life Insurance enterprises will no longer defer realized gains on financial instruments (bonds, stock, and
mortgages), nor will they be allowed to carry investments in stocks at cost plus a moving average market value
adjustment for unrealized gains and losses. Deferred realized gains, carried on the balance sheet at December 31,
20086, will be transferred to retained earnings on transition to the new ruies.

The Company is reviewing the potential impact that these new accounting requirements will have on the financial
statements of the Company.

The new accounting guidance is expected to contribute to volatility within certain income statement line items,
particularly for investment income and actuarial provisions. However, based on the Company’s review to this point,
it does not expect that the new guidance will result in a material impact on net income, other than as a result of the
inability to continue to amortize the balance of net deferred realized unamortized gains on assets backing surplus
that will exist at the time of transition to the new accounting ruies.

Other Comprehensive Income will reflect movement previously credited or charged to surplus (currency franslation

account), as well as some market value changes not previously recorded (unrealized gains or losses on assets
backing surplus).
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SEGMENTED OPERATING RESULTS

The consolidated operating results of Lifeco include the operating results of Great-West Life, London Life, Canada
Life and GWL&A.

For reporting purposes, the consolidated operating results are grouped into four reportable segments, Canada,
United States, Europe, and Lifeco Corporate reflecting geographic lines as well as the management and corporate
structure of the companies.

CANADA

The Canadian segment of Lifeco includes the operating results of the Canadian businesses operated by Great-
West Life, London Life, and Canada Life. There are two primary business units included in this segment. Through
its Group Insurance business unit, the Company provides life, health, disability and creditor insurance products to
group clients in Canada. Through its Individual Insurance & Investments Products business unit, the Company
provides life, disability and critical illness insurance products to individual clients, as weil as accumulation and
payout annuity products for both group and individual clients in Canada.

Selected consolidated financial information - Canada

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Total premiums and deposits $ 3532 § 3,371 5% $ 7,525 § 6,851 10%
Fee and other income 223 189 18% 439 378 16%
Paid or credited to policyholders 1,617 1,666 -3% 3,145 3,185 -1%
Net income - common shareholders 245 212 16% 449 398 13%
Total assets $ 49,426 § 48,083 3%
Segregated funds assels 40,343 36,280 11%
Total assets under administration $ 89,769 $ 84,363 6%
18
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION — CANADA
Consolidated operations
For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005

Income:

Premium income $ 1,636 $ 1,593 $ 3,21 $ 3,102

Net investment income 686 693 1,370 1,377

Fee and other income 223 189 439 378
Total income 2,545 2,475 5,020 4,857
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders 1,617 1,666 3,145 3,185

Other 527 497 1,147 1,076

Amortization of finite life intangible assets 4 3 7 7
Net operating income before income taxes 397 309 721 589
Income taxes 91 64 173 125
Net income before non-controlling interests 306 245 548 464
Non-controlling interests 5Q 26 78 52
Net income - shareholders 256 219 470 412
Perpetual preferred share dividends 11 7 21 14
Net income - common shareholders $ 245 $ 212 [ 4 449 $ 398

NET INCOME

Net income - common shareholders

For the three months
ended June 30

For the six months
ended June 30

2006 2005 % Change 2005 % Change
Group Insurance $ 9t § 78 17% $ 165 $ 144 15%
Individual Insurance & investment Products 142 136 4% 286 261 10%
Corporate 12 (2} - {2) (7) -
$ 245 % 212 16% $ 449 % 398 13%
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GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC,

GREAT-WEST

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOxe

PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS AND SALES

For the three months For the six months
Premiums and deposits ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group Insurance $ 1,219 § 1,167 4% $ 2424 % 2300 5%
Individual Insurance & Investment Products 2,313 2,204 5% 5,101 4,551 12%
Total premiums and deposits $ 3532 § 3371 5% $§ 7525 § 6851 10%
Summary by Type
Risk-based products $ 1,636 $ 1,593 3% $ 3211 § 3,102 4%
ASO contracts 543 502 8% 1,089 976 12%
Segregated funds deposits
Individual products 684 800 14% 1,625 1,397 16%
Group products 669 676 -1% 1,600 1,376 16%
Total premiums and deposits $ 3532 3% 3,371 5% $ 7525 § 685 10%
For the three months For the six months
Sales ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group Insurance $ 108 $ 102 6% L 3 231 5 208 11%
Individual Insurance & Investment Products 1,790 1,525 17% 4,043 3,187 27%
Total sales 3 1,898 § 1,627 17% $ 4274 % 3,395 26%

BUSINESS UNITS — CANADA

GROUP INSURANCE

In Canada, the Company offers effective benefit solutions for large and small employee groups. Through its
Canada Life subsidiary, the Company is a recognized leader in the creditor insurance business with over $1.4
biliion in annual direct premium.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS
» Netincome to shareholders increased by $21 million or 15% to $165 million over 2005.
¢ Overall sales results grew by 11% compared to 2005.

OPERATING RESULTS

Net income

In quarter
Net income attributable to common shareholders was $91 million, which represents an increase of $13 million or
17% compared to the second quarter of 2005.

The increase reflects improved experience on small and mid-size long term disability cases as well as more

favorable morbidity results due to actuarial reserve basis change in 2006. Mitigating the increase was less
favorable investment and mortality experience.
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GREAT-WEST

LIFECOmn

Management's Discussion and Analysis
— Canada

Six months
Net income attributable to common shareholders was $165 million, which represents an increase of $21 million or
15% compared to the six months ended June 30, 2005.

The increase reflects improved experience on small and mid-size long term disability cases, more favorable
morbidity results due to actuarial reserve basis change in 2006, and better expense results. Mitigating the increase

was less favarable investment and mortality experience.

Premiums and deposits and sales

Group Insurance - divisional summary

For the three months

For the six months

Premiums and deposits ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Small/mid-sized case $ 484 % 455 2% $ 925 $ 905 2%
Large case - insured 399 386 3% 786 785 -
- ASO 543 502 8% 1,089 976 12%
- creditor/direct marketing 37 28 32% 69 68 1%
Sub-total 1,443 1,371 5% 2,869 2,734 5%
Premiums reinsured
Small/mid-sized case {116) (117) (233) (245)
Large case - insured {108) (87} {212) {188)
Net premiums $ 1219 § 1,167 4% $ 2424 § 2300 5%
For the three months For the six months
Sales ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Small/mid-sized case [ 51 § 43 19% $ 90 % 85 6%
Large case - insured 12 6 100% K| 28 11%
-ASO 20 47 -57% 83 66 26%
- creditor/direct marketing 25 6 317% 27 29 -7%
Total sales $ 108 $ 102 5% $ 231 8§ 208 11%
in quarter

Total net premiums and deposits were $1,219 million, which is 4% higher than the second quarier of 2005,
Excluding the impact of $224 million of premiums ceded under a bulk reinsurance agreement ($204 million in
2005), premiums and deposits increased 5% over the comparative period in 2005. Large case ASO premiums and
deposits increased 8% resulting from strong sales in the first quarter of 2006. Creditor/direct marketing net
premiums increased 32% mainly due to an increase in the percentage of premium reinsured in 2005 retroactive to
the beginning of the year.

Overall sales results in the quarter were up 6% compared to 2005. The decrease in large case ASO sales was
mainly due to one sale of $28 million in 2005 that was not repeated in 2006. The increase in creditor/direct
marketing was due to a large sale in 2006 for $21 million.

Six months

Total net premiums and deposits were $2,424 million, which is 5% higher than the six months ended June 30,
2005. Excluding the impact of $445 million of premiums ceded under a bulk reinsurance agreement ($434 million
in 2005), premiums and deposits increased 5% over the comparative period in 2005. Large case ASO premiums
and deposits increased 12% resulting from strong sales in 2006.
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GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOx

Overall sales results for the six months ended June 30, 2006 were up 11% compared to 2005. The increase in
iarge case ASO sales was mainly due to two large sales in 2006 for $42 million compared to one large sale in 2005
for $28 million.

INDIVIDUAL INSURANCE & INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

Individual Insurance & Investment Products (IlIP} consists of four distinct business lines: Individual Life Insurance,
Living Benefits, Individual Retirement & investment Services (IRIS) and Group Retirement Services. Products are
distributed through Freedom 55 Financial™ and Great-West Life financial security advisors, Canada Life
distribution partners, including managing general agents (MGAs), independent brokers and intercorporate
agreements with other financial institutions.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS
¢ Universal life sales continue to be strong, with premiums double that of 2005.

s Sales of retail investment funds, including segregated funds and mutual funds, increased 23% and contributed
to asset growth of over 7% since December 31, 2005.

e Sales of Group Capital Accumulation Plans, Payout Annuities and Investment Only business increased 72%
contributing o an increase in Group segregated funds assets of 4% since December 31, 2005.

» Effective June 30, 2008, the Company exercised its option to recapture 20% of the individual life insurance
business ceded under a bulk reinsurance treaty in 2003. The recapture did not have an impact on the net
income in the quarter.

OPERATING RESULTS

Net income - common shareholders

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Life $ 52 § 44 18% $ 113 % 85 33%
Living Benefiis 18 18 - 3 31 6%
Individual Retirement & Investrment Services 48 41 17% 91 87 5%
Group Retirement Services 24 33 -27% 49 58 -16%
$ 142 § 136 4% $ 286 3 261 10%
Net income
In quarter

Net income attributable to common sharehotders was $142 million compared to $136 million in the second quarter
of 2005, an increase of $6 million or 4%.

Individual Life net income was $52 million compared to $44 million in the second quarter of 2005. The increase in
net income reflects favourable actuarial reserve basis change in 2006 and additional investment and expense
gains. The 2006 results also reflected additional new business strain due to a large increase in universal life sales.
Mortality claims experience was less favourable.

Living Benefits net income was $18 million compared to $18 million in the second quarter of 2005. The 2006 resulis
reflect increased morbidity and investment gains offset by weaker surrender experience.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOne

IRIS net income was $48 million compared to $41 million in the second quarter of 2005. Higher segregated funds
and Quadrus mutual funds asset levels have resulted in an increase in fees. These positive results were mitigated
somewhat by reduced income from a decline in guaranteed product assets.

Group Retirement Services net income was $24 million compared to $33 million in the second quarter of 2005. The
decrease in net income reflects higher strain from increased sales of payout annuities, less favourable actuarial
reserve basis change in 2006 and lower investment gains.

Net income attributable to participating policyholder was $46 million, $23 million more than in the second gquarter of
2005, largely driven by higher investment gains in connection with an increased proportion of equities backing
policy liabilities in the participating accounts.

Six months
Net income attributable to common shareholders was $286 million compared to $261 miilion for the six months
ended June 30, 2005, an increase of $25 million or 10%.

Individual Life net income was $113 million compared to $85 million for the six months ended June 30, 2005. The
increase in net income reflects a more favourable actuanal reserve basis change in 2006 and improved mortality
experience. This result was partially offset by additional new business strain due to the large increase in universaf
life sales in 20086.

Living Benefits net income was $33 million compared to $31 million for the six months ended June 30, 2005. The
increase in net income reflects improved investment and morbidity experience partially offset by less favourable
surrender expenence and lower expense gains.

IRIS net income was $91 million compared to $87 million for the six months ended June 30, 2005, reflecting growth
in segregated funds and Quadrus mutual funds asset levels. These positive results were mitigated somewhat by
reduced income from a decline in guaranteed product assets.

Group Retirement Services net income was $49 million compared to $58 million for the six months ended June 30,
2005. The decrease in net income reflects higher strain from increased sales of payout annuities, less favourable
actuarial reserve basis change in 2006 and lower income from a decline in guaranteed product assets partially
offset by an increase in fees from investment fund asset growth.

Net income attributable to participating policyholder was $69 million, $26 million more than for the six months

ended June 30, 2005, largely driven by higher investment gains in connection with an increased proportion of
equities backing policy liabilities in the participating accounts.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOne
Premiums and deposits and sales
Individual Insurance & Investment Products - divisional summary
For the three months For the six months
Premiums and deposits ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Life Insurance - Participating $ 471 § 459 3% $ 911 & 885 3%
- Non-participating 1 120 9% 258 233 11%
Living Benefits 60 58 3% 119 114 4%
Individual Retirement & Investment Services
Risk-based products Al 115 -38% 165 206 -20%
Segregated funds 684 600 14% 1,625 1,397 16%
Group Retirement Services
Risk-based products 227 176 29% 423 340 24%
- Segregated funds 669 676 -1% 1,600 1,376 16%
i Total premiums and deposits $ 2313 § 2204 5% $ 5101 $ 4,551 12%
I
f For the three months For the six months
‘ Sales ended June 30 ended June 30
! Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
| Life Insurance - Participating $ 20 § 20 - $ a8 3 40 -5%
! - Non-participating 33 22 50% 59 49 48%
LZJ! Living Benefits 10 11 9% 19 23 A7%
o I Individual Retirement & Investment Services
ﬁ! Risk-based products 152 206 -26% k28| 426 -20%
= Segregated funds 803 702 14% 1,899 1,643 16%
E Securities 301 169 78% 579 369 57%
E Group Retirement Services
= Risk-based products 144 95 52% 255 122 109%
g ; Segregated funds 217 197 10% 613 340 80%
s Securities ! 110 103 7% 240 184 30%
i Total sales $ 1,790 § 1525 17% $ 4043 3 3187 27%
i (1) Includes mutual funds distributed by Quadrus Investment Services, stock incentive and mutual funds administered by GRS Securities Inc.
i and portfofio assets managed by Laketon Investment Management.
: INDIVIDUAL LIFE
—
In quarter

Individual life insurance sales were $53 million during the second quarter and $11 million or 26% higher than the
second quarter of 2005. Universal life sates continue to exhibit exceptional growth across all channels producing a
total 105% increase over the second quarter of 2005. Total participating product sales were up 4% in the quarter
as strong growth in case count was offset by less large case sales in the exclusive channel. The independent
MGA/National Accounts channel grew 50% in participating product sales due to increased promotional efforts.
Sales of term products were similar to the second quarter of 2005.

Premiums and deposits on individual life products were $602 million in the second quarter, a $23 miillion increase
over the second quarter of 2005, and were highlighted by non-participating life insurance revenue premium growth
of 9%. This reflects both continued strong persistency and sales momentum, particularly in the universal life
product line.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOxe

Six months

Individual life insurance sales of $97 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006 were $17 miltlion or 21% higher
than the comparative period in 2005, as universal life product sales doubled over the six months ended June 30,
2005. All distribution channeis exhibited significant growth in universal life sales over 2005. Sales of term products
were 4% higher than the six months ended June 30, 2005 due to increases in the Gold Key and exclusive
channels. While participating product sales decreased 3%, this was entirely due to fewer large case sales in the
exclusive channel. Participating policy count volumes were strong in all channels and the independent
MGA/National Account channel exhibited exceptional 50% sales growth due increased promotional efforts.

Premiums and deposits on individual life products increased $51 million over the six months ended June 30, 2005,
highlighted by 11% growth in non-participating life insurance revenue premium. These results reflect both
continued strong persistency and sales momentum, particularly in the universal life product line.

LIVING BENEFITS

In quarter

Total living benefits sales were $10 million, 9% lower than in the second quarter of 2005 due mainly to excepticnal
critical illness sales in 2005. Premium rates were increased in response {0 reinsurer rate increases in the Canadian
critical iliness insurance market in the fourth quarter of 2004 for both the Great-West Life and Canada Life brands.
Significant volumes of the previous series of less expensive critical iliness producls continued to be placed in first
half of 2005.

Total living benefits premiums were $60 million, 3% higher than the second quarter of 2005. The result reflects
growth in both disability and critical illness premiums, evidencing good persistency and strong sales in the last half
of 2005.

Six months

Total living benefits sales were $19 million, 17% lower, and premiums were $119 million, 4% higher, than for the six
months ended June 30, 2005 for the same reascns as the three month period.
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 GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOne

Assets under administration

Assets under administration

June 30 December 31
2006 2005 2005 2004
Business/Product
Individual Retirement & Investment Services
Risk-based products $ 5940 § 6,052 $ 6041 $ 6,129
Segregaled funds 18,902 16,837 18,175 15,759
Group Retirement Services
Risk-based products 5,852 5,815 5,846 5,825
Segregated funds 21,441 19,443 20,679 18,699
Total assets under administration $ 52,135 § 48,147 $ 50,741 % 46,412
Other plan assets M
Business/Product
Individual Retirement & Investment Services $ 4074 % 2,541 % 3310 § 2174
Group Retirement Services 6,096 6,604 7,001 6,986
Total assets under administration and other plan assets
Individuat Retiremen! & Investment Services " $ 28916 $ 25430 $ 2752 $§ 24082
Group Retirement Services ' $ 3338 § 31862 $ 33526 $ 31510

{1) Includes mutual funds distributed by Quadrus Investment Services, stock incentive and mutuat funds administered by GRS Securities Inc,
and portfolic assets managed by Laketon Investment Management.

INDVIDUAL RETIREMENT & INVESTMENT SERVICES (IRIS)

In quarter

IRIS experienced a strong quarter highlighted by a 14% increase in segregated funds sales over the same period in
2005 despite an in quarter equity market decline. Double digit growth was achieved by each of Great-West Life,
London Life and Canada Life in quarter. Segregated funds assets decreased by 2% in quarter to $18.2 billion at
June 30, 2006 due to a correction in the investment market evidenced by a 4% decrease in the S&P/TSX
Composite Index. The impacl of the equity market comection was partially offset by positive net cash flow of about
1% of opening assets.

Premiums from risk-based products decreased 38% from the second quarter of 2005 and sales were down 26%
from 2005, both due to a decline in payout annuity sales. The decline in payout annuity sales is largely due to
lower sales in the structured settlement market. The Company is reviewing this specialty product market segment
to assess its longer term positioning and marketing strategy.

Sales of mutual funds through Quadrus Investment Services increased 78% over the same quarter in 2005.
Mutual fund assets grew to nearly $4.1 billion at June 30, 2006, with $1.6 billion of the total in proprietary Quadrus
Group of Funds. Quadrus acquired another book of mutual fund business comprising $270 million of assets and 12
representatives which contributed to the growth in third party mutual fund assets under administration. Additional
acquisitions of mutual fund books and investment representatives are in progress for 2006 which wilt continue to
build scale and opportunity for additional profitability for Quadrus and future insurance product business.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOx«

Six months

IRIS experienced a strong first half highlighted by a 16% increase in segregated funds sales over the six months
ended June 30, 2005 with all three companies achieving double digit growth. This sales growth is parily due to the
momentum created from a lengthy period of good investment fund markets and the continuing strong marketing
and competitive product offerings. Segregated fund assets increased by 4% in year to $18.9 billion at June 30,
2006. This increase in assets was achieved from good net cash flow and an increase in Canadian equity securities
market value, evidenced by 3% increase in the S&P/TSX Composite Index from year end.

Premiums from risk-based products decreased 20% from the six months ended June 30, 2005 and sales were
down 20% for the same reasons as the three month period.

Sales of mutual funds through Quadrus Investment Services increased 57% over the six months ended June 30,
2005. Mutual fund assets grew by 23% from December 31, 2005 to nearly $4.1 billion at June 30, 2006. Since late
2005, Quadrus has acquired books of mutual funds business comprising $640 mitlion of assets and over 82
representatives which has contributed to the growth in third party mutual fund assts under administration.

GROUP RETIREMENT SERVICES

In quarter

Segregated funds deposits decreased by 1% versus 2005 with deposits to administered plans increasing by 10%
offset by a decline in large investment only deposits. Sales of new plans increased 10% over 2005, continuing the
momentum from the first quarter. Segregaled fund assets declined 2% in quarter due to declines in the investment
market evidenced by a 4% decrease in the S&P/TSX Composite Index.

Premiums and sales of risk-based products increased significantly over 2005 reflecting the 52% increase in group
payout annuity sales. This increase is attributable to the Company's increased focus on the product as integration
efforts have wound down.

The $1 billion decline in other plan assets is largely due to the decline in the markets and the loss of a $770 million
contract. The loss of this low margin, record keeping services only contract has allowed resources to be directed to
increasing our more profitable businesses. The Company has a strategy in place to improve the profitability on the
remaining block of other plan assets over the next few years.

Six months

Segregated fund deposits increased 16% in the period with deposits to administered plans increasing by 19% while
large investment only deposits increased by 4%. Sales of new plans increased 80% over 2005 highlighted by
outstanding large case results in the first quarter. Segregated fund assets increased 4% from December 31, 2005
due to strong net cash flow and modest increases in the investment market evidenced by a 3% increase in the
S&P/TSX Composite Index.

Premiums and sales of risk-based products increased significantly over 2005 reflecting the 119% increase in group

payout annuity sales. The Company has been successful in the large group payout annuity market in the last 12
months.
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOw ~ Canada

CORPORATE

Net Income

In quarter

Net income in the quarter was $12 million, compared to a loss of $2 million in 2005, resulting in a year over year
increase of $14 million. The 2006 results include the benefit of $20 million from the reduction of Canadian Federal
and Provincial income tax rates, including a $17 million nen-recurring portion relating to the impact on future
income taxes. The 2005 results include favorable tax experience of $18 million not repeated in 2006. The 2006
resulls also reflect an increase in investment income on assets backing surplus.

Six months

Net income for six months was a loss of $2 million compared to a loss of $7 million in 2005, resulting in a year over

year increase of $5 million. In addition to the items described above, the 2005 result included the release of a
- redundant real estate investment provision of $10 million after-tax,

GREAT-WESTLIFECOINC. = __
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECOINC- — United States

UNITED STATES

The United States operating results for Lifeco include the results of GWL&A and the results of the insurance
businesses in the United States branches of Great-West Life and Canada Life, together with an allocation of a
portion of Lifeco's corporate results.

2006 DEVELOPMENTS
+ Netincome in US dollars increased 3% over the second quarter of 2005.

s Healthcare net income in US dollars decreased $15 million or 33% related to poor aggregate stop-loss
experience.

« Membership continued its upward trend, due to growth in specialty markets.

s Financia! Services net income in US dollars has increased 22% in the second quarter of 2006 primarily as a
result of higher fee income and net investment margins.

« GWLSA has reached an agreement to acquire certain 401(k) plan business from Metropolitan Life Insurance
Company and its affiliates.

AGREEMENT TO ACQUIRE 401(k) PLAN BUSINESS

On June 26, 2006, GWL&A entered into an agreement to acquire several parts of the full service-bundled, small
and midsize 401(k), as well as some defined benefit plan business, of Metropolitan Life insurance Company and its
affiliates. The acquisition also includes the associated dedicated distribution group, including wholesalers,
relationship managers and sales associates. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2006,
subject to regulatory approval in the United States, and is expected to increase assets and policyholder liabilities by
approximately $1.6 billion (U.S. $1.4 billion) on the consolidated balance sheet. in addition, the Company will
receive fee income by providing administrative services and recordkeeping functions on approximately $6.8 billion
{U.S. $6.1 billion) of participant account values,

Selected consolidated financial information - United States

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Total premiums and deposits $ 2,616 % 2,707 -3% $ 5379 % 5910 -9%
Fee and other income 290 296 -2% 587 590 -1%
Paid or credited to policyholders 843 732 15% 1,681 2,088 -19%
Net income - commeoen shareholders 127 150 -15% 261 294 -11%
Total assets $ 26,665 $ 29,045 -8%
Segregated funds assets (1) 16,433 17,329 -5%
Total assets under administration 3 43,098 $ 46,374 T%

1) The Company's segregated funds offer mutual funds or other investment options that purchase guaranteed annuity conlracts issued by the
Company. As of June 30, 2006, such investments had been made in the guaranteed interest annuity contracts in the amount of $40 million
compared to $414 million for the same period in 2005. As the general account investments are also included in the segregated funds
account balances, the Company has reduced the segregated fund account balances by $377 million as of June 30, 2006 compared to $383
million for the same period in 2005 to avoid overstatement of customer account values under management.
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GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

GREAT-WEST

LIFECOme

Management‘s Discussion and Analysis
— United States

FINANCIAL INFORMATION — UNITED STATES

Consolidated operations

For the three months

For the six months

ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005
Income:
Premium income $ 677 $ 572 $ 1,369 3 1,776
Net investrment income 337 385 672 756
Fee and other income 290 296 587 590
Total income 1,304 1,253 2,628 3,122
Benefits and expenses:
Paid or credited to policyholders 843 732 1,681 2,088
Other 286 308 575 612
Net operating income before income taxes 175 213 372 422
Income taxes 44 61 105 125
Net income before non-controlling interests 131 152 267 297
Non-controlling interests 4 2 6 3
Net income - common shareholders 127 150 261 294
NET INCOME
Net income - common shareholders
For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Heaithcare $ M3 56 -45% $ 81 $§ 115 -30%
Financial Services 89 89 - 172 172 -
Corporate 7 5 40% 8 7 14%
$ 127 % 150 -15% $ 261 % 204 -11%
In millions US $ $ 112 % 109 3% $ 229 % 219 5%
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GREAT-WEST

Management's Discussion and Analysis
LIFECO'NC- ~ United States

PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS AND SALES

For the three months For the six months
Premiums and deposits ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Healthcare $ 1,602 $ 1,629 -2% $ 3278 % 3,275 -
Financial Services 1,014 1,078 -6% 2,101 2635 -20%
Total premiums and deposits $ 2616 § 2707 -3% $ 5379 5 5910 -9%
Summary by Type
Risk-based products 677 572 18% $ 1,369 $ 1,776 -23%
Self-funded premium equivalents
{ASO contracts) 1,343 1,443 -7% 2,716 2,859 -5%
Segregated funds depesits
Individual products 97 47 106% 173 102 70%
Group products 499 645 -23% 1,129 1,173 4%
Total premiums and deposits $ 2616 § 2,707 -3% $ 5379 % 5,910 -9%
Total premiums and deposits US § $ 2314 § 2162 7% $ 4717 % 4,766 -1%
For the three months For the six months
Sales ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Healthcare 3 146 § 136 7% $ 497 3 471 6%
Financial Services 470 377 25% 988 B36 18%
Total sales $ 616 § 513 20% 3 1485 $ 1,307 14%
Total sales US $ $ 547 % 408 34% $ 1,302 $ 1,053 24%

BUSINESS UNITS - UNITED STATES

HEALTHCARE

Net income

in quarter

In quarter earnings in the Healthcare business unit in US dollars totalled $28 million, which is a 33% decrease
compared to second quarter of 2005. Aggregate stop-loss expenence deteriorated primarily in the Select Market
and Mid-Markets. The poor aggregate stop loss experience was due to pricing levels resulting from competitive
market conditions, higher medical trend in 2006 compared to the same period last year and a combination of faster
claims processing and faster submission of claims by providers. This was partially offset by increased
administrative fees on higher membership, particularly in Select and Specialty Markets. Unfavourable currency
translation impacted net income by $7 million in the quarter.

Six months

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, earnings in the Healthcare business unit in US dollars totalled $71 million,
which is an 17% decrease compared to same period in 2005. A deterioration in the aggregate stop-loss claims
experience in all US Market segments and individual stop-loss claims experience primarily in Mid and National
Markets, as discussed above, was partially offset by increased administrative fees on higher membership and
increased Pharmacy Benefit Management revenue. Unfavourable currency translation impacted net income by $15
million for the six months ended June 30, 2006.
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GREAT-WEST

LIFECOn

Management's Discussion and Analysis

~ United States

Premiums and deposits and sales

Heaithcare - divisional summary

Premiums and deposits

For the three months
ended June 30

For the six months
ended June 30

Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group life and heaith - guaranteed $ 25 % 186 39% § 562 3 418 35%
-ASO 1,343 1,443 7% 2,716 2,859 -5%
Total premiums and deposits $ 1,602 §$ 1,629 -2% $ 3278 § 3.275 -
Total premiums and deposits US § $ 1,417 § 1,303 9% $ 2875 § 2.641 9%
For the three months For the six months
— Sales ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Group lite and health $ 146 § 136 7% $ 497 § 471 6%
Total sales US § $ 131 3 107 22% $ 436 § 379 15%
Healthcarg - members ({in thousands)
Change for the
o three months ended
= June 30 Total at June 30
S 2006 2005 2006 2005 % Change
jre | Select and mid-marke! (15} (7 1,234 1,266 -3%
= National and Specialty Market 41 (5) 843 626 35%
v Total 26 (22} 2,077 1,892 10%
2
=
5 In quarter

The reported net premiums and deposits decreased by 2% compared to the second quarter of 2005. Healthcare
premiums and deposits for the quarter, in US doltars, increased 9% to $1,417 million due, in part, to renewal price
increases and increased membership in Select and Specialty Markets. In addition, the termination of a stop loss
reinsurance agreement effective January 1, 20086 resulted in a decrease in ceded premium in US dollars of $64
million compared to the second quarier of 2005.

Excluding the impact of reinsurance activity in 2005, premium income in US dollars totalled $1,366 million.

Healthcare sales in US dollars increased 22% to $131 million for the second quarter of 2006 over the same period
last year. This increase is attributable to increased average premium per member sold combined with an increase
in Select Market.

Six months

The reported net premiums and deposits were flat compared to the six months ended June 30, 2005. Healthcare
premiums and deposits for the period, in US dollars, increased 9% to $2,875 million due, in part, to renewal price
increases and increased membership in the Select and Specialty Markets. However, the termination of a stop loss
reinsurance agreement effective January 1, 2006 resulted in a decrease in ceded premium of $126 million
compared to the six months ended June 30, 2005.

Excluding the impact of reinsurance activity in 2005, premium income in US dollars totalled $2,766 million.
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Membership at June 30, 2006 of 2.077 million members increased 3% from 2.025 million members at December
31, 2005, mainly due to Specialty Market sales.

Healthcare sates increased 15% to $436 million for six months ended June 30, 2006 over the same period last year
in US dollars. This increase is attributable to increased average premium per member sold combined with an
increase in Select and Specialty Markets.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Net income

In quarter

In quarter earnings were $89 million, which is flat compared to the same period in 2005. In US dollars, earnings
increased 22% compared to the same period in 2005. The increase in-quarter was due primarily to higher
investment margins and fee income due to growth from new institutional client relationships and the improvement in
the U.S. equity markets. Unfavourable currency translation impacted net income by $14 million in the quarter.

Six months

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, earnings were $172 million, which is flat compared to the same period in
2005. In US dollars, earnings increased 17% compared to the same period in 2005. The increase was due
primarily to higher investment margins and fee income mentioned above. Unfavourable currency translation
impacted net income by $26 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006.

Premiums and deposits and sales

Financial Services - divisional summary

For the three months For the six months
Premiums and deposits ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Markets $ 275 % 214 29% $ 520 § 429 21%
Retirement Services 739 864 -14% 1,581 2,206 -28%
Total premiums and deposits $ 1,014 $ 1,078 6% $ 2101 § 2635 -20%
Total premiums and deposits US $ $ 897 $ 859 4% $ 1842 5 2125 -13%
For the three months For the six months
Sales ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Markets $ 152 § 56 - $ 258 % 103 -
Retirement Services 318 k23| -1% 730 733 -
Total sales $ 470 % 77 25% $ 988 $ 836 18%
Total sales US $ $ 416 $ 301 38% $ 866 $ 674 28%
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Financiaf Services - participant accounts (in thousands})

Change for the
three months ended
June 30 Total at June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005 % Change
Individual Markets {2) (2) 451 460 -2%
Public/Non-Profit 3 21 1,599 1,474 8%
FASCore 6 27 894 707 26%
401(k) {2) {20) 475 491 -3%
Retirement Services 7 28 2,968 2,672 11%
Total 5 26 3,419 3,132 9%

In quarter

Premiums and deposits for the quarter were $1,014 million, a decrease of $64 million or 6% compared to the same
period in 2005. The decrease is attributable to the strengthening of the Canadian dollar. In US dollars, the
premiums and deposits increased slightly due to an increase from BOLI general account premium.

Sales for the quarter increased $93 miilion or 25% compared to the same period in 2005. The increase is primarily
in Individual Markets, due to higher general account sales of the BOLI product in 2006.

Six months

Premiums and deposits for the six months ended June 30, 2006 were $2,101 million, a decrease of $534 million or
20% compared to the same period in 2005. The Company's segregated funds offer mutual funds or other
investment options that purchase guaranteed interest annuity contracts. In the first half of 2005 there was a large
purchase of such guaranteed interest annuity contracts of $414 million compared to only $40 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2006. The remaining decrease year over year is primarily due to the strengthening of the
Canadian dollar.

GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

Sales for the six months ended June 30, 2006 increased $152 million or 18% compared to the same period in
2005. The increase is primarily in Individua!l Markets which exhibited growth in the general account sales of the
BOLI product, as well as increased sales of the Schwab variable annuity product.

Increase in participant accounts is primarily in the FASCore line of business. FASCore increased due to the
addition of new institutions since the first quarter of 2005 including Franklin Templeton Investments with 77,000
participants, Federated Investors with 80,000 participants and JP Morgan with 15,000 participants.
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Financial Services - Retirement Services customer account values

Change for the
three months ended
June 30 Total at June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005 % Change
General account - fixed options
Public/Non-profit $ (217) % 97 $ 4072 % 4,668 -13%
401(k) (14) 42 1,250 1,326 -6%
$ (231) & 139 $ 5322 % 5,994 -11%
Segregated funds - variable options
Public/Non-profit $ (538) $ 214 $ 6,179 $ 6,738 -8%
401(k) {566} 259 7,298 7,636 -4%
$ (1,104} $ 473 $ 13477 $ 14,374 6%
Unaffiliated retail investment options &
administrative services only
Public/Non-profit $ (2196) $ 2,144 $ 43152 § 38529 12%
401(k} {245) 286 6,424 6,343 1%
Institutional (FASCore) {2,285) 2,686 26,905 21,792 23%
$  (4,726) & 5,116 $ 76481 § 66,664 15%

All of the customer account values were negatively impacted by the strengthening of the Canadian dollar against
the US dollar.

Account values invested in the general account fixed investment options have decreased in US dollars by 2%
compared to the same period last year, due to the termination of a single large case that totalled $60 million US

dollars.

Account values invested in the segregated variable investment options have remained relatively flat in US dollars

when comparing June of 2006 to June of 2005.

Participant accounts’ values invested in unaffiliated retail investment options and participant account values where
only administrative services and recordkeeping functions are provided have increased 26% in US dollars in 20086.
The increase is primarily attributable to an increase in participants from institutional cases and improvement in U.S.

equity markets.
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EUROPE

The European segment is broadly organized along geographically defined market segments and offers protection
and wealth management products and reinsurance. The segment is comprised of two distinct primary business
units: Insurance & Annuities, which consists of operating divisions in the United Kingdom, Isle of Man, Republic of
freland, and Germany; and Reinsurance, which operates primarily in the United States, Barbados and ireland.

The Insurance & Annuities business is conducted through Canada Life and its subsidiaries. The Reinsurance
business is conducted through Canada Life, LRG, and their subsidiaries.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the market rate at the end of the
financial period. All income and expense items are translated at an average rate for the period.

In 2005, the Company mitigated the volatility associated with the fluctuation of foreign currencies by using forward

: foreign currency contracts. The effect of these contracts was reflected in the net effective rates. In 2006, the
Company has no forward foreign currency contracts in place. The rates used to translate foreign currency
denominated items are:

Period ended Balance sheet Operations
Assets & liabilities Income & expenses Net effective rate
: United States dollar
g, June 30 2006 $1.12 $1.14 $1.1400
= March 31, 2006 $1.17 $1.15 $1.1500
S December 31, 2005 $1.17 $1.21 $1.2553
o June 30, 2005 $1.23 $1.24 $1.2440
g March 31, 2005 $1.21 $1.23 $1.2300
Wy |
;‘5 British pound
- June 30, 2006 $2.06 $2.04 $2.0400
- March 31, 2006 $2.03 $2.02 $2.0200
5! December 31, 2005 $2.00 $2.21 $2.3272
June 30, 2005 $2.20 $2.31 $2.3072
: March 31, 2005 $2.28 $2.32 $2.3013
? Euro
i June 30, 2006 $1.42 $1.40 $1.4000
j March 31, 2006 $1.42 $1.39 $1.3900
December 31, 2005 $1.38 $1.51 $1.6159
f June 30, 2005 $1.48 $1.59 $1.6104
March 31, 2005 $1.57 $1.61 $1.6053

The currency translation impact discussed in the Europe section of this report is based on the application to the
2006 results of the 2005 translation rates including, where appropriate, the impact of forward foreign exchange
contracts in place in 2005,

Currency translation impact is a non-GAAP financial measure which attempts to remove the impact of changed
currency translation rates on GAAP results. Refer to “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section of this report.
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2006 DEVELOPMENTS

s Shareholder net income was $96 million, down 5% from the second quarter of 2005. Excluding the
unfavourable currency translation impact, shareholder net income was up 8%.

s Insurance & Annuities premiums and deposits increased by $620 million, up 42% over the second quarter of
2005. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact, Insurance & Annuities premiums and deposits
increased 60%.

* Insurance & Annuities sales increased by $567 million, up 57% over the second quarier of 2005. Excluding the
unfavourable currency translation impact, Insurance & Annuities sales grew by 76%.

+ The Company purchased a payout annuity block of business from The Equitable Life Assurance Society in the
U.K.

PURCHASE OF PAYOUT ANNUITY BLOCK IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

During the quarter, the Company's United Kingdom subsidiary, Canada Life Limited, reached an agreement to
acquire the non-participating payout annuity business of The Equitable Life Assurance Society in the United
Kingdom. The block of business adds approximately 130,000 annuity policies. This represents a significant
increase to Canada Life Limited's existing annuity business and brings the Company’s annuity policies to a total of
approximately 280,000 policies. This acquisition, along with Phoenix and London Assurance Limited payout
annuity acquisition in 2005, furthers the Company’s strategy to capitalize on its position in core European markets
and will add to Canada Life's strong position in the payout annuity market.

Under the terms of the transaction, the Company wil' assume a block of payout annuity liabilities, and receive a
corresponding amount of assets. At year-end 2005, the value of the assets and liabilities was £4.8 billion ($9.3
billion). Effective January 1, 2006, the Company acquired these liabilities by way of indemnity reinsurance.
Arrangements are being made to transfer the policies and supporting assets to the Company. This transfer is
expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2007, subject to regulatory and court approval.

At June 30, 2006, the transaction resulted in an increase in funds held by ceding insurers and a corresponding
increase in policyholder tiabilities of $9.4 billion on the consolidated balance sheet.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION — EUROPE

Selected consolidated financial information - Europe

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Total premiums and deposits $ 3,498 $ 2,384 47% $ 5930 § 4,951 20%
Fee and other income 154 135 14% 298 234 27%
Paid or credited to policyholders 2,499 1,683 48% 4,134 3,624 14%
Net income - common shareholders 96 101 -5% 207 202 2%
Total assets $ 36854 § 21,126 74%
Segregated funds assets 21,573 18,269 18%
Total assets under administration $ 58,427 $ 39,395 48%
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Consolidated operations

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005
Income:
Premium income $ 2,131 $ 1,619 $ 3,559 $ 3,466
Net investment income 493 252 797 492
Fee and other income 154 135 298 234
Total income 2,778 2.006 4,654 4,192
Benefits and expenses:
Paid or credited to policyholders 2,499 1.683 4,134 3.624
Other 176 191 rigi 308
Amortization of finite life intangible assels 1 1 2 2
- Net operating income before income taxes 102 131 241 257
Income taxes {5) 25 19 48
Net income before non-controlling interests 107 106 222 209
Non-controlling interests 8 5 12 7
Net income - shareholders 99 101 210 202
Perpetual preferred share dividends 3 - 3 -
} Net income - common shareholders 96 101 207 202
! e — e —
=,
g
O
g g NET INCOME
-
: i
=3 Net income - common shareholders
E For the three months For the six months
i ended June 30 ended June 30
fg 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
: Insurance & Annuities $ 89 $ 79 13% $ 177 8 187 13%
i Reinsurance 21 21 - 43 44 -2%
i Corporate {14) 1 - {13) 1 -
! s 9% $ 101 5% § 207 § 202 2%
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PREMIUMS AND DEPOSITS AND SALES

For the three months For the six months
Premiums and deposits ended June 30 ended June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
UK / Isle of Man 1,741 1,138 53% $ 2918 $ 2,147 36%
Ireland / Germany 335 315 6% 654 665 2%
Intemational 5 8 -38% 10 17 -41%
Insurance & Annuilies $ 2,081 3 1,461 42% $ 3,582 &% 2,829 27%
Reinsurance 1,417 923 54% 2,348 2,122 11%
Total premiums and deposits $ 3498 § 2,384 47% $ 5930 3% 4,951 20%
Summary by Type
Risk-based products $ 2,431 1,619 32% $ 3559 % 3,466 3%
Segregated funds deposits
Individual products 1,367 765 79% 2,371 1,485 60%
Total premiums and deposits $ 3,498 $ 2,384 47% $ 5930 % 4,951 20%
For the three months For the six months
Sales ended June 30 anded June 30
Business/Product 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
UK / Isle of Man $ 1,392 % 830 68% $ 2311 % 1,569 47%
lreland / Germany 176 171 3% 349 394 -11%
International - - - - - -
Insurance & Annuities $ 1,568 § 1,001 57% $ 2660 5 1,963 36%
Reinsurance 1,333 852 56% 2,187 1,988 10%
Total sales $ 2901 § 1,853 57% $ 4847 § 3,951 23%

BUSINESS UNITS - EUROPE
INSURANCE & ANNUITIES

Net income

In quarter

Net income attributable to common sharehoiders increased $10 million or 13%, to $89 million compared to the
secend quarter of 2005. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact of $11 million, net income was up
27%.

The increase in eamings was driven by growth in the UK payout annuity business due particulary to improved new
business margins and the contribution from the payout annuity block acquired in 2005 from Phoenix and London.
The Phoenix and London contribution represents mortality, investment and expense experience, which is emerging
more favourably than the pricing assumptions. In addition, earnings benefited from improved mortality experience
in the Group insurance business.
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Six months
Net income attributable to common shareholders increased $20 million or 13%, to $177 million compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2005. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact of $23 million, net income
was up 27%.

The increase in earnings was driven by growth in the UK payout annuity business due particularly to improved new
business margins and the contribution from the payout annuity block acquired in 2005 from Phoenix and London.
in addition, earnings benefited from improved morbidity experience, favourable investment experience and
assetfliability matching in the Group insurance business. The 2005 results also included a one-time investment gain
in Ireland of 6 million euros resulting from lower reserve requirements in connection with investment fund
guarantees. Improved operational efficiencies and equity market performance also contributed to the overall strong
performance.

Premiums and deposits and sales

In quarter

Premiums and deposits increased $620 million or 42%. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact of
$252 million, premiums and deposits increased $872 million or 60% compared to the second quarter of 2005. The
increase was due to higher segregated fund premiums on savings products in the United Kingdom/Isle of Man and
Irefand as well as pension products in Germany. In addition, paycut annuity sales increased as compared to the
same period in 2005 reflecting a surge of business following the implementation of new retirement legislation in
April of 2006.

Sales increased by $567 million or 57%. Excluding the unfavourable currency translation impact of $180 million,
sales increased $757 million or 76% compared to the second quarter of 2005. Strong sales growth was driven by
UK payout annuities, savings products in the United Kingdom/Isle of Man and Ireland as well as pension products
in Germany. While the results were strong, sales of savings products in the Isle of Man tend to be larger and less
uniform, resulting in volatility in sales trends.

Six months

Premiums and deposits increased $753 million or 27% for the six months ended June 30, 2006. Excluding the
unfavourable currency translation impact of $476 million, premiums and deposits increased $1,229 million or 43%
compared to the same period in 2005. The increase reflects higher segregated fund premiums on savings products
in the United Kingdom/Isle of Man and Ireland, pension products in Ireland partly offset by lower premiums in UK
payout annuities. The decrease in UK payout annuities reflects a more competitive environment in the first quarter
of the year combined with customers delaying purchasing decisions until the second quarter, after the introduction
of new retirement legislation in April of 2006. However, the second guarter payout annuities sales showed a
recovery from this position.

Sales increased by $697 million or 36% for the six months ended June 30, 2006. Excluding the unfavourable
currency translation impact of $353 million, sales increased $1,050 million or 53% compared to the same period in
2005. Strong sales growth in savings products in the United Kingdom/isle of Man and Ireland were partly offset by
weaker sales in UK payout annuities and Germany. The decrease in Germany reflects the carry over into the first
quarter of 2005 of the surge in sales caused by changes to the taxation of pension products. The decrease in UK
payout annuities reflects a more competitive environment in the first quarter of the year combined with customers
delaying purchasing decisions prior to the introduction of new retirement legislation in April of 2006.

Excluding the carry over of the sales surge into the first quarter of 2005, sales in Germany increased 115%
compared to the same period last year.
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REINSURANCE
Net income

In quarter

Net income for the Reinsurance business unit was $21 million, in line with the same period in 2005. Excluding the
unfavourable currency translation impact of $2 million, net income was up 6%. The 2006 results reflect higher
renewal profits, lower new business strain and improved mortality experience offset by an increase in provisions
recorded in the quarter on certain property and casualty contracts.

The 2005 results included an increase in provisions for adverse developments of $41 million, and a decrease in
actuarial liabilities of $41 million arising from a reinsurance agreement between London Life and General
Reinsurance Company Limited, a subsidiary of LRG, and Canada Life Assurance (Ireland) Ltd., a subsidiary of
Canada Life, to provide guarantee risk protection.

Six months

Net income for the Reinsurance business unit was $43 million, a decrease of $1 million from the six months ended
June 30, 2005. Excluding the unfavourable currency transiation impact of $4 million, net income was up 7%. The
2006 results reflect higher renewal profits, lower new business strain and favourable mortality experience offset by
an increase in provisions recorded in the second quarter on certain property and casualty contracts.

The 2005 results also included favourable investment experience and asset/liabilily matching, an increase in
provision for adverse development of $41 million as well as a decrease in actuarial liabilities of $41 million arising
from a reinsurance agreement between London Life and General Reinsurance Company Limited, a subsidiary of
LRG and Canada Life Assurance (Ireland} Ltd., to provide guarantee risk protection.

Premiums and deposits and sales

In quarter _

Premiums and deposits for the Reinsurance business unit were $1,417 million, an increase of $494 million or 54%
over the second gquarter of 2005. Sales were $1,333 million, an increase of $481 million or 56% over the same
period in 2005. This primarily reflects a large payout annuity reinsurance contract written in 2006.

Six months

Premiums and deposits for the Reinsurance business unit were $2,348 million, an increase of $226 miltion or 11%
over the six months ended June 30, 2005. Sales were $2,187 million, an increase of $199 miflion or 10% over the
same period in 2005. This primarily reflects a large payout annuity reinsurance contract written in 2006 as well as
the renegotiation and commutation of certain reinsurance contracts in 2005 and 2006.
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CORPORATE

In the quarter, the Company established a Corporate line of business within the Europe reporting segment. The
Corporate account includes financing charges, and the impact of non-current period operating related items and
business units which have been discontinued or sold.

Net income

In quarter

The 2006 results include a charge of $32 million incurred by Canada Life in connection with the unfavorable
developmeni related to an arbitration with one of its retrocessionaires in respect of discontinued product arising out
of the event of September 11, 2001. Partly mitigating this charge were two other non-recurring items which in
aggregate increased net income by $17 million.
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LIFECO CORPORATE OPERATING RESULTS

The Lifeco Corporate segment includes operating resuits for activities of Lifeco that are not associated with the
major business units of the Company.

Consolidated operations

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005

Income:

Premium income $ - 3 - $ - $ -

Net investment income - (3) - B)

Fee and cther income - - - -
Total income - (3) - (6)
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders - - - -

Other 1 1 2 2

Restructuring costs - 11 - 18

Amortization of finite life intangible assets - - -
Net operating income before income taxes (1) (15) {2) (26}
Income taxes 6 2 B 3
Net income before non-controlling interests {7) {17) (10) (29)
Non-controlling interests . - - -
Neat income - common shareholders ) {17} (10 {29)

In quarter

Corporate net income was a charge of $7 million compared to a charge of $17 million in the second quarter of
2005, comprised of the following after-tax charges: restructuring costs incurred in 2006 related to the CLFC
acquisition of $0 million ($9 million in 2005), $3 million of U.S. withhoiding tax ($4 million in 2005) incurred by Lifeco
in the course of receiving dividends from U.S. subsidiaries, $3 million non-recurring capital tax charge on a Lifeco
subsidiary, and $1 million of operating expense ($4 million of operating expense in 2005) incurred at the Lifeco
level.

Six months

Corporate net income was a charge of $10 million compared to a charge of $29 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2005, comprised of the following after-tax charges: restructuring costs incurred in 2006 related to the
CLFC acquisition of $0 miition ($13 miltion in 2005), $6 million of U.S. withholding tax ($10 million in 2005) incurred
by Lifeco in the course of receiving dividends from U.S. subsidiaries, $3 million non-recurring capital tax charge on
a Lifeco subsidiary, and $1 million of operating expense ($6 million of operating expense in 2005} incurred at the
Lifeco level.

OTHER INFORMATION
Additional information relating to Lifeco, including Lifeco’s most recent financial statements, CEQ/CFO certification
and Annual Information Form are available at www.sedar.com.
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS (unaudited)

(in & millions except per share amounts)

Income
Premium income
Net investment income (note 2)
Fee and other income

Benefits and expenses
Paid or credited to policyholders and beneficiaries
including policyholder dividends and experience refunds
Commissions
QOperating expenses
Premium taxes
Financing charges (note 3)
Amortization of finite life intangible assets
| Restructuring costs

Net income before income taxes

Income taxes - current
- future

Net income before non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests {(note 8)

GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

Net income - shareholders

Perpetual preferred share dividends

| Net income - common shareholders

Earnings per common share (note 12)

.__] Basic

Dituted

For the three months

For the six months

ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005
$ 4444 § 3,784 8,13 % 8,344
1,516 1,327 2,839 2,619
667 620 1,324 1,202
6,627 5,731 12,302 12,165
4,959 4,081 8,960 8,897
332 331 674 660
541 553 1,103 1,117
66 64 126 125
51 49 98 97
5 4 9 9
- 11 - 18
673 638 1,332 1,242
110 170 227 199
26 {18) 78 102
537 486 1,027 941
62 33 96 62
475 453 931 879
14 7 24 14
$ 461 § 446 907 $ 865
$ 0.516 & 0.500 1.017 § 0.971
$ 0513 § 0.496 1010 3% 0.962
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (unaudited)

Assets

Bonds

Mortgage loans

Stocks

Real estate

Loans to policyholders

Cash and certificates of deposit
Funds held by ceding insurers
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other assets (note 4)

Total assets

Liabilities

Paolicy liabilities
Actuarial liabilities
Provision for claims
Provision for policyholder dividends
Provision for experience rating refunds
Policyholder funds

Debentures and other debt instruments (note 5)
Funds held under reinsurance contracts

Other liabilities (note 6)

Repurchase agreements

Deferred net realized gains

Preferred shares (note 9)
Capital trust securities and debentures (note 7)
Non-controlling interests (note 8)
Participating surplus in subsidiaries
Preferred shares issued by subsidiaries
Perpetual preferred shares issued by subsidiaries
Share capitai and surplus
Share capital (note 9)
Perpetual preferred shares
Common shares
Accumulated surplus
Contributed surplus
Currency translation account

Liabilities, share capital and surplus

{in § millions)

June 30, December 31, June 30,
2006 2005 2005
$ 60,479 $ 59,298 $ 56,446
14,855 14,605 14,659
4,236 4,028 3,635
1,868 1,842 1,785
6,670 6,646 6,778
3,186 2,961 2,826
11,526 2,556 2,106
5,324 5,327 5,329
1,452 1,453 1,483
3,349 3,445 3,207
$ 112,945 $ 102,161 5 98,254
$ 81,1056 $ 71,263 $ 67,183
1,110 999 1,209
537 535 581
378 401 468
2,134 2,088 2,048
85,264 75,286 71,499
2,204 1,903 2,073
3,954 4,089 4,331
4,019 4,231 4,072
1,049 1,023 1,213
2,693 2,598 2,453
99,183 89,130 85,641
775 787 797
647 648 650
1,814 1,744 1,714
209 209 209
155 157 158
1,099 799 499
4,671 4,660 4,658
5,338 4,860 4,385
23 19 17
{969) {849) {474)
10,162 9,489 9,085
$ 112,945 $ 102,161 $ 98,254
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SURPLUS (unaudited)

{in $ miflions)

For the six months

ended June 30
2006 2005
Accumulated surplus
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,860 $ 3,890
Net income 931 879
Comrmon share cancellation excess (24) (22)
) Share issue costs - preferred shares {6) -
: Dividends to shareholders
‘ Perpetual preferred shareholders {24) (14)
‘ Common sharehclders {399) (348)
! Balance, end of period $ 5,338 $ 4,385
|
i Contributed surplus
uj Balance, beginning of year $ 19 $ 14
E[ Stock options
§i Current year expense (note 10) 5 3
=1 Exercised (1) -
EI Balance, end of period $ 23 $ 17
=
= Currency transliation account
%I Balance, beginning of year $ (849) B  (426)
Change during the period (120) (48)
Balance, end of period $ (969) $  (474)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)
(in § millions)

Operations
Net income
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Change in policy liabilities
Change in funds held by ceding insurers
Change in funds held under reinsurance contracts
Change in current income taxes payable
Future income tax expense
Qther
Cash flows from operations

Financing Activities
Issue of common shares
Issue of preferred shares
Purchased and cancelled common shares
Redemption of preferred shares
Issue of subordinated debentures in subsidiary
Repayment of debentures and other debt instruments
Share issue costs
Dividends paid

Investment Activities
Bond sales and maturities
Morigage loan repayments
Stock sales
Real estate sales
Change in loans to policyholders
Change in repurchase agreements
Investment in bonds
Investment in mortgage loans
Investment in stocks
Investment in real estate

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and
certificates of deposit

Increase in cash and certificates of deposit
Cash and certificates of deposit, beginning of period
Cash and certificates of deposit, end of period

For the three months
ended June 30

For the six months
ended June 30

2006 2005 2006 2005
$ a7s 453§ 931 879
274 579 403 1,458

379 102 431 230

(19} (70) (97} (68)

15 82 (74) (71)

26 (18) 78 102

649 436 75 100
1,799 1,564 1,747 2,630

5 2 17 12

300 - 300 -

(15) (14) (30} (27

(12) - (12) -

336 - 336 -

{10} 21) (22} (22)

(6) - {6) -

(213) (181) (423) (362)
385 (214) 160 (399)
9,570 11,326 22,353 20,549
473 725 911 1,567

262 360 556 600

(74) 32 a5 68
(133) (135) (220) (172)

4 278 118 390
(10,782) {12,535) (23,526) (22,083)
(673) (771) (1,205) (1,741)
(285) (363) (638) (752)
(44) (173) (116) (225)
(1,682) (1,256) (1,722) (1,779)
10 (72) 40 (98)

512 22 225 354
2,674 2,804 2,961 2,472

$ 3,186 2826 $ 3,186 2,826
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Notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
(in $ millions except per share amounts)

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Accounting Policies

(a) The interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of Great-West Lifeco Inc. (Lifeco or the
Company) at June 30, 2006 have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, using the same accounting policies and methods of computation
followed in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005. These
interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto in the Company’s annual report dated December 31, 2005.

(b) Certain of 2005 amounts presented for comparative purposes have been reclassified to conform
to the presentation adopted in the current year.
2. Net Investment Income

: Net investment income is comprised of the following:
For the three months ended June 30, 2006

| Amortization
u-s Investment of net realized Net
z! income and unrealized Proviston for Investment investment
3 [ earned gains credit losses expenses income
= | Bonds $ 1,009 $ 63 $ 4 $ - $ 1,076
= Mortgage ioans 215 12 1 - 228
g Stocks 32 48 - - 80
N Real estate 28 15 - - 43
§ ‘ Other 107 - - {18) 89
“ $ 1391 § 138§ 5 § (18) $ 1,516
For the three months ended June 30, 2005
Amortization of
net realized
Investment and unrealized Provision for Investment Net investment
income eamed gains credit losses expenses income
Bonds $ 789 § 71 3 18 % - $ 878
Mortgage loans 219 14 13 - 246
Stocks 37 45 - - 82
Real estale 29 1" - - 40
Cther 95 - - {14) 81
$ 1,169 5 141 3 31 $ {(14) 3% 1,327
48
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For the six months ended June 30, 2006

Amortization

Investment of net realized Net
income and unrealized Provision for Investment investment
earned gains credit losses expenses income

Bonds $ 1,809 $ 124 $ 6 $ - $ 1,939
Mortgage loans 431 24 1 - 456
Stocks 65 124 - - 189
Real estate 54 29 - - 83
Other 206 - - {34) 172

$ 2,565 $ 301 $ 7 $ {(34) % 2,839

For the six months ended June 30, 2005
Amortization of
net realized
Investment and unrealized Provision for Investment Net investment

income eamed gains credit losses expenses income
Bonds $ 1,567 $ 131 $ 19 $ - 3 1,717
Mortgage loans 446 27 15 - 488
Stocks 74 88 - - 162
Real estate 75 19 - - 94
Other 185 - - (27) 158

3 2,347 $ 265 ] 34 3 (27) &% 2,619

3. Financing Charges

Financing charges include interest on long-term debentures and other debt instruments together with
distributions and interest on capital trust securities and debentures and preferred shares classified as

liabilities.

For the three months

For the six months

TINI D317 LSIM-LYIHD

ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005

Interest on long-term debentures and

other debt instruments $ 30 % $ 57 $ 59
Preferred share dividends 9 19 19
Interest on capital trust debentures 12 24 24
Other 2 3 -
Distributions on capital trust securities held by

consolidated group as temporary investments {2) (2) {5) {5)
Total $ 5@ % $ 98 3% 97
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4. Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following:

June 30, December 31, June 30,
2006 2005 2005

Premiums in course of collection $ 572 $ 623 $ 540

Interest due and accrued 927 893 B18

Future income taxes 293 363 356

Fixed assets 256 279 291

Prepaid expenses 76 76 70

Accounts receivable 648 716 635

_‘ Accrued pension asset 181 179 192

! Other 396 316 305

} $ 3,349 $ 3,445 $ 3,207
|

GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC.

e
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Debentures and Other Debt Instruments

Debentures and other debt instruments consist of the following:
June 30, December 31, June 30,

Subordinated debentures due September 19, 2011 bearing a fixed rate

2006 2005 20056
Short term
Commercial paper and other short term debt instruments with interest
rates from 4.9% to 5.5% (4.0% to 5.0% in 2005) $ 103 % 112 3 a7
Revolving credit in respect of reinsurance business with interest rates from
5.8% to 5.9% maturing within one year (5.0% to 5.2% in 2005) 2 14 18
Total short term 105 126 115
Long term

Operating:

Notes payable with interest rate of 8.0% 8 9 10

Capital:

Lifeco o
Five year term facility - - 150 =r
6.75% Debentures due August 10, 2015, unsecured 200 200 200 :
6.14% Debentures due March 21, 2018, unsecured 200 200 200 .
6.74% Debentures due Novemnber 24, 2031, unsecured 200 200 200 i
6.67% Debentures due March 21, 2033, unsecured 400 400 400 |

1,000 1,000 1.150 !
Canada Life %
|

of 8% until 2006 and, thereafter, at a rate equat to the Canadian z
90-day Bankers' Acceptance rate plus 1%, unsecured 250 250 250 fE
Subordinated debentures due December 11, 2013 bearing a =
fixed rate of 5.8% until 2008 and, thereafter, at a rate equal to the r?"
Canadian 90-day Bankers' Acceptance rate plus 1%, unsecured 200 200 200 “
6.40% Subordinated debentures due December 11, 2028, unsecured 100 100 100 Lt
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 8 13 3z E
558 563 582 ©

=

o

Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Capital, LP
6.625% Deferrable debentures due November 15, 2034, 197 205 216
unsecured (U.8.$175)

Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Capital, LP !l

7.153% Subordinated debentures due May 16, 2046, 336 . .
unsecured (U.$.5300)

Total long term 2,099 1,777 1,958

Total debentures and other debt instruments $ 2204 $ 1,803 8 2,073

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company issued $336 (U.S. $300) in Fixed/Adjustable Rate
Enhanced Capital Advantaged Subordinated Debentures through it's wholly owned subsidiary,
Great-West Life & Annuity Capital, LP Il. The subordinated debentures are due May 16, 2046 and
bear an annual interest rate of 7.153% until May 16, 2016. After May 16, 2016, the subordinated
debentures will bear an interest rate of 2.538% plus the 3-month LIBOR rate. The subordinated
debentures are redeemable by the Company at the principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid
interest after May 16, 2016.
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6. Other Liabilities
Other liabilities consist of the following:
June 30, December 31, June 30,

2006 2005 2005
Current income taxes $ 302 $ 374 $ 334
Accounts payable 384 511 489
Liability for restructuring costs - - 30
Post retirement benefits provision 521 508 499
Bank overdraft 464 449 795
Future income taxes 306 317 280
Other 2,042 2,072 1,645

$ 4,019 $ 4,231 $ 4,072

7. Capital Trust Securities and Debentures

June 30, December 31, June 30,
2006 2005 2005
Capital trust debentures:

5.995% Senior debentures due December 31, 2052, unsecured (GWLCT) $ 350 % 350§ 350
6.679% Senior debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured (CLCT) 300 300 300
7.529% Senior debentures due June 30, 2052, unsecured (CLCT) 150 150 150
800 800 800
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 32 34 36

Capital trust securities held by consolidated group
as temporary investments {185) {186) {186)
Total $ 647 3 648 § 650

Great-West Life Capital Trust (GWLCT), a trust established by The Great-West Life Assurance
Company (Great-West Life), had issued $350 of capital trust securities, the proceeds of which were
used by GWLCT to purchase Great-West Life senior debentures in the amount of $350, and Canada
Life Capital Trust (CLCT), a trust established by The Canada Life Assurance Company.(Canada
Life), had issued $450 of capital trust securities, the proceeds of which were used by CLCT to
purchase Canada Life senior debentures in the amount of $450.
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8. Non-Controlling Interests

The Company controlled a 100% equity interest in Great-West Life, London Life Insurance Company
(London Life), Canada Life and Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company (GWL&A) at June 30,
2006 and June 30, 2005.

(a) The non-controlling interests of Great-West Life, London Life, Canada Life, GWL&A and their
subsidiaries reflected in the Summary of Consolidated Operations are as follows:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005
Participating policyholder
Net income attributable to participating
policyholder before policyholder dividends
Great-West Life $ 30 3% 36 $ 59 % 60
London Life 190 155 352 304
Canada Life 45 47 92 90
GWLE&A 26 30 69 80
Policyholder dividends
Great-West Life (25) (24) {51} (48)
London Life {141) {135} (280) (267)
Canada Life (44) (46) (90) (89)
GWLSEA (24) (28) (64) (77)
Net income 57 29 87 53
Preferred shareholder dividends of subsidiaries 5 4 9 9
Total $ 62 3§ 33 0§ 96 % 62

(b) The carrying value of non-controlling interests consist of the following:
June 30, December 31, June 30,

2006 2008 2005
Participating surplus:
Great-West Life $ 380 % 372 % 372
London Life 1,218 1,151 1,118
Canada Life 27 25 18
GCWL&A 189 193 206

$ 1814 § 1741 & 1,714

Preferred shares issued by subsidiaries:

Great-West Life Series L, 5.20% Non-Cumulative $ 52 % 52 % 52
Great-West Life Series O, 5.55% Non-Cumulative 157 157 157
$ 209 § 209 $ 209

Perpetual preferred shares issued by subsidiaries:

CLFC Series B, 6.25% Non-Cumulative $ 145 § 145 % 145
Acquisition related fair market value adjustment 10 12 13
$ 155 § 157 § 158
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GREAT-WEST LIFECO INC,

9. Share Capital

Authorized
Unlimited First Preferred Shares, Class A Preferred Shares and Second Preferred Shares,
Unlimited Common Shares

Issued and outstanding

June 30, 2006 December 31, 2005 June 30, 2005
Number Stated value Number Stated value Number Stated value
Preferred shares:
Classified as liabilities
Series O, 4.70% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares 7,978,900 $ 199 7.978,900 $ 199 8,000,000 $ 200
Series E, 4.80% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares 23,022,915 576 23,499,915 588 23,868,115 597
31,001,815 $ 775 31,478,815 $ 787 31,868,115 $ 797
Perpetual preferred shares:
Classified as equity
Series F, 5.90% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares 7,957,001 $ 199 7,957,001 $ 199 7,957,001 $ 199
Series G, 5.20% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares 12,000,000 300 12,000,000 300 12,000,000 300
Series H, 4.85% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares 12,000,000 300 12,000,000 300 - -
Series |, 4.50% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares 12,000,000 300 - - - -
$ 43,957,001 $ 1,099 $ 31,957,001 $ 799 $ 19,957,001 3 499
Common shares:
Balance, beginning of year 890,689,076 $ 4,660 890,592,348 $ 4,651 890,592,348 $ 4,651
Purchased and cancelled under
Normal Course Issuer Bid (1,023,300} (6) (2,012,600} (11) (989,100) (5)
Issued under Stock Option Plan 1,604,850 17 2,109,328 20 1,375,830 12
Balance, end of period 891,270,626 $ 4,671 890,689,076 $ 4,660 890,979,078 $ 4,658

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company issued 12,000,000 Series |, 4.50% Non-Cumulative
First Preferred Shares for a value of $300 or $25 per share. The shares are redeemable at the
option of the Company on or after June 30, 2011, for $25 per share plus a premium if the shares are
redeemed before June 30, 2015.

During the second quarter of 2006, 477,000 Series E 4.80% Non-Cumulative First Preferred Shares
were purchased pursuant to the Company’s Normal Course Issuer Bid for a total cost of $12 or an
average of $27.44 per share. The price in excess of stated value was charged to income.
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10. Stock Based Compensation

50,000 options were granted under the Company’s stock option plan during the second quarter of
2006 (100,000 options were granted during the first quarter of 2005 and no options were granted
during the second quarter of 2005). The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the
six months ended June 30, 2008 were $5.48 per option ($6.68 per aption during the six months
ended June 30, 2005). Compensation expense of $5 after tax has been recognized in the Summary

of Consolidated Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2006 ($3 after tax for the six months

ended June 30, 2005).

11. Pension Plans and Other Post Retirement Benefits

The total benefit costs included in operating expenses are as follows:

For the three months

For the six months

"INI 023417 153Mm-1V34D

ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005
Pension benefits $ 18 % 15  § 37 % 33
Other benefits 5 12 12 22
Total $ 23 3 27 $ 49 55
12. Earnings Per Common Share
For the three menths For the six months
ended June 30 ended June 30
2006 2005 2006 2005

a) Earnings

Net income - common shareholders $ 461 $ 446 $ 907 $ 865
b} Number of common shares

Average number of common shares outstanding 890,989,489 890,986,618

Add:

-Potential exercise of outstanding stock options 6,649,699 7,892,591

Average number of common shares outstanding - diluted basis 897,639,188 898,879,209
Earnings per common share

Basic $ 0516 § 0.500 $ 1.017 $ 0.971

Diluted $ 0513 § 0.496 $ 1.010 3 0.962
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13. Acquisitions
(a) During the second quarter of 2006, Canada Life, through its wholiy owned United Kingdom

subsidiary, Canada Life Limited, reached an agreement to acquire the non-participating payout
annuity business of The Equitable Life Assurance Society in the United Kingdom. Under the terms
of the agreement, Canada Life Limited assumed this business on an indemnity reinsurance basis
with an effective date of January 1, 2006. Arrangements are being made to transfer the policies to
the Company and the transfer is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2007 subject to
regulatory and court approval. The transaction resulted in an increase in funds held by ceding
insurers and a corresponding increase in policyhalder liabifities of $9.4 billion (£4.6 billion) on the
consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2006.

(b) During the second quarter of 2006, Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company, entered into an

agreement to acquire several parts of the full service-bundled, small and midsize 401(k}), as well as
some defined benefit plan business, of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company and its affiliates. The
acquisition also includes the associated dedicated distribution group, including wholesalers,
relationship managers and sales associates. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth
quarter of 2006, subject to regulatory approval in the United States, and is expected to increase
assets and policyholder liabilities by approximately $1.6 billion (U.S. $1.4 billion) on the
consolidated balance sheet. In addition, the Company will receive fee income by providing
administrative services and recordkeeping functions on approximately $6.8 billion (U.S. $6.1 billion)
of participant account values.

(¢} On April 24, 2006, Crown Life Insurance Company (Crown Life) served notice, pursuant to the

terms of the 1899 acquisition of the majority of the insurance operations of Crown Life by Canada
Life, commencing a process under which Canada Life may be required to acquire the common
shares of Crown Life. This transaction is not expected to have a material impact on the financial
position of the Company.
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14. Segmented Information
Consolidated Operations

For the three months ended June 30, 2006

United Lifeco
Canada States Eurcpe Corporate Total

Income:

Premium income $ 1636 $ 677 $ 213 $ - 4,444

Net investment income 686 337 493 - 1,516

Fee and other income 223 290 154 - 667
Total income 2,545 1,304 2,778 - 6,627
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders 1,617 843 2,499 - 4,959

Other 527 286 176 1 990

Amortization of finite life intangible assetls 4 - 1 - 5

Restructuring costs - - - - -
Net operating income

before income taxes 97 175 102 n 673
Income taxes 91 44 {5) 6 136
Net income before non-controlling

interests 306 131 107 (7} 537

Non-controlling interests 50 4 8 - 62
Net income - shareholders 256 127 99 (N 475
Perpetual preferred share dividends 11 - 3 - 14
Net income - common shareholders $ 245 $ 127 $ 96 $ {7) 461
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Far the three months ended June 30, 2005

United Lifeco
Canada States Europe Corporate Total
Income:;
Premium income $ 1,583 $ 572 $ 18619 3 - $ 3,784
Net investment income 693 385 252 {3) 1,327
Fee and other income 189 296 135 - 620
Total income 2,475 1,263 2,008 (3) 5,731
Benefits and expenses:
Paid or credited to policyholders 1,666 732 1,683 - 4,081
S Other 497 308 191 1 997
f Amortization of finite life intangible assets 3 - 1 - 4
Restructuring costs - - - 11 11
Net operating income
before income taxes 309 213 131 {(15) 638
Income taxes 64 61 25 2 152
Net income before non-controlling
interests 245 152 106 (17) 486
§ Non-controlling interests 26 2 5 - 33
o
EI Net income - shareholders 219 150 101 (17 453
pur
1
El Perpetual preferred share dividends 7 - - - 7
E
’éi Net income - common shareholders $ 212 $ 150 3 101 3 {17) 3 446
&
G}
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For the six months ended June 30, 2006

United Lifeco
Canada States Europe Corporate Total

Income:

Premium income $ 3,211 $ 1,369 $ 3,559 - 8,139

Net investment income 1,370 672 797 - 2,839

Fee and other income 439 587 298 - 1,324
Total income 5,020 2,628 4,654 - 12,302
Benefits and expenses:

Paid or credited to policyholders 3,145 1,681 4,134 - 8,960

Other 1,147 575 277 2 2,001

Amortization of finite life intangible assets 7 - 2 - 9

Restructuring costs - - - - -
Net operating income

before income taxes 721 3ar2 241 {2) 1,332
Income taxes 173 105 19 8 305
Net income before non-controlling

interests 548 267 222 {10) 1,027
Non-controlling interests 78 6 12 . 96
Net income - shareholders 470 261 210 (10) 931
Perpetual preferred share dividends 21 - 3 - 24
Net income - common shareholders $ 449 $ 261 $ 207 {10) 907
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For the six months ended June 30, 2005

Income:
Premium income
Net investment income
Fee and other income

Total income

Benefits and expenses:
Paid or credited to policyhotders
Other
Amortization of finite life intangible assets
Restructuring costs
Net operating income
before income taxes

Income taxes

Net income before non-controlling
interests

Non-controlling interests
Net income - shareholders
Perpetual preferred share dividends

Net income - common sharehokders

United Lifeco
Canada Slates Europe Corporate Total
$ 3102 $ 1776 $ 3466 5 - $ 8,344
1,377 756 492 (6) 2619
378 590 234 - 1,202
4,857 3,122 4,192 (6) 12,165
3,185 2,088 3.624 - 8,897
1,076 612 309 2 1,999
7 - 2 - 9
- - - 18 18
589 422 257 (26} 1,242
125 125 48 3 301
464 297 209 (29) 941
52 3 7 - 62
412 294 202 (29} 879
14 - - - 14
§ 398 § 204 $ 202 $ (29) $ 865
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IGM FINANCIAL INC.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) presents management’s view of the operations and financial
condition of IGM Financial Inc. (1GM Financial or the Company) as at and for the three and six months ended June
30, 2006, compared with the same period in 2003, and should be read in conjunction with the 2005 IGM Financial
Inc. Annual Report and the 2006 1GM Financial Inc. First Quarter Report to Shareholders filed on www.sedar.com,
Commentary in the MIDD&A as at and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 is as of August 1, 2006.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This report may contain forward-looking statements about IGM Financial, including its business operations,
strategy and expected financial performance and condition. Forward-looking statements include statements that

are predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditons, or include words such as “expects”,

LU

“anticipates”, “intends”, “plans”, “believes”, “estimates” or negative versions thereof and similar expressions. In

addition, any statement that may be made concerning future financial performance (including revenues, earnings

or growth rates), ongoing business strategies or prospects, and possible future Company action, is also a forward-

looking statement. Forward-looking statements are based on current expectations and projections about future

events and are inherently subject to, among other things, risks, uncertainties and assumptions abour the Company,

economic factors and the financial services industry generally. They are not guarantees of future performance, and
actual events and results could differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements
made by the Company due to, but not limited to, important factors such as general economic, political and market

factors in North America and internaticnally, interest and foreign exchange rates, global equity and capital markets,

business competition, technological change, changes in government regulations, changes in tax laws, unexpected
judicial or regulatory proceedings, catastrophic events, and the Company’s ability to complete strategic transactions
and integrate acquisitons. The reader is cautioned that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive.

The reader is also cautioned to consider these and other factors carefully and not place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements, Other than as specifically required by applicable law, the Company has no specific intention to
update any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise,

IGM Financial Inc.

Summary of Consolidated Operating Results

Net income for the three months ended June 30, 2006
was $200.4 million. This amount included a $13.7 million
(3 cents per share) non-cash income tax benefit resulting
from decreases in the federal corporate income tax rates
and their effect on the future income tax liability related
to indefinite life intangible assets arising from the
acquisition of Mackenzie Financial Corporation in 2001,
There is no expectation that the future tax liability will
become payable as the Company has no intention of
disposing of these assets. Diluted earnings per share were
75 cents for the quarter. Net income for the three months
ended June 30, 2006, excluding the non-cash income
tax benefit, was $186.7 million compared to net income
of $167.9 million in 2003, an increase of 11.2%.
Biluted earnings per share on the same basis were

70 cents for the period compared to diluted earnings
per share of 63 cents for the same period in 2005.

Net income for the six months ended june 30, 2006
was $385.7 million. Diluted earnings per share on this
basis were $1.44. Net income for the six months ended
June 30, 2006, excluding the non-cash income tax
benefit described above, was $372.0 million compared
to net income of $328.6 million in 2005, an increase of
13.2%. Diluted earnings per share on the same basis
were $1.39 for the period compared to diluted earnings
per share of $1.23 for the same period in 2005, an
increase of 13.0%,

Shareholders’ equity was $3.6+ billion as at June 30,
2006, up from $3.45 billion at December 31, 2003,
Return on average common equity for the six months
ended June 30, 2006, excluding a non-cash income rax
benefit, was 20.4% compared with return on average
cominon equity of 19.7% for the same period in 2005,
The quarterly dividend per common share of 37.0 cents
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in the sceond quarter was unchanged from the first
quarter, however it represented an increase of 2.5 cents
or 7.2% from 34.3 cents in the fourth quarter of 2005.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

Net income, diluted earnings per share (EPS) and
return on common equity (ROE) excluding a non-cash
income tax benefit for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2006 exclude a non-cash income tax benefit
resulting from decreases in federal corporate income
tax rates and their effect on the future income tax
liability refated to indefinite life intangible assets.
While these non-GAAP financial measures are used

1o provide management and investors with additional
measures to assess earnings performance, they do not
have standard meanings and are not directly comparable
to similar measures used by other companies.

F-arnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) and
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) are also non-GAAP financial
measures. EBIT and EBITDA are alternative measures
of performance utlized by management, investors

and investment analysts to evaluate and analyze the
Company’s results. EBITDA is discussed further in
the Consolidated Liquidity scction kater in this MD&A.
These non-GAAP financial measures do not have
standard meanings and are not directly comparable

to any GAAP measure or to similar measures used by
other companies.

"The reconciliation of non-GAAP results to reported
resules in accordance with GAAP for net income, EPS
and EBITDA is provided in Table 1. The reconciliation
of non-GAAP results to reported results in accordance

with GAAP related to EBIT is provided in Table 2.

REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

IGM Financial’s reportable segments, which reflect the
current erganizational structure, are:
= Investors Group
¢ Mackenzie
* Corporate and Other.

Management measures and evaluates the
performance of these segments based on EBI'T as
shown in Table 2.

TABLE 1: RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

(S miilions)

THRLE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 SIX MONTIIS ENDED JUNE 30
1006 1005 2006 10035

Net income excluding a non-cash income tax bencfit -
Non-GAAP measure
Non-cash income tax benefit

$ 186.7 $ 1679 $ 3720 § 3286
13.7 - 13.7 -

Net income - GAAP

$ 2004 £ 1679 $ 385.7 $ 3286

Earnings per share excluding a non-cash income
tax benefit - Non-GAAP measure

$ 070 § 063 $ 139 £ 1.3

Non-cash income tax benefit 0.05 - 0.05 -
Earnings per sharc - GAAP 0.75 S 0.63 § 1.4 § 123
EBITDA - Non-GAAP measure $ 373.0 $ 3405 $ 749.0 § 667.6

Conunission amartization (74.6) (65.0) (146.7) (127.5)

Amortization of capital and intangible assets 5.3 (5.7) (10.7) (11.4)

Interest expense on long-term debt and

dividends on preferred shares (26.2) (26.8) (52.2) (53.3)

Income before income taxes and

non-controlling interest 266.9 243.0 5394 475.4
Income taxes (65.7) {74.5) {152.5) (145.7)
Non-conrrolling interest (0.8) {0.6) {1.2) (1.1}

Net income - GAAP

$ 2004 5 167.9 § 385.7 $ 3286

1GM FINANCIAL INC. SECOND QUARTER REPORT 1006 / MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSS5TON AND ANALYSIS

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION — SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2006

C 3

ONTIVIONVYNID WOI

|



TABLE 2: CONSOLIDATED OPERATING RESULTS BY SEGMENT

Three months ended June 30 INVESTORS GROUP MACKENZIE CORPORATL & OTHER TOTAL
(8 mnitlions) 2006 2005 2006 1005 2006 2003 zo06 2005
Fee income $ 3309 5 2917 § 2290 § 2157 $274 5 242§ 5873 § 35316
INet investment income

and other 31.2 37.0 8.2 44 9.9 6.2 49.3 47.6

362.1 328.7 237.2 220.1 373 104 636.6 579.2

Operating expenses

Commissions 96.1 79.3 93.3 84.0 16.8 14,5 206.2 177.8

Non-commission 69.6 67.1 63.7 61.0 8.2 7.7 141.5 135.8

165.7 146.4 157.0 145.0 25.0 12 347.7 313.6

Earnings before interest

and taxes $ 1964 S 1823 § 802 § 751 $§ 123 § 82 288.9 2635.6
Interest cxpense 22.0 22.6
Income before incotne taxes and non-conrrolling interest 266.9 243.0
Income raxes 65.7 74.5
Income before non-controlling interest 201.2 168.5
Non-controlling interest 0.8 0.6
Nct income

GAAP $ 2004 S 1679

Excluding a non-cash income tax benefir” $ 1867 § 1679

Six inonths ended June 30
(8 millisn}

Fee income $ 6573 § 3762 § 463.5 § 427 $ 556 § 51.8 $1,176.4 51,055.1

Net investment income
and other 74.9 73.4 138 8.6 17.8 15.2 106.5 97.2
732.2 649.6 477.3 435.7 73.4 67.0 1,282.9 1,§52.3

Operating expenses

Commissions 189.7 155.1 184.8 166.7 341 31.7 408.6 3533
Non-commission 140.7 134.1 134.3 1289 159 15.5 290.9 2785
3304 289.2 319.1 295.6 50.0 47.2 699.5 632.0

Earnings before interest

and taxes $ 4018 § 3604 § 1582 § 1401 $ 234 S 198 5834 520.3
Interest expense 44.0 +.9
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest 539.4 4754
Income taxes 152.5 145.7
Income before non-contrelling interest 386.9 329.7
Non-controlling interest 1.2 1.1
Ner income

GAAP $ 3857 $§ 32846

Excluding a non-cash income tax benefir™ $ 3720 § 3286
“ Refer to Surmmary of Consolidated Operating Results for an cxplanation of the Company’s use of non-GelAP financial measures,
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Discussion of Investors Group and Mackenzie
Segment Operating Results is contained in their
respective sections of this MD&A.

Earnings before intetest and taxes for Corporate
and Other, the segiment which includes operating results
for Investment Planning Counsel, net investment
income carned on unallocated investunents and other
income as well as inter-segment climinations, were
$12.3 million for the three months ended June 30,
2006 compared to $8.2 million in 2005, Earnings
before interest and taxes related 1o Investument Planning
Counsel were 30.9 million lower than 2003 levels.
Investment Planning Counsel’s 2005 results included
a non-recurring gain of $1.1 million related to the
disposition of an investment. Net investment income
on unallocated investments increased by $4.8 million
in 2006 compared with 2003 as a result of higher
balances and increases in interest rates.

For the six month period, earnings before interest
and taxes for Corporate and Other were $23.4 million
compared to $19.8 million. Earnings before interest and
taxes related to Invesunent Planning Counsel were
$0.7 million lower than 2005 levels due to the non-
recurring item in 2005 as discussed above. Net
investment income on unallocated investments increased
by $8.0 million in 2006 compared with 2005 related to
both higher balances and higher interest rates. Other
income in 2005 included $4.2 million of carnings related
to the elimination of certain provisions established as a
result of previous acquisitions.

TABLE 3: EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE

Certain items reflected in Table 2 are not allocated
to segments:

e Interest expense — Represents both the interest cost
on the remaining debt issued pursuant to the
Mackenzie acquisition and dividends paid on the
outstanding preferred shares. Interest expense on
long-term debt issued in relation to the Mackenzie
acquisition totalled $16.8 million and $33.7 miilion
for the three and six month periods ended June 30,
2006 compared with $17.4 million and $34.6 million
in 2005. The decrease in both the three and six month
periods related to the interest on the $25.0 million
note payable to Power Financial Corporation
which matured on January 16, 2006. Dividends
paid on preferred shares were $5.2 million and
$10.3 million for the threc and six month periods in
both 2006 and 2005.

*  [ncome taves — The effective income tax rate was

24.6% and 28.3% for the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2006, compared with 30.7% and
30.6% respectively in 2005 as shown in Table 3.
The decline in the effective tax rate for the three
and six month periods relates primarily to decreases
in federal corporate income tax rates and the resulting
reduction in the future income tax liability related to
indefinite life intangible assets, Consequently, the
Company recorded a $13.7 million (50.05 per share)
non-cash income tax benefit in the sccond quarter
which resulted in a 5.11% and 2.53% reduction in
the effective tax rate for the three and six month

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

2006 2004 2006 1005

Income taxes at Canadian federal and

provincial statutory rates 35.17% 35.98% 35.48% 3597%
Effect of:

Dividend income (0.16) (0.20) (0.16) {0.20)

Net capital gains and losses (0.78) (0.71) {0.92) (0.76)

Share of earnings of affiliate (2.71) (2.7%) (2.65) (2.75)

Preferred dividends paid 0.93 0.79 0.82 0.81

Impact of rate changes on future incomne taxes

related to indefinite life intangible assets (5.11) - (2.53) -

Other items (2.72) {2.45) (1.75) (2.42)

Effective income tax rate 24.62% 30.66% 28.29% 30.65%
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IGM FINANCIAL INC.

periods in 2006. The benefit of the reduction in
federal and provincial corporate income tax rates on
other operating future income tax assets and liabilitics
is reflected in the Other items line in Table 3.

Our continuous tax planning may allow the
Company to record lower income taxes in the current
period and, as well, income taxes recorded in prior
periods may be adjusted in the current period o
reflect management’s best estimates of the overall

Investors Group
Assets Under Management

The level of assets under management is influenced by
three factors: sales, redemptions and investment retumns.
The changes in assets under management in 2006
compared with 2005 are reflected in Table 4.

For the three months ended June 30, 2008, sales of
Investors Group mutual funds through its Consultant
network were $1.5 billion, an increase of 15.9% from
2005. Mutual fund redemptions totalled $1.3 billion
for the same period, an increase of 6.1% from 2005,
Investors Group’s twelve month trailing redemption
rat¢ for long-term funds decreased to 8.4% at June 30,

adequacy of its provisions at that time. Any related
tax benefits or changes in management’s best
estimates are reflected in Other items, which also
includes, bur is not limited o, the effect of lower
effective tax rates on income not subject to tax in
Canada, Management monitors the status of its
income tax filings, and regularly assesses the overall
adequacy of its provision for income taxes.

2006 from 9.1% at June 30, 2005 and remains below
the average redemption rate of approximately 16.0%
for all other members of the Investment Funds Institute
of Canada (IFIC). Net sales of Investors Group murual
funds were $165 million in 2006 compared with net
sales of $40 million in 2005. Sales of long-term funds
were 1.2 billion for the three months ended June 30,
2006, compared with $1.0 billion in 2005, an increase
of 19.3%. Net sales of long-term funds were

$106 million compared to net redemptions of
$17 million in 2005.

TABLE 4: CHANGE IN MUTUAL FUND ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT - INVESTORS GROUP

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

31X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

(8 tnillions) 2006 200§ CHANGE 2006 2005 CHANGE
Sales $ 14527 § 1,253.7 159% 8§ 3,448.1 § 2.906.0 18.7%
Redemptions 1,287.9 1,213.7 6.1 2,565.3 24377 5.2
Nect sales 164.8 40.0 3120 882.8 168.3 88.5
Market and income (2,180.1) 1,374.1 N/M 247.3 1,944.1 (87.3)
Net change in assets (2,015.3) 1,414.0 N/M 1,130.1 2,412.4 (53.2)
Beginning assets 53,846.4 45,508.1 18.3 50,701.0 4+4,509.8 13.9
Ending assets $ 51,831.1 § 469222 10.5% $ 51,8311 § 46,9222 10.5%
Consists of:

[nvestors Masterseries™ funds $ 44,497.2 § 404622 10.0%

IG Mackenzie partner funds 2,230.5 1,979.9 12.7

Parter funds 4,583.5 4,004.9 14.4

iProfile™ funds 519.9 475.2 9.4

$ 51,831.1 § 469222 10.5%

Average daily assets $ 52,680.8 § 46,0162 14.5% $ 52,4954 5 45,559.7 15.2%
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For the six months ended June 30, 2006, sales of
Investers Group mutual funds were $3 .4 billion, an
increase of 18.7% from 20035. Mutual fund redemptions
totalled $2.6 billion for the same period, an increase of
5.2% from 2005. Net sales of Investors Group mutual
funds were 5883 million in 2006 compared with net
sales of $468 million in 2005, an increase of 88.5%,
Sales of long-term funds were $3.0 billion for the six
months ended June 30, 2006, compared with $2.4 billion
in 2005, an increase of 21.2%. Net sales of long-term
funds were $727 million compared to net sales of
$351 million in 2005, an increase of 107%.

At June 30, 2006, 30% of Investors Masterseries™
mutual funds had four or five star ratings from the
Mormingstar' fund ranking service and 57% had a rating
of three stars or better, compared to 34% and 64%
respectively at December 31, 2005, This compared to
the Momingstar' universe of 33% for four and five
star funds and 69% for three stars or better at June 30,
2006. Morningstar Ratings' are an objective,
quantitative measure of a fund’s threc, five and ten
vear risk-adjusted performance relative to comparable
funds. Performance results for both periods were
impacted by a dispropordonate number of Investors
Masterseries funds represented in the Morningstar?
calculations with only a 3-vear performance measure
due to the introduction of a large number of new
funds over the last 5 vears.

Investors Group’s mutual fund assets under
management were $51.8 billion at June 30, 2006, an
increase of $4.9 billion or 10.5% from June 30, 2005.
The twelve month increase in assets from June 30,

Other Products and Services

INSURANCE

Investors Group distributes insurance products through
[.G. Insurance Services Inc. For the three months ended
Junc 30, 2006, sales of insurance products as measured

by annualized premiums were $7.8 million, a decrease
of 8.6% or $0.7 million from 2005. For the six months
ended June 30, 2006, sales of insurance products were
$16.7 million, an increase of 3.2% or $0.5 million from
2005. Total face amount of insurance in force at June 30,
2006 was $38.8 hillion, an increase of $2.8 billion from
June 30, 2005,

2005 reflects net market appreciation of $3.7 billion
and net sales of mutual funds totalling $1.2 billion.

Murual fund assets under management decreased by
$2.0 hiilion or 3.7% during the quarter and increased
by $1.1 billion or 2.2% during the six month period
ended June 30, 2006 as shown in Table 4. For the
three months ended June 30, 2006, net sales of
$164.8 million were offset by market depreciation of
$2.2 billion. For the six month pertad in 2006, net
sales of $882.8 million and market appreciation of
$247.3 million accounted for the increase in assets.

During the second quarter, Investors Group
announced the addition of new funds in both unir trust
and Corporate Class versions to further complement
the cxisting line-up. Two Canadian growth mandates,
Investors Canadian Growth Fund and the 1G Mackenzie
Maxxum Canadian Equity Growth Fund will invest
primarily in growth-oriented Canadian companies.
Additionally, the new unit trust funds have been added
to a select number of Investors Group’s Alte™ and
Allegro™ portfolio funds. These funds became
available for sale on July 21, 2006.

In addition, Investors Group announced plans to
launch a new investment mandate focused on Greater
China. Investors Greater China Fund and a Corporate
Class version of the Fund (named Investors Greater
China Class) will invest in listed companies trading in
Hong Kong, Taiwan, Singapore and Chinese stock
exchanges that derive a significant portion of their
revenue fram the expanding growth region of Greater
China. These funds are expected to be available for
sale in early August subject to regulatory approval.

SECURITIES OPERATIONS

Investors Group provides sceurities services to clients
through Investors Group Securities Inc. At June 30,
2006, asscts under administration in Investors Group
Sccurities Inc. were $1.2 billion.

MORTGAGE OPERATIONS

Investors Group Consultants play an integral role in
sourcing residential mortgages through client referrals
to Investors Group mortgage planning specialists.
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Through its mortgage banking operations, mortgages
are sold to Investors Mortgage and Short Term
Income Fund, [nvestors Group’s intermediary operations,
as well as to third parties and to mortgage conduits.
Investors Group is responsible for the ongoing servicing
of these mortgages, Investors Group mortgage
operations provides both origination and servicing as
outlined in the Investors Group Review of the Business
contained in the 2005 IGM Financial Inc. Annual
Report. At June 30, 2006, Investors Group serviced
$5.8 billion in mortgages, as compared to $5.4 billion
at June 30, 2005.

SOLUTIONS BANKING®

Investors Group provides banking services to its clients
through Solutions Banking'. The offering consists of a
wide range of products and services provided by the
National Bank of Canada under a long-term distribution
agreement and includes: investment loans, lines of
credit, personal loans, ereditor insurance, deposit
accounts and credit cards.

Consultant Network

Investors Group is focused on growing its distribution
nerwork by attracting and training new Consultants as
well as retaining existing Consultants. This is discussed
more fully in the Investors Group Review of the
Business contained in the 2005 IGM Financial Inc.
Annual Report. As at June 30, 2006, the number of
Consultants wotalled 3,766 compared to 3,668 at
December 31, 2008 and 3,537 one year ago. The number
of Consultants with more than four years experience
was 2,147 compared o 2,100 at December 31, 2005

IGM FINANCIAL INC, SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2606 / MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEGREGATED FUNDS

Investors Group currently offers its clients eight
segregated funds distributed solely by Investors
Group Consultants. These segregated funds are
underwritten by The Great-West Life Assurance
Company, with investment components managed by
Investors Group. At June 30, 2006, total segregated
fund assets were $95.0 million compared to

$59.5 million at June 30, 2005.

ADDITIONAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Investors Group also offers guaranteed investment
certificates to its clients through Investors Group Trust
Co. Lud. and a number of other financial institutions.

and 2,073 one year ago. The Consultant network has
grown in each of the last eight consecutive quarters,
In 2005, Investors Group added seven new region
offices concurrent with the growth of its field
managenient and the number of new Consultants. In
2006, Investors Group is embarking on a further phase
of region office expansion with four new region offices

scheduled to open later this year in Regina, Vancouver,

Mississauga and London.

Ir
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Segment Operating Results

[nvestors Group's earnings from operations before
interest and vaxes for the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2006 compared with 2005 are presented
in Table 5.

FEE AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME

For the three months ended June 30, 2006, management
fee income increased by $32.6 million o $257.0 million,
reflecting the increase of 14.3% in average daily mutual
fund assets during the quarter compared with 2005.
For the six month period, management fee income
increased $67.7 million, reflecting the increase of
15.2% in vear-to-date average daily murual fund assets
compared with 2005, Management fec income represents
196 basis points of average mutual fund assets in both
the three and six month periods in 2006, unchanged
from 2005.

Investors Group receives administration fees for
providing administrative services to its mutual funds
through certain of its subsidiaries and trustceship
services to its mutval funds through Investors Group
‘Trust Co. Lid. Administration fees totalled $44.9 million
for the three months ended June 30, 2006, up from
&41.3 million in 2005. Fees for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 were $90.1 million compared 1o
584.1 million in 2005. Increases in trustee fees and
other service fees in both the three and six month
periods resulted from growth in average mutual fund

TABLE 5: OPERATING RESULTS - INVESTORS GROUP

assets in 2006 compared to 2003. Thesc increases

were offset in part by a decrease of $0.2 million and

51.8 million, respectively. in fees charged to the murual

funds for administrative services.
Distribution fees are carned from:

¢  Redemption fees on mutual funds sold with a back-
end load fearure,

* Distribution of insurance products through 1.G,
Insurance Services Inc.

* Securities services provided through Investors
Group Securitics Inc.

* Banking scrvices provided through Solutions
Banking?, an arrangement with the National Bank
of Canada.

Distribution fee income of $29.0 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2006 increased by

$3.0 million or 11.5% from $26.0 million in 2005,

For the six month period, distribudon fee income of

$57.8 million increased by $7.4 million or 14.7%

from 850.4 million in 2005. Combined distribution

fce revenue from insurance, securites and banking

operations totalled $15.9 million for the three month
period and $31.9 million for the six month period, an
increase of 1.1 million and $3.4 million, respecrively,
over the comparable periods in 2005, Redemprion fee
income of §9.2 million and $18.4 million for the three
and six month periods increased by $1.4 million and
$2.8 million due to both higher redemptions subject to

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

(5 miilinns) 2006 2005 CHANGF, 2006 2005 CHANGE
Fee and net investment income
Management 8 257.0 8 2244 14.5% $ 5094 § 1.7 15.3%
Administration 44.9 41.3 8.7 90.1 84.1 7.1
Distribution 290 26.0 11.5 57.8 50.4 14.7
Net invesunent income and other 3122 37.0 (15.7) 74.9 734 2.0
3621 328.7 10.2 7322 649.6 12.7
Opcrating expenses
Commissions 45.3 35.4 280 89.3 68.7 30.0
Asset retention bonus and premium 50.8 43.9 15.7 100.4 86.4 16.2
Non-commission 69.6 67.1 3.7 140.7 134.1 4.9
165.7 146.4 13.2 3304 289.2 14.2
Earnings before interest and taxes  $ 196.4 5 1823 7.7% $ 4018 § 360.4 11.5%
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deferred sales charges in 2006 compared to 2005 and a increase reflects the impact from the change in

higher amount of assets subject to the industry standard estimate, cffective April 1, 2001, which increased
deferred sales charge schedule which Investors Group the term of amortization on mutual fund sales
introduced in 2003. commissions to 72 months.

Net investment income represents the difference ¢ Increase in amortization of commissions of
between investment income and interest expense. $0.6 million for the three months and 50.9 million
lnterest expense includes interest on deposit labilities, for the six months related to higher commission
certificates and debt incurred to finance Investors payments in 2006 compared with 2005. The increase
Group's investment in Great-West Lifeco Inc. (GWL). in commission payments results from higher mutual
Net investment income and other totalled $31.2 million fund sales.
for the three months ended June 30, 2006, a decrease e Increase of $1.9 million for the three months
of $5.8 million from $37.0 million in 2005 duc to and $4.8 million for the six months in other
decreases in revenues related to mortgage banking compensation related to mutual fund operations,
activitics as well as decreases in other income which, in insurance, mortgage and banking products duc 1o
2005, included the recovery of prior vears' commodity higher sales.
taxes paid. These decreases were offset in part by The asset retention bonus (ARB) and premium
increases in gains on the sale of securides and Investors (ARP) expenses, which are based on the level of assets
Group's share of GWLs earnings. under management, are comprised of the following:

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, net »  ARB which is paid monthly and is based on the value
investment income and other totalled $74.9 miilion, of assets under management. ARB expense increased
an increase of $1.5 million from $73.4 million in 2005. by $5.5 million to $43.8 million for the three month
Increases in gains on the sale of securities and Investors period and $11.0 million to $86.4 million for the
Group's share of GWLS earnings were offset in part six month period primarily as a result of the increase
by decreases in revenues related to mortgage banking in assets under management.
activitics and other income. Other income in 2005 s ARP which is a deferred component of compensation
included the recovery of prior vears’ commodity taxes designed to promote Consultant retention. The
paid and a reduction of §2.5 million in provisions ARP, which is related to assets under inanagement
previously established for the exit of certain activities at each year-end, increased by $1.4 million in the
which were no longer required. three month period in 2006 to $7.0 million. For

the six month period, ARP increased $3.0 million
OPERATING EXPENSES to $14.0 million.

I G . . . Non-commission expenses totalled $69.6 million

nvestors Group incurs commission expense in
sroup P for the three months ended June 30, 2006 compared

with $67.1 million in 20035, an increase of $2.5 million

or 3.7%. For the six month pcrimi, NOR-COmMIMIssion

connection with the distribution of its financial
services and products, particularly its mutual funds.

Commissions are paid on the sale of these products ..
P P expense totalled $140.7 million compared to

and will fluctuate with the level of sales. Commission $134.1 million in 20035, an increase of $6.6 million or

expense for the three months ended June 30, 2006
increased by §9.9 million to $45.3 million compared
with $35.4 millien in 2005. For the six months ended
June 30, 2006, commission expense increased by
$20.6 million to $89.3 million from §68.7 million
in 2005.

The increase in commission expense was duc to:

4.9%. Increases in expenses were primarily due to:

* Increases in Consultant Network support costs as a
result of increased activity levels.

¢ Increases in sub-advisory fees as a result of the
increase in sub-advised assets under management.
As well, non-commission expenses for the six

months ended June 30, 2005 included a reduction in

s Increasc in amortization of commissions totalling expenses of $1.7 million in the first quarter arising

$7.4 million for the three months and $14.9 million

. . \ ) from a change in estimate related to credit losses on
for the six months related to prior years’ sales. This

Consultant financing programs.
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Mackenzie
Assets Under Management

Mackenzies mutual fund assets under management were
$42.4 billion at June 30, 2006, an increase of $0.8 billion
or L9% from $31.6 billion as at December 31, 2005 and
an increase of $3.5 billion or 8.9% from 538.9 billion
as at June 30, 2005, Mackenzies total assets under
management at June 30, 2006 were $52.2 billion, an
increase of $2.3 billion or 4.7% from $49.9 billion at
December 2005 and an increase of $6.3 billion or 13.8%
from §43.9 billion as at June 30, 2005. The changes in
assets under management are summarized in Table 6.
In the three mondh period ended June 30, 2006,
gross sales of Mackenzies mutual funds were $2.0 billion,
an increase of 3.1% from $1.9 hillion in the comparative
period last year. Redemptions of mutual funds for
these same periods were $2.0 billion and $1.7 billion
respectively. Net sales of mutual funds for the three
month period ended June 30, 2006 were $32 million,
as compared to net sales of 5207 million for the
comparative period last vear. Net sales of long-term
funds were $51 million in the current period, as
compared to net sales of long-term funds of
$231 million in the comparative period last vear.

Far the six month period ended June 30, 2006,
gross sales of Mackenzics mutual funds were $4.8 billion,
an increase of 16,0% from $4.2 billion in the compararive
period last year. Redemptions of mutual funds in the
current period were 54.2 billion as compared to
redemptions of $3.6 billion in the six month period
ended June 30, 2003, Net sales of mutual funds for
the six month period ended June 30, 2006 were
$644 million, as compared to net sales of $553 million
in the comparative period last vear. Net sales of long-
term funds were $642 million for the six month period
ended June 30, 2006, as compared to net sales of long-
term funds of $599 million in the comparative period
last vear, an increase of 7.2%.

As at June 30, 2006, Mackenzic’s twelve month
trailing redemption rate for long-term funds was
15.3% as compared to 14.7% last year. One of the
factors contributing to this increase is the higher
proportion of Mackenzie’s mutual fund units which
are no longer subject w a redemption fee. The average
twelve month trailing redemption rate for long-term
funds for all other members of IFIC declined 10

TABLE 6: CHANGES IN ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT - MACKENZIE

THREY. MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

(8 smittivne) 2006 2005 CHANGE 1006 2005 CHANGE
Mutual Funds
Sales $ 199.1 § 1,894.2 51% 8§ 48395 § 41708 16.0%
Redemptions 1,958.0 1,687.3 16.0 4,195.5 3.618.3 16.0
Net sales 321 206.9 {84.5) 644.0 552.5 16.6
Marker and income {1,597.3) 5353.4 N/M 165.3 1,098.5 (85.00
Net change in assets (1,565.2) 7603 N/M 809.3 1.651.0 (51.0)
Beginning assers 43,966.5 38,188.9 15.1 41,592.0 37,298.2 1.3
Ending assets $ 424013 8§ 38,9492 8.9% 42,401.3 38,949.2 8.9
Institutional Accounts
Related parties and
Investors Group 4.091.0 3,807.1 7.5
Other 5,572.0 2.950.9 88.8
9,663.0 6,758.0 43.0
Structured Products 140.8 173.4 (18.8)
Total § 52,205.1 5 45,880.6 13.8%
Average daily mutual
fund assets $ 43,2183 § 38418 124% 8§ 429376 § 381676 12.5%
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approximately 15.3% at Junc 30, 2006 from 15.9%
last vear.

During the three month period ended June 30,
2006, net market depreciation resulted in mumal fund
assets decreasing by 51.6 billion as compared to an
increase of $0.6 billion in the comparative period last
year. During the six month period cnded June 30,
2006, investment returns generated for Mackenzie
untitholders resulred in mutual fund assets increasing
by §0.2 billion as compared to an increase of
$1.1 billion in the comparative period last year.

At June 30, 2006, 52% of Mackenzie’s mutual fund
assets measured by the Morningstar' fund ranking
service had four or five star ratings and 89% had a
rating of three stars or better. This compares to 66%
and 88% respectively at June 30, 2005, and to the
Momingstar' universe of 1% for four and five star
and 86% for three stars or better as at June 30, 2006.

Segment Operating Results

Mackenzie’s earnings from operations before interest
and taxes for the threc and six month periods ended
June 30, 2006 compared with 2005 are prescnted in
‘Table 7.

TABLE 7: OPERATING RESULTS - MACKENZIE

Mackenzie also provides investment management
serviees to institutional accounts. The assets in these
accounts as at June 30, 2006 were 59.7 biltion, a 43.0%
increase from $6.8 billion last vear. As well, Mackenzic’s
structured products totalled 5141 million as at June 30,
2006, a decrease of $32.6 million as compared w0
June 30, 2005.

During the second quarter, Mackenzie launched
the Mackenzie Universal U.S. Dividend Income Fund.
“This fund offers a fixed monthly distribution and aims
to achieve a combination of income and long-term
capital growth by investing primarily in large-cap
dividend-paying American companies,

On July 4, 2006, Mackenzie launched the Mackenzie
Charitable Giving Fund, a donotr-advised giving program
designed to provide a strategic and focused approach
to giving. Mackenzie is the first mutual fund company
to offer a donor-advised fund program in Canada.

FEE AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME

The majority of Mackenzie's revenues are earned from
the management services it provides as fund manager
to the Mackenzie mutuval funds. In addition to

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 S1X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30
(% riblions} 2006 2005 CHANGE 2006 2005 CHANGE
Fee and net investment income
Management $ 189.1 $ 1742 8.6% $ 3795 $ 3402 11.6%
Administration 31.5 33.3 3.4 66.2 68.9 (3.9
Distribution 8.4 8.2 24 17.8 18.0 (1.1)
Net investment income and other 8.2 4.4 86.4 13.8 8.6 60.3
237.2 220.1 7.8 477.3 435.7 9.5
Operating expenses
Commissions 40.6 38.3 6.0 81.1 76.3 6.3
Trailing commissions 52.7 45.7 15.3 103.7 90.4 14.7
Non-commission 63.7 61.0 4.4 134.3 128.9 4.2
157.0 145.0 8.3 3191 2956 7.9
Earnings before interest and taxes $ 80.2 § 751 6.8% $ 158.2 $ 140.1 12.9%
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Mackenzies retail priced mutual funds, it also offers
various series of these funds with lower management
fees that arc designed for fee-based programs, large
accounts and third party investment programs offered
by banks, insurance companics and investment dealers.
In return for lower management fees, depending on
the specific series of the mutual fund, Mackenzie does
not pay trailing commissions or selling commissions
on these series in the funds. As at June 30, 2006,
there were $5.4 hillion of mutual fund assets in these
series of the funds, as compared w $4.0 billion as at
June 30, 2005.

Management fees were $189.1 million for the
three month period ended June 30, 2006, an increase
of $14.9 million or 8.6% from 5174.2 million in the
comparative period last year. The increase in
management fees was attributed to a 12.4% increase
in Mackenzie’s average mutual fund assees under
management from $38.4 billion as at June 30, 2005
to $43.2 billion in the current period and the growth
in its institutional accounts. The overall increase in
management fees was less than the growth in assets
under management because of a shift in asset mix from
retail priced funds to non-retail priced funds, which
results in a lower effective management fee rate.

Management fees were $379.5 million for the six
month period ended June 30, 2006, an increase of
$39.3 million or 11.6% from $340.2 million in the
comparative period last year. The increase in management
fees was attributed to a 12.5% increase in Mackenzie’s
average mutual fund assets under management from
$38.2 billion as at June 30, 2005 10 $32.9 billion in the
current period and the growth in institutional assets.
The overall increase in management fees was less than
the growth in assets under management because of a
shift in asset mix from retail priced funds to non-retail
priced funds, which results in a lower effectve
management fee rate.

Administration fees were $31.5 million for the
three month period ended June 30, 2006, a decrease
of $1.8 million from $33.3 million in the comparative
period last year. Administration fees were $66.2 million
tor the six month period ended June 30, 2006, a decrease
of $2.7 million from $68.9 million in the comparative
period last year.

Administration fees include the following
main compongnts;

s Operating expenses recovered from Mackenzic
murual funds and structured products.

*  Assct allocation fees.

* ‘ltustee and other administration fees generated from
the MRS Group account administration business.
The decrease in administration fees during the

three and six months ended June 30, 2006, is primarily

attributed to a decline in counter party revenue as a

result of the elimination of the foreign property rules

applicable to registered plans in July 2005 and

Mackenzies decision to discontinue this product offering

and a decline in fees for administering the VenGrowth

labour sponsored funds. VenGrowth terminated their
administration agreement with Mackenzie effective

November 2005.

Mackenzie earns distribution fee income on
redemptions of mutual fund units sold on a deferred
sales charge basis and a low load basis. Fees charged
for deferred sales charge asscts range from 5.5% in the
first year and decrease to zero after seven years and for
low load assets range from 3.0% in the first year and
decreasc to zero after three vears, Distribution fee
income in the three month period ended June 3§, 2006
was $8.4 million, an increase of $0.2 million from
$8.2 million in the comparative period last vear.
Distribution fee income for the six month period
ended June 30, 2006 was $17.8 million, a decrease of
$0.2 million from $18.0 million in the comparative
period last year. Although the total level of redemptions
increased during the six month period ended June 30,
2006, the decline in distribution fec income was due to
a period over period decline in the absolute level of
redemption of units that are subject to a redemption fee.

The most significant component of net investment
income and other is the net interest margin from
M.R.S. Trust Company’s lending and deposit operations.
Net investment income in the three month period
ended June 30, 2006, was $8.2 million, an increase of
$3.8 million as compared to $4.4 million in the three
month period ended June 30, 2005. Net investment
income in the six month period ended June 30, 2006
was $13.8 million, an increase of $5.2 million as
compared to $8.6 million in the six month period
ended June 30, 2005. These increases are due to
changes in MLR.S. Trust Company’s loan portfolio and
rising interest rates and a gain realized at Mackenzie
in the current year on the disposition of marketable
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securities, There was no corresponding gain in the
prior vear results.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Mackenzie's operating expenses inercased 8.3% and
7.9% respectively in the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2006 as compared to the corresponding
periods last year,

Mackenzie pays selling commissions to the dealers
that sell its mutual funds on a deferred sales charge
basis. Commission expense, which represents the
amortization of deferred selling commissions, was
$40.6 million in the three month period ended June 30,
2006 as compared to $38.3 million in the comparative
period last year. Commission expense in the six month
period ended june 30, 2006 was $81.1 million, as
compared to §76.3 million in the same period in 2005.
Mackenzic amortizes deferred selling commissions
over a maximum petiod of up to seven years from the
date of original purchase of the applicable units of
deferred sales charge and low load units sold.

Trailing commissions paid to dealers are calculared
as a percentage of assets under management and vary
depending on the fund type and whether the fund was
purchased on a front-end basis or on a deferred sales
charge basis. Trailing commissions are generally not
paid on non-retail series of mutual funds and
institutional assets.

Trailing commissions paid to dealers were
$52.7 million in the three month period ended June 30,
2006, an increase of $7.0 million or 15.3% from
$43.7 million in the comparative period last year.
Trail commission cxpense in the six month period
ended June 30, 2006 was $103.7 million, an increase
of $13.3 million or 14.7% from $90.4 million in the
comparative period last vear. The increase in trailing
cominissions in the three and six month periods is due

IGM FINANGIAL INC, SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2006 / MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

to the year over year growth in average murual fund
assets under management and the increase in the
average trail commission rate. Trailing commissions
as a percentage of average mutual fund asscts under
management increased to 0.489% in the current
quarter as compared to (.476% in the corresponding
quarter last year and increased to 0.484% in the six
month period ended June 30, 2006 as compared to
0.474% in the same period last vear. The increase in
the average trail commission rate is attributed to an
increase in the proportion of Mackenzie’s mutual fund
assets that were purchased on a front-end basis as
opposed to a deferred sales charge hasis,

Non-commission expenses increased $2.7 million
or 4.4% to $63.7 million in the three month period
ended June 30, 2006, from $61.0 million in the
comparative period last year. Non-commission expenses
increased $5.4 million or 4.2% to $134.3 million in
the six month period ended June 30, 2006 from
$128.9 million in the comparative period last year. A
component of the non-commission expenses incurred
by Mackenzie is related to the administration of its
mutual funds. These expenses, which are recovered
from Mackenzic's mutual funds, were $0.2 million and
$1.3 million higher in the current three month and six
month periods ended June 30, 2006 respectively, as
compared to the corresponding periods last year. The
remaining non-commission expenses relate to costs
incurred by Mackenzie in the marketing and
management of its mutual funds and in its account
administration and trust company businesses. In the
current three and six month periods ended June 30,
2006, Mackenzie incurred higher external subadvisory
expenses as a result of an increase in the average assets
under management that are sub-advised in certain of
its mutual funds 25 compared to the corresponding
period last year.
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IGM Financial Inc.
Consolidated Financial Position

IGM Financial's on-balance sheet assets totalled
$6.92 billion at June 30, 2006 compared to $6.81 billion
at December 31, 2003.

The Company’s securities holdings were $178.0 million
at June 30, 2006, unchanged from December 31, 2005,
“I'he fair value of the Company’s portfolio exceeded
cost by $107.2 million at June 30, 2006 compared with
$123.7 million at December 31, 2005,

Loans, including mortgages and personal loans,
increased by $60.5 million to $573.5 million at June 30,
2006 and represent 8.3% of total assets, compared to

7.5% at December 31, 2005. Residential mortgage
loans related to the Company’s mortgage banking
operations increased $58.4 million, These residential
mortgage loans are funded primarily by sales to third
parties and mortgage conduits on a fully serviced basis
and by the Investors Mortgage and Short Term Incoime
Fund. In the Company’s interimediary operations,
personal loans increased by $29.5 million while
residential mortgage loans decreased by §27.4 million
in the six month period to June 30, 2006.

Consolidated Liquidity and Capital Resources

LIQUIDITY

[GM Financial’s operating liquidity is required for:

* Financing ongoing operations, including the
funding of selling commissions.

* ‘Temporarily financing mortgages in its mortgage
banking facility.

*  Meeting regular interest and dividend obligations
related to long-term debt and preferred shares.

*  Payment of quarterly dividends on its outstanding
common shares. :

¢ Maintaining liquidity requirements for

regulated entities.
¢ Financing common share repurchases related to the

Company’s norinal course issuer bid.

IGM Financial continues to generate significant
cash flows from its operations. Eamings before interest,
taxes, depreeiation and amortization (EBITDA) rotalled
$373.0 million for the three months ended June 30,
2006 compared to $340.5 million in 2005, and represents
an increase of 9.5%. EBITDA totalled $749.0 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2006 compared to
$667.6 million in 2005, and represents an increase
of 12.2%.

In addition to IGM Financial’s current balance of
cash and cash equivalents in excess of the operating
liquidity requirements described above, other porential
sources of liquidity include the Company’s portfolio of
securities and lines of credit. The Company maintains
operating lines of credit toralling $210 million with
various Schedule A Canadian chartered banks, of which
$50 million represented committed lines of credit.

IGM Financial’s demonstrated ability to raise
funds in domestic debt and equity markets is also a
source of liquidity.

Cash Flows

Table 8 — Cash Flows is a summary of the Consolidated

Staternents of Cash Flows which forms part of the

interim Consolidated Financial Statements for the

three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006.
Operating activities, before payment of commissions,

generated $283.5 million and $450.8 million during

the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006,

as compared to $245.7 million and $402.6 million in

2005. Cash commissions paid of $82.5 million and

$203.9 million in the three and six month periods

increased from $80.7 million and 5193.6 million in

2005% and reflect the increase in mutual fund sales over

2005 levels.

Financing activities during the quarter ended

June 30, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005

related primarily to:

¢ A net decrease of $39.1 million in deposits and
certificates in 2006 compared to $39.8 million in 2005.

¢ Proceeds received on the issuance of common
shares under the Company’s stock option program
of $1.8 million in 2006 compared with $1.7 million
in 2005.

* The payment of regular common share dividends
which increased to $98.0 million in 2006 from
$85.4 million in 2005 as a result of increases in the
Company’s common share dividends.
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IGM FINANCIAL INC.

TABLE 8: CASH FLOWS

THREL MON'THS ENDED JUNE 30

SIN MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30

(8 millions} 2006 2003 CHANGE 2006 1005 CHANGE
Operating activities

Before payment of cornmissions $ 2855 $ 2457 16.2% § 450.8 $ 402.6 12.6%

Commissions paid (82.5) {80.7) 2. (203.9) (193.6) 5.3

Net of commissions patd 203.0 165.0 23.0 246.9 209.0 18.1
Financing activities (135.3) (131.9) 3.0 (237.8) (184.0) (29.2}
Investing activities 98.4 (19.4) N/M {30.9) (77.6) 60.2
Increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents 166.1 1+.4 N/ M (21.8) (52.6) 58.6
Cash and cash equivalents,

beginning of period 880.2 798.0 10.3 1,068.1 865.0 233
Cash and cash equivalents,

end of period $ 1,046.3 S 8124 28.8% § 1,046.3 5 8124 28.8%

¢ The purchase of common shares in the second
quarter of 2006 under [GM Financial’s normal
course issuer bid which was nil in the second quarter
of 2006 compared with the purchase of 210,000

common shares at a cost of $7.7 million in 2005. .

Financing activities during the six months ended
June 30, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005
related primarily to:

* A net decrease of $23.4 miilion in deposits and
certificates in 2006 compared to $9.8 million in
2005.

* The repayment on maturity of the $25.0 million
note payable to Power Financial Corporation.

Securities purchases of $39.8 million and securities
sales with proceeds of $31.7 million in 2006
compared with $15.5 million and $26.8 million
respectively in 2005,

Increases in residential mortgages related to the
Company’s mortgage banking operations and
petsonal loans related to the Company’s intermediary
operations of $336.3 million compared to an increase
of $110.0 million in 2005, offset by securitizations
of $547.0 million in 2006 compared to $82.8 million
in 2005.

Investing activities during the six months ended

June 30, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005

* Proceeds received on the issuance of common related primarily to:

shares under the Company’s stock option program .

of $7.3 million in 2006 compared with $4.3 million
in 2005.
¢ The payment of regular common share dividends

which increased to $189.2 millien in 2006 from .

$164.8 million in 2005 as a result of increases in
the Company’s common share dividends.
* The purchase of 150,000 common shares in 2006
under IGM Financial’s normal course issuer bid at
a cost of $7.5 million. In 2005, 324,700 shares were
purchased ar a cost of $12.0 million.
Investing activities during the quarter ended June 30,
2006 compared to the same period in 2005 related
primarily to:

Securities purchases of $50.1 million and sccurities
sales with proceeds of $84.6 million in 2006
compared with §15.8 million and $56.2 million
respectively in 2005,

Inereases in residential tortgages related to the
Company’s mortgage hanking operations and
personal loans related to the Company’s
intermediary operations of $690.4 million compared
to an increase of $243.6 million in 2005, offset by
securitizations of $632.7 million in 2006 compared
to $131.5 million in 2005.
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Contractual Obligations

Changes in the contractual obligations of the Company
from those reported at December 31, 2005 relate to
the repayvment at maturity of a note payable of

£25.0 million to Power Financial Corporation during
the first quarter of 2006.

Liquidity Requirements

Liquidity requirements for M.R.S. Trust Company
and Investors Group Trust Co. Ltd., which engage in
financial intermediary activities, are based on investment
policies approved by the investment committees of
their respective Boards of Directors. As at June 30,
2006, liquidity for hoth companics was in compliance
with these policies.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

®  Securitizations — There were no changes to the
Company's liquidity management practices related
to sccuritizations during the three month period
ended June 30, 2006, During the three months
ended June 30, 2006, the Company entered into
secutitization transactions through its mortgage
banking operation with proceeds of $547.0 million
compared with $82.8 million in 2005 as discussed
in Note 2 to the interim Consolidated Financial
Statements. Securitized loans serviced at June 30,
2006 totalled $1,049.3 million compared with
$583.2 million in 2005. The fair value of the
Company’s retained interest was $15.4 million at
June 30, 2006 and $18.5 million in 2003.

* Derfvative Contracts — There have been no changes
in the Company’s policies and procedures with
respect to the use of derivative instruments during
the quarter ended June 30, 2006. During the second
quarter of 2006, the Company increased the
outstanding notional amount of interest rate swaps
by $766.5 million to §1,368.9 million. However,
the exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the
current fair value of those instruments which are in
a gain position, remained relatively unchanged.
The Company utilizes interest rate swaps in order
to reduce the impact of fluctuating interest rates
on its mortgage banking operations as outlined in
Notes 1 and 13 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in the 2003 IGM Financial Inc.
Annual Report.

CAPITAL RESCQURCES

Sharcholders’ equity increased to $3.64 billion as at
June 30, 2006 from $3.43 billion at December 31, 2005,
Changes in common share capital are reflected in
Note } to the interim Consolidated Financial
Statements. Long-term debt declined by $25.0 million
to $1.20 billion as a result of the repayment of the note
payable to Power Financial Corporation. Preferred
shares of $360 million remained at vear end 2005 levels.

To achieve 1ts strategic objectives, the Company
requires a strong capital base. The Company's capital
management objective is to preserve the quality of its
financial position by establishing and maintaining a
solid capital base and a strong balance sheet.

In the first quarter of 2006, the Dominion Bond
Rating Service (DBRS) reviewed their ratings of IGM
Financial’s senior debt and liabilities. The rating on
the Company’s senior debt and liabilities was upgraded
to A (high) with a stable outlook by DBRS, reflecting
the continuing quality of the Company’s balance sheet
and the strength of its operations. The S&P rating is
currently “A” with a stable outlook.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Changes in both the carrving values and fair values of
financial instruments did not have a significant impact
on the financial conditien of the Company for the
quarter ended June 30, 2006. In addition, there were
no significant changes in the risks related to these
financial instruments and in the policies and procedures
designed to manage these risks during the period.
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IGM FENANCIAL INC.

TABLE 9: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CARRYING VALUE

5 miilfions)

JUNE 30 DECEMBER 11
zoab 1003

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Securities
l.oans
Account and other receivables

$ 1,046.3 5 1,068.1

178.0 178.0
573.5 513.0
162.1 16t.2

$ 19599 $ 1,9203

Liabilides
Deposits and cerrtificares
Other financial liabilities
Long-term debt
Preferred shares

§ 6693 § 6928

470.5 480.9
1,200.0 [,225.0
360.0 360.0

$ 2,699.8 § 27587

QOutlook

MUTUAL FUND INDUSTRY ASSETS

At June 30, 2006, mutual fund industry assets in Canada
were $589.0 hillion, a decrease of 3.2% relative to
March 31, 2006 and an increase of 3.3% relative 1o
December 31, 2005, The $19.7 billion decrease in
industry assets since March 31, 2006 reflected ner sales
of $1.2 billion and an estitated $20.9 billion in market
depreciadon during the quarter. The $19.0 billion
increase in industry assets since December 31, 2005
reflected net sales of $11.4 billion, an estimated

$6.3 billion in investment returns and $1.3 billion

in mutual fund assets not previously reported

through IFIC.

OTHER RISK FACTORS

Contingencies

Investors Group and Mackenzie are subject to legal
actions, including class actions, arising in the normal
course of their business. Three class actions related to
alleged market timing trading activity in mutual funds
of the companies have been commenced. Investors
Group entered into settlement agreements in 2004
with a number of its securities regulators in respect of
such market timing trading activiry. Although it is

difficult to predict the outcome of such legal actions,
based on current knowledge and consultation with
legal counsel, management does not expect the
outcome of any of these matters, individually or in
aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position.

Market Risk

Risks related to performance of the equity markets and
changes in interest rates can have a significant impact
on the level and mix of mutual fund assets under
management and sales, In addition, these factors can
result in increased redemptions of mutual funds.

REDEMPTION RATES
Redemption rates for long-term funds are summarized
in Table 10.

[GM Financial provides Consultants and
independent financial advisors with a high level of
service and support and a broad range of investment
products — based on asset classes, countries or regions,
and investment management styles. These are key
advantages in maintaining strong client relationships.

The mutual fund industry and financial advisors are
committed to educating Canadian investors on the
merits of financial planning, diversification and long-
term investing. In periods of volatlity our Consultants
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TABLE 10: TWELVE MONTH TRAILING REDEMPTION RATE FOR LONG-TERM FUNDS

As at June 30 1006 2005
1GM Financial Inc.
[nvestors Group 8.4% 9.1%
Mackenzie 15.3% 14.7%
Counsel Group of Funds 9.7% 9.9%
Mutual Fund Industry, excluding IGM Financial Inc.” 16.1% 16.7%

» Rveludes Invesiors Group. Mackenzic and Conrsel Gronp of Fronds.

and independent financial advisors play a key role
assisting investors to maintain perspective and focus
on their long-term objectives.

Distribution Risk

*  Investors Group Consnltant Network — Investors
Group derives all of its mutual fund sales through
its Consultant network. Investors Group Consuleants
have regular direct contact with clients which can
lead to a strong and personal client relationship
based on the client’s confidence in that individual
Consultant. The market for financial advisors is
extremely competitive. The loss of a significant
number of key Consultants could lead to the loss
of client accounts which ceuld have an adverse
effect on Investors Group’s results of operations
and business prospects. Investors Group is focused
on growing its distribution network of Consultants
as previously discussed in the Investors Group
Review of the Business.

*  Mackenzic - Mackenzie derives substantially all of
its murual fund sales through independent financial
advisors. Mackenzic’s ability to market its products
is highly dependent on access to various distribution
channels. These intermediaries gencrally offer their
clients investment products in addition to, and in
competition with Mackenzie. The inability to have
such access could have a material adverse effect on
Mackenzic’s operatng results and business prospects.
However, Mackenzies portfolio of finaneial products
is recognized as one of the maost innovative and
complere in the industry. This, combined with
strong performance, marketing, educational and
service support, has made Mackenzie one of
Canada’s leading companics serving independent
financial advisors.
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Accounting Estimates and Policies

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There were no changes in accounting policies from
those reported at Decemnber 31, 2005,

Other Information

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no changes to the types of related party
transactions from those reported at December 31,
2005, For further information on transactions
involving related parties, see Notes 5 and 19 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2005 IGM
Financial Inc. Annual Report.

OQUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

Oustanding shares of the Company as at June 30,
2006 of 264,719,141 are disclosed in Note 3 - Share
Capital in the notes to the interim Consolidated
Financial Statements, Outstanding shares of the
Company as at August 1, 2006 totalled 264,736,422,

IGM FINANCIAL INC, SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2006 / MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 13 I

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

There were no changes to the Company’s critical
accounting estimates from those reported at
December 31, 2003,

SEDAR

Additonal information relating to IGM Financial Inc.,
including the Company's most recent financial
statements and Annual Information Form, is available
at www.sedar.com.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(wreaerdised) THREL MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 SIN MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30O
(1 thossarrade of dullars, cxcept shaves and per share amounts) 2006 2003 1006 1005

Fee and net investment income

Management $ 455,907 § 406462 § 908,214 § 797112

Administration 76,520 75,396 156,562 154,881

Iiseribution 54,841 49,756 111,608 103,092

Nert investment income and other 49,345 47,548 106,550 97,173
Total fee and net investment income 636,613 579,162 1,282,934 1,152,258
Operating expenses

Commission expense 206,204 177,865 408,613 353481

Non-commission expense 141,504 135,727 290,935 278,513

Interest expense 22,036 22,557 43,977 44,930
Total operating expenses 369,744 316,149 743,525 676,924
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest 266,869 243,013 539,409 473,334
Income raxes 65,709 74,498 152,598 145,668
income before non-controlling interest 201,160 168,513 386,811 329,666
Non-controlling interest 748 584 1,146 1,040
Nect income $ 200412 § 167931 § 385665 $ 328626
Average number of common shares @n tbonsands} (Note 6)

- Basic 264,673 264,557 264,660 264,601

— Diluted 267,529 266,306 267,454 266,334
Earnings per share (in doliars) (Note 8)

- Basic s 076 § 063 § 146 S 1.24

- Diluted $ 075 § 063 § 144 § 1.23

(See ascornpantying notes to intertm conmlidated frnancial statemenis.)

Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

(unaudited) SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30
(rt thousands of dullars) 2006 2003
Balance, beginning of period $ 1,954,391  $1,668,006
Net income 385,665 328,626
Common dividends {195,910) {170,676)
Common share cancellation excess (Norre 3 (6,611) (10,228}
Orxher 722 (5,654
Balance, end of period $ 2,138,257 S$1,810,074

(See accompanying notes te faterin consolidated financial statements.)
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unandited) JUNE 30  DECEMBER 31
(in thousarids of duflare) 2006 2003
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,046,310  $ 1,068,061
Securitics 178,049 178,011
Loans 573,478 512,989
Investment in affiltate 533,430 509,721
Deferred selling commissions 985,214 027,938
Orther assets 327,425 336473
Intangible assets 900,294 900,180
Goodwill 2,373,579 2,373,483
$ 6,917,779 56,806,876
Liabilitics
Dieposits and certificates $ 669346 S 692,770
Orther liabilicies 597,954 634,256
Future income taxes 451,457 HO,717
Long-term debt 1,200,000 1,225,010
Preferred shares (Note 3) 360,000 360,000

3,278,757 3,361,753

Sharcholders’ Equity

Share capital (Nore 5} 1,488,549 1,481,519
Contributed surplus 12,216 9,213
Retained earnings 2,138,257 1,954,391

3,639,022 3,445,123
$ 6,917,779  $6,806,876

(Sew acceenpanying niotes ta interim cansolidated financial staternents.)
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FGM FEINANCIAL INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{unudited) THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 310
{in thousurids af dollues) 2006 1005 2006 2003
Opcrating activities
Net income $ 200412 5 167,931 § 385,665 § 328,626
Adjustments ro determine net cash from operating activities
Future income taxes (23,893) 4,675 1,740 35,284
Commission amortization 74,562 64,971 146,692 127,578
Amortization of capital and intangible assets 5,361 3,702 10,730 11,400
Changes in operating assets and liabiliries and other 29,077 2,439 (94,001) (100,254}
285,519 245,718 450,826 402,634
Commissions paid (82,533) (80,672} {203,948) (193,596)
202,986 165,046 246,878 209,038
Financing activities
Net decrease in deposits and certificares (39,062) {39,801) (23,424) (9,763)
Repayment of long-term debt - - {25,010) (1,785)
Issue of common shares 1,764 1.678 7.329 4,299
Common dividends paid (97,964) (85,373) (189,230) (164,758)
Common shares purchased for cancellation - (7.742) (7,454) (12,041)
(135,262) (131,238) (237,789) (184,050)
Investing activitics
Acquisition of additional interest in
Investment Planning Counsel (841) (344 (997) (641}
Purchase of securities (39,773) (15,523) (50,147) (15,833)
Proceeds from the sale of securities 31,730 26,798 84,627 56,208
Net increase in loans (436,331) (110,033) (690,418) (243,642}
Proceeds from securitizations (Nate 2 547,047 82,786 632,690 131,489
Addirions to capital assets (3,436) {3,133) (6,595) (5,170
98,396 {19,449) (30,840) (77.589)
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 166,120 14,359 (21,751) (52,601)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 880,190 798,030 1,068,061 864,990
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 1,046,310 S 812389 £ 1,046,310 § 812,389
Cash § 123,137 § 67,726 §& 123,137 § 67,716
Cash equivalents 923,173 744,663 923,173 744,663
$ 1,046,310 S 812,389 $ 1,046,310 § 812,389
Supplemental diselosure of cash flow information
Amount of interest paid during the period $ 42258 5 40,773 % 63,580 S5 63,597
Amount of income raxes paid during the period $ 73332 5§ 79408 8§ 171,462 $ 147208

(Sec accompartying netes to interim corsolidated financial stasements.)
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Notes to the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

JUNE 30, 20006 (unaudited) (In thousands of dollavs. except shares awd per share wmstints)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The interim unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, using the same accounting policies as set out in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, These interim unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
should be read in conjuncrion with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thercto in the Company’s
Annual Report dated December 31, 2005,

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current vear’s financial statement presentadon.

2. SECURITIZATIONS

During the second quarter, the Company sceuritized $549.8 million (2005 — $83.2 million) of residential mortgages
through sales to commereial paper conduits that in turn issued securities o investors and received net cash proceeds
of §547.0 million (2005 - $82.8 million). The Company’s retained interest in the securitized loans was valued ar
$6.0 million (2005 ~ $2.7 million). A pre-tax loss on sale of $2.7 million (2005 - gain of $1.5 million} was recognized
and reported in Net investment income and other in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

During the six months ended June 30, 2006, the Company sceuritized $635.9 miltion (2005 - $132.1 million) of
residential mortgages through sales to commercial paper conduits that in turn issued securitics to investors and received
net cash proceeds of $632.7 million (2005 - $131.5 million). The Company’s retained interest in the securitized loans
was valued at $7.5 million (2005 — $4.1 million). A pre-tax loss on sale of $2.4 million (2005 — gain of $2.3 million) was
recognized and reported in Net investment income and other in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and outstanding

JUNE 30, 2006 DECEMBER 31, 2005

STATED STATED

SHARES VALUE SHARES VALUE

First preferred shares, Series A 14,400,000 $ 360,000 14,400,000 § 360,000

Comon shares

Balance, beginning of period 264,539,213 $1,481,519 264,598,380 § 1,475,405
Issued under Stock Option Plan 329,928 7,873 325,533 9,382
Purchased for cancellation (150,000) (843) (584,700) (3,268)
Balance, end of period 264,719,141 $ 1,488,549 263,539,213 S 1481519

Normal course issuer bid

The Company commenced a normal course issuer bid, effective for one year, on March 22, 2006. Under this bid, the
Company may purchase up to 13.2 million or $% of its common shares outstanding as at March 14, 2006.

There were no shares purchased in the second quarter of 2006, and during the six months ended June 30, 2006,
150,000 shares were purchased at a cost of $7.5 million. The premium paid to purchase the shares in excess of the
stated value was charged to Retained earnings.

On February 23, 2005, the Company commenced a normal course issuer bid, cffective for one year, authorizing
it to purchase up to 13.2 million or 5% of its common shares outstanding as at February 18, 20035, In the second
quarter of 2005, 210,000 shares were purchased at a cost of $7.7 million and, during the six months ¢nded June 30,
2005, 324,700 shares were purchased at a cost of $12.0 million. The premium paid to purchase the shares in cxcess
of the stated value was charged to Retained earnings.
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IGM FINANCIAL INC.
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4. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

JUNE 30 DECEMBER 31

2006 1003

Common share options
- Quistanding 8,822,378 8,451,760
- Exercisable 4,624,063 3,854,090

In the second quarter of 2006, the Company did not issue options to employvees (2005 — nil). In the six months
ended June 30, 2006, the Company issued 810,400 options to emplovees (2005 - 1,920,800). A portion of the
options granted to emplovees are subject to performance targets. The weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the siy months ended June 30, 2006 has been estimated at $8.68 per option (2005 — $7.76) using the
Biack-Scholes option pricing model, based on the following assumptions: (i) risk-free interest rate of 4.11% (2005 -
4.04%), (11) expected option life of six years (2005 - six years), (i) expected volatility of 21.00% (2005 - 25.00%)
and (iv) expected dividend yield of 3.17% (2005 - 3.42%).

The Company recorded compensation expense related to its stock option program of $1.6 million (2005 -
$1.1 million) in the sccond quarter and $3.0 million (2005 - $2.0 million) for the six months ended June 30, 2006,

5. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company recorded pension and other post-retirement benefits expense as follows:

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 310 SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30
20006 2003 2006 2003
Pension expense s 769 % 22¢ S 1,537 % 408
Other post-reiremenr benefits expense 725 972 1,450 1,944
Total 3 1,494 § 1,192 § 2987 § 2,352
6. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
‘THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 51X MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30
2006 2005 2006 1005
Earnings
Net income $ 200412 § 167931 $ 385,665 § 328626
Number of common shaves in rhousands)
Average number of common shares outstanding 264,673 264,557 264,660 264,601
Add:
- Potential exercise of outstanding stock options 2,856 1.749 2,794 1,733
Average number of common shares cutstanding
— Diluted basis 267,529 266,306 267,454 266,334
Earnings per common share (in dollars)
Basic $ 076 § 063 $ 146 3 1.24
Diluted $ 075 § 0.63 $ 144 § 1.23

In certain circumstances, the preferred shares are convertible into common shares. These conversions are not included
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share as the Company has the option to settle in cash instead of shares.
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7. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Three months ended June 30 INVESTORS CORPORATL
2006 GROUP MACKENZIE AND OTHER TOTAL

Fee and net investment income

Management $ 257,001 S 189,073 § 9,833 § 455,907
Administration 44,911 31,499 110 76,520
Distribution 29,004 8,388 17,449 54,841
Net investment income and other 31,167 8,283 9,895 49,345
362,083 237,243 37,287 636,613
Opcrating expenses
Commisstons 96,121 93,311 16,772 206,204
Non-commission 69,579 63,684 8,241 141,504
165,700 156,995 25,013 347,708
Earnings before undernoted $ 196,383 § 80,248 % 12,274 288,905
Interest expense 22,036
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest 266,869
[neome taxes 65,709
Income before non-controlling interest 201,160
Non-controlling interest 748
Net income $ 200,412
Three months ended jJune 30 INVESTORS CORPORATE
2005 GROUP MACKENZIE AND OTHER TOTAL

Fec and net investment income

Management $ 224362 S 174.230 § 7,870 S 406,462
Administration 41,301 33,304 791 75,396
Distribution 26,040 8,173 13,543 49756
Net investment income and other 36,967 4411 6,170 47,548
328,670 220,118 30,374 579,162
Operating ¢xpenses

Commissions 79,371 84,019 14,473 177,865
Non-commission 67,054 61,004 7,669 135,727
146,423 145,023 22144 313,392
Earnings before undernoted S 182245 § 7509 § 8,230 265,570
Interest expense 22,557
Income before income taxes and non-centrolling interest 243,013
Income raxes 74,408
Income before non-conrrolling interest 168,513
Non-controlling interest 584
Net income S 167,931

&

=

-

=z

>

=

I

>

-~

=

o

3o IGM FINANCIAL INC, SECOND QUARTER REPORT :006 / NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION — SECOND QUARTER REPORT 2006

c 27
e ——




IGM FINANCIAL INC.

7. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continucd)

Six months ended June 30 INVESTORS CORPORATE
2006 GROUT MACKENZII: AND OTHER TOTAL
Fee and net investment income

Management $ 509415 $ 379,471 $ 19,328 $ 908,214

Administration 90,122 66,222 218 156,562

Distribution 57,725 17,794 36,089 111,608

Net investment income and other 74,880 13,860 17,810 106,550

732,142 477,347 73,445 1,282,934

Operating ¢xpenses

Commissions 189,680 184,771 34,162 408,613

Non-cominission 140,717 134,335 15,883 290,935

330,397 319,106 50,045 699,548

Earnings before undernoted $ 401,745 $ 158241 § 23,400 583,386
Interese expense 43,977
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest 539,409
Income taxes 152,598
Income before non-controlling interest 386,811
Non-controlling interest 1,146
Net income § 385,665
Identifiable assets $1,486,197 $2,182,612 § 875,391 $4,544,200
Goodwill 1,347,781 943,550 82,248 2,373,579
Toral assets $2,833,978 $3,126,162 $ 957,639 $6,917,779

Six months ended June 30 INVESTORS CORPORATE
20085 GROUP MACRKRENZIE AND OTHER TOTAL
Fee and net investment income

Management $ 1,696 § 340,163 % 15253  § 797,112

Administration 84,140 68,932 1,809 154,881

Digtribution 50,400 17,953 34,739 103,092

WNet investment income and other 73,379 8,624 15,170 97,173

649,615 435,672 66,971 1,152,258

Operating expenses

Cotnmissions 155,108 166,721 31,652 353,481

Non-commission 134,112 128,898 15,503 278,513

289,220 295,619 47,133 631,994

Earnings before undernoted $ 360,395 § 140,053 S 19,816 520,264
Interest expense 44,930
[ncome before income taxes and non-controlling interest 475,334
[ncome raxes 145,668
[ncome before non-controlling interest 329,666
Non-controlling interest 1,040
Nert income $§ 328,626
Identifiable assets S1,454251  $2.198644 § 565,033 $4.217928
Goodwill 1,347,781 943,550 81,451 2,372,782
‘Total assets §2.802,032 $3,142,194 § 646,484  §$6,590,710
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8. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On August 2, 2006, Mackenzie Financial Corporation (“Mackenzie™), a subsidiary of IGM Financial Inc., entered
into an agreement to acquire all of the assets of Cundill Investment Research Ltd. and related entities (the “Cundill
Ciroup™). Under its long standing strategic alliance with Mackenzie, the firm is currently sub-advisor to over

£12.5 billion in assews of the Mackenzie Cundill mutual funds and other Mackenzie mandates. "The Cundill Group
also manages over $3 billion of institutional and high net worth mandates o a global client base. The transaction is
expected to close by the end of the third quarter of 2006,
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POWER FINANCIAL CORPORATION

STOCK LISTINGS

Shares of Power Financial Corporation are listed on the

Toronto Stock Exchange, under the following listings:

Common Shares: PWF

First Preferred Shares, Series A: PWF.PR.A
First Preferred Shares, Series C: PWF.PR.D
First Preferred Shares, Series D: PWF.PR.E
First Preferred Shares, Series E: PWF.PR.F
First Preferred Shares, Series F: PWF.PR.G
First Preferred Shares, Series H: PWF.PR.H
First Preferred Shares, Series I: PWF.PR.I

First Preferred Shares, Series J: PWF.PR.)

First Preferred Shares, Series K: PWE.PR.K

Shareholders with questions relating 1o the payment
of dividends. change of address and share certificates should

contact the Transfer Agent.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Computershare Investor Services Inc.
1-800-564-6253 (toll-free in Canada and the U.5.)
or 514-982-7555

1500 University Street, Suite 700, Montréal, Québec, Canada H3A 358
100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2Y1
830-201 Portage Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada R3B 3K6
510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6C 3B9
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